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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Senrices, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend the existing contract vinth the vendor listed in bold below to continue providing peer
support services to adults with mental illness, with no change to the price limitation of $18,709,274
and no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2022 effective upon Governor arxJ
Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Govemor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

Connections

Peer Support
Center

#157070

-8001
Portsmouth

$2,069,950 $0 $2,069,950

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

A4: 11/18/20

#TBD

H.EAR.T.S

Peer Support
Center

Region IV

#209287

-8001
Nashua $2,913,757

$0 $2,913,757

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27
A4:11/18/20

#T8D

Lakes Region
Consumer

Advisory
Board

#157060

*8001
Laconia $2,036,620 $0 $2,036,620

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27
A4: 11/18/20

#180

Monadnock

Area Peer

Support
Agency

#157973

*8001
Keene $2,223,907 $0 $2,223,907

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

M: 11/18/20

#T8D

The Department of Heollh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilisens to achieve health and independence.
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On the Road

to Recovery,
Inc.

#158839

-8001
Manchester $3,166,471

$0 $3,166,471

0:06/29/18 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#33B
A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

A4: 11/18/20

#TBD

The

Alternative .

Life Center

#168081

-BOOi
Conway $2,863,522 $0 $2363,522

0:08/29/16 #23

A1: 08/21/17 #38

A2: 06/20/2018

#33B

A3: 06/19/19 #28

A4: 06/24/20 #27

The Stepping
Stone O^ln

Center

Association

#157697

-8001
Claremont $2,296,642 $0 $2,296,642

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2; 06/19/2018

#28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

M: 11/18/20

#TBD

TrI-City
Consumers'

Action Co

operative

#157797

-8001
Rochester $1,138,405 $0 $1,138,405

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2; 06/19/19 #28

A3: 0ei24f20 #27

A4:11/18/20

#TBD

Total: $18,709,274 $0 $18,709,274

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office.
If needed and justified.

See Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend the existing contract in bold to continue providing
peer support services for adults who are eighteen (18) years of age and older who self-identify as
a recipient, a former recipient, or are at significant risk of becoming a recipient of mental health
services and clarify the scope of services. This request will be amernjed as follows; Exhibit A -
Amendment #3 to be replaced by Exhibit A - Amendment #5 and Exhibit B - Amendment #2 to
be replaced by Exhibit B - Amendment #5 in their entirety.

This contractor will continue to provide services that enhance personal wellness,
independence, and recovery by increasing personal awareness, and symptom management of
mental illness. Peer support services Include supportive interactions and shared experiences
using an Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental illness and self-
advocacy skills through personal connection and building relationships. Approximately 220
individuals will be sen/ed from Governor and Council approval to June 30, 2022.
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Peer support agencies provide individuals with a comprehensive array of In-house and
community based discussion groups, practice groups, educational events, social outings,
community outreach, and community support. Peer support agencies provide Intentional Peer
Support services through face-to face meetings and telephone calls. Telephone-based peer
support services, known as Warmline Services, are available statewide to assi^ individuals who
may experience mental health crises outside of regular business hours.

. The Department will monitor contracted services though use of programmatic audits,
reviews and ongoing financial audits Including but not limited to:

•  Monthly financial ratios, expenses, and status;

• Outreach activities;

•  Educational events;

•  Program evaluations and surveys;

•  Service deliverable expectations;

•  Numbers served, number of current meml)er8, and program utilizations tools; and

• Ongoing steps to increase membership:

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provision, Section 3. of the original
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, improved fiscal
oversight to ensure financial sustainabllity of the org and background che(^s to increase safety
protocols for those served will not occur.

Area served: Mental Health Region I /

Source of Funds: General Funds

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



Financial Detail

05-95-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

AcUvityCode: 92207143

The Alternative Life Center

Vendor #068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  290.154.00 $ $  290.154.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  290.154.00 $ $  290.154.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal i  580,308.00 S i  580,308.00

The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  209.790.00 % $  209.790.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  209.790.00 S $  209,790.00

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $■ $
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal S  419,580.00 s $  419,580.00

Lakes Reqlon Consumer Advisory Board
Vendor#157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  188.183.00 $ $  188.183.00
2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  188,183.00 $ $  188.183.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S
2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ s

Subtotal S  376.366.00 $ $  376,366.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency
Vendor#157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S  146,449.00 $ $  146.449.00
2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  146,449.00 $ $  146.449.00
2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2022 Contracts for-Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $  292,898.00 $ $  292,898.00

H.EUV.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI
Vendor # 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  211,860.00 $ $  211,860.00
2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  211,860.00 $ $  211.860.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S $ $
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal S  423.720.00 $ $  423,720.00

Page 1 of 8



Financial Detail

On the Road to Recovery, inc.

Vendor# 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  245,562.00 $ S  245.562.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  245.562.00 $ $  245.562.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $  491,124.00 $ S  491,124.00

•-»

Connections Peer Suooort Center

Vendor#157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  , 135,751.00 $ $  135,751.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  135.751.00 $ $  135.751.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $  271.502.00 $ S  271,502.00

TrI-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor # 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  102.362.00 $ S  102.362.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  102.362.00 $ S  102.362.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

Subtotal i  204.724.00 $ i  204.724.00

1$ 3.060.222.00 1$' 3.060.222.00~|[SUBTOTAL

05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCiAL SERViCES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAViORAL HEALTH DIV OF. DiV

OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds

Activity Code: 92207011

The Aitematlve Life Center

Vendor #068801

State Fiscal Year Ciass Titie Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  233,122,00 $ S  233,122.00

2018 Contracts for Prog.Svs 102-500731 $  233.122,00 $ $  233,122.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ S

Subtotal $  466.244.00 $ $  466,244.00

The StepDina Stone Drop-in Center Association

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscai Year Ciass Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  168.555.00 $ $  168,555,00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  168.555.00 $ S  168,555,00

2019 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S S

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  - $ $

Subtotal $  337.110.00 $ $  337,110.00
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Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor#157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  151,196.00 $ $  151.196.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  151,196.00 $ $  151.196.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal S  302.392.00 $ $  302.392.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor#157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  117,665.00 $ S  117.665.00

.  2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  117,665.00 $ $  117.665.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ S S

Subtotal %  235.330.00 $ S  235,330.00

H.E J^.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor #209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  170.218.00 $ $  170.218.00

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs • 102-500731 $  170.218.00 $ $  170.218.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S s

2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ s

Subtotal $  340.436.00 $ $  340,436.00

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor#158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  197.296.00 $ $  197.296.00

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  197.296.00 $ $  197.296.00

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $  394.592.00 $ $  394,592.00

Connections Pear Support Center

Vendor#157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  109,071.00 $ $  109.071.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109.071.00 $ $  109,071.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S $ $

Subtotal S  218.142.00 $ i  218,142.00

Trl-Clty Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor #157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $' 82,245.00 $ S  82,245.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  . 82,245.00 $ $  82,245.00

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020
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2021 Contracts for ProQ Svs 102-500731 S $ S

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $  164.490.00 $ S  164,490.00

SUB TOTAL 2.458.736.00 I S 2.458.736.00

05-95.92.92201CM118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DtV,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds

Activity Code: 92204118

The Alternative Life Center

Vendor n 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S . $ S .

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 s 233,122.00 $ $ 233,122.00

2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 s 197,082.00 $ $ 197.082.00

2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  190.832.00 $ $ 190.832.00

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S 190.832.W $ S 190.832.00

Subtotal $ 811.868.00 S s 611.868.00

The SteoDina Stone Droo-ln Center Association

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  168.555.00 $ $  168.555.00

2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  177.823.00 $ $  177.823.00

2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  171.573.00 $ S  171.573.00

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $  171,573.00 S $  171.573.00

Subtotal $  689.524.00 $ S  689,524.00

Lakes Region Consumer Advlsorv Board

Vendor# 157060

State FIscai Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ - $ s •  -

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ r  151.196.00 S % 151.196.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102r500731 S 156.569.00 $ s 156.569.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 150.319.00 $ s 150.319.00

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 150.319.00 s $ 150.319.00

Subtotal $ 608,403.00 $ $ 608.403.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor#157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S - $ $ -

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S 117.665.00 $ S 117,665.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 128.811.00 $ S 128,811.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 122.561.00 $ s 122,561.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 122.561.00 $ s 122,561.00

Subtotal s 491.598.00 $ s 491,598.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor # 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ - $ S -

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 S 170.218.00 $ $ 170.218.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 200.977.00 $ $ 200.977.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 194,727.00 $ S 194.727.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  194.727.00 $ s 194.727.00
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Subtotal 1 1 Is 760,649.00 j S • 1 S 760,649.00 |

On the Road to Recovery, inc.

Vendor #158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  197,296.00 $ $  197,296,00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  189,153.00 $ $  189,153.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  182,903.00 $ $  182,903.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  182,903.00 $ $  182,903.00

Subtotal $  752,255.00 $ $  752,255.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor#157070

'  State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109,071.00 $ $  109,071.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  114,544.00 $ $  114,544.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  108,294.00 $ $  108,294.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  108.294.00 $ $  108,294.00

Subtotal $  440,203.00 $ $  440,203,00

Tri-Citv Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor#157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  82,245,00 $ $  82,245.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  64,409.00 $ $  64,409.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  58.159.00 $ $  58,159.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  58.159.00 $ $  58,159.00

Subtotal $  262,972.00 $ %  262,972.00

SUBTOTAL 1 1 1$ 4,817,472.00 1$ - |$ 4,817,472.00

05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV.

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Activity Code: 92204120

The Alternative Life Center

Vendor # 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  290,154.00 $ $  290,154.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  237.516.00 $ $  237,516.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  237,516.00 $ $  237,516.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  237,516.00 $ $  237,516.00

Subtotal S  1,002,702.00 $ $  1,002,702.00

The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association

Vendor #157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $. $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  209,790.00 $ $  209,790.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  213.546.00 $ $  213.546.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  213.546.00 $ $  213.546.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  213,546.00 $ $  213,546.00

Subtotal $  850,428.00 $ $  850,428.00
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Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor #157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  188,183.00 $ $  188,183.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  187,092.00 $ $  187,092.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  187,092.00 $ $  187,092.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  187,092.00 $ $  187,092.00

Subtotal $  749.459.00 $ i  749,459.00

Monadnook Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor #157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  • $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  146,449.00 $ $  146,449.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  152,544.00 $ $  152,544.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  152,544.00 $ $  152,544.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  152,544.00 $ $  152,544.00

Subtotal $  604,081.00 $ $  604,081.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor # 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  211,860.00 $ $  211,860.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  192,364.00 $ $  192.364.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  192,364.00 $ $  192.364.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  192,364.00 $ $  192.364.00

Subtotal %  768,952.00 $ S  788,952.00

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor#158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

•  2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  245,562,00 $ $  245,562.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  227,646,00 $ $  227,646.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  227.646.00 $ $  227,646,00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  227,646,00 $ $  227,646,00

Subtotal S  928.500.00 $ $  928,500.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor#157070 ,

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  135.751,00 $ $  135,751.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  134.784,00 $ $  134,784.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  134.784,00 $ $  134,784.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  134.784,00 $ $  134,784.00

Subtotal $  ' 540,103.00 $ i  540,103.00

Tri-Clty Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor#157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  . . . $

2016 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs .  102-500731 $  102,362.00 $  . $  102,362.00

Page 6 of 8



Financial Detail

2020 Contracts for Pro<j Svs 102-500731 S 134.619.M $ S 134,619.00

2021 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ 134.619.00 $ s 134,619.00

2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ 134.619.W $ $ 134,619.00

Subtotal s 506,219.00 $ s 506,219.00

ISUB TOTA~ 1$ 5,970,444.00 rs' H 5,970,444.00

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OP, HHS: GLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER,

GLENCLIFF HOME, PROFESSIONAL CARE

60% Other Funds/ 20% General Funds

Activity Code: 91000000

The Altenative Life Center

Vendor//066801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2018 Consultants 046-500464 $  1,200.00 $ $  1,200.00

2019 Consultants 046-500464 $  1,200.00 $ $  1,200.00

2020 Consultants 046-500464 $ $ S

Subtotal S  2,400.00 $ %  2,400.00

SUB TOTAL 2,400.00 $ 2,400.00

05-95-92-922010-4117 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

100% General Funds

Activity Code: 92204117

The Alternative Life Center

Vendor» 066601

State Fiscal Year c  Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prod Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Cloniracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $ $ S

The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association

Vendor#157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ S

Subtotal $ $ 5

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor#157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $ $ S

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor#157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account 'Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  300,000.00 $  300,000.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  300,000.00 $  300,000.00

Subtotal $ $  600,000.00 $  600,000.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor # 209267

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $  300,000.00 S  300,000.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  300,000.00 $  300,000.00

Subtotal $ $  • 600,000.00 $  600,000.00

On tho Road to Recovery, Inc.
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Vendor# 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  300,000.00 $  300.000.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  300,000.00 $  300.000.00

Subtotal $ $  600,000.00 S  600,000.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor#157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 . Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S  300,000.00 $  300.000.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $  300,000.00 $  300.000.00

Subtotal i S  600.000.00 S  600,000.00

Tri-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor#157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $ S S

2,400.000.00 I $ 2,400,000.00 |SUB TOTAL

TOTAL $  16,309,274.00 1$ 2,400,000.00 1$ 18,709,274.00]
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

state of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 5'^ Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #5") is
by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Alternative Life Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 6 Main Street, Conway, NH 03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016, (Item #23), as amended on June 21, 2017, (Item #38), June.20, 2018, (ltem #33B), June
19, 2019, (Item #28), and on June 24, 2020, (Item #27), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. • Delete Exhibit A - Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A -
Amendment #5, Scope of Sen/ices, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2. Delete Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety
and replace with Exhibit B - Amendment #5, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/12/2020

Date

OoeuSlgnad by:

fc*

G—uocus
lUfjA
—FnonoFnono5mwirii:u4?

Name; Katja fox

Title: Director

11/5/2020

Date

The Altemative Life Center

OoeuSlgn«d by;

Name: Laura Mekinova
Title:

Executive Director

The Alternative Life Center

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■OocuSl{in«d by;

11/17/2020

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5
Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they shall,provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
(NH) General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide peer support services in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 400, Community Mental Health, Part 02, Peer Support,
referred to as He-M 402, that;

1.3.1. Increase quality of life for individuals living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase hope for and belief in the possibility of recovery for individuals living
with mental illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to Individuals
living with mental illness In NH.

1.3.4. Provide alternatives to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitalization.

1.3.5. Increase social connectedness for individuals living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide mental health peer support services to individuals who are
eighteen (18) years of age or older who:

1.4.1. Self-identify as a recipient, as a former recipient, or at a significant risk of
becoming a recipient of mental health services, and may include individuals
who are homeless.

1.5. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean consecutive calendar
days, unless otherwise denoted as business days.

1.6. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of Part 2 substance use disorder (SLID) information
or records created by a Part 2 provider the information or records shall be subject to all
safeguards of 42 CFR Part 2.

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nongovernmental peer support
agency.

2.2. Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding Saturday and
Sunday.

2.3. Consumers are any Individual, eighteen (18) years of age or older, who self-identifies
as a recipient, as a former recipient, or as a significant risk of becoming a recipient of

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

pubiically funded mental health services.

2.4. Guests are any individuals who are invited to visit the peer support agency by a
member, participant, or the peer support agency.

2.5. Homeless Is (1) an individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence; or (2) an individual or family who has a primary nighttime residence
that is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary
living accommodations (Including welfare hotels and congregate shelters), an Institution
other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence for individuals intended to
be institutionalized, or a public or private place not designed for, or ordinarily used as, a
regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.

2.6. Members are any consumers, who have made an Informed decision to join, and agree
to, abide by, and support the goals and objectives of peer support services.

2.7. Mental Illness is defined in RSA 135-C:2 X, namely, "a substantial impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impairment is manifested by
Instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions. It does not
Include impairment primarily caused by: (a) epilepsy; (b) intellectual disability; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous periods of intoxication caused by substances such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as alcohol
or drugs."

2.8. Participant means a consumer, who is not member, who participates in any aspect of
peer support services.

2.9. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support, peer education, and peer programming to
persons eighteen (18) year of age and older who self- identify as having a mental illness.

2.10. Quarter or Quarterly is defined as the periods of July 1 through September 30, October
1 through December 31, January 1 through March 31, and April 1 through June 30.

2.11. Recovery means for an individual with a mental illness, development of personal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice, increase quality of life, minimize
or eliminate impairment, and decrease dependence on professional services.

2.12. Region is the geographic area of cities and towns in New Hampshire, as defined by the
Department.

2.13. Serious Mental Illness (SMI) refers to individuals whom the state defines as having
either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI)
pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2, XV.

2.14. Week is defined as Monday through Sunday.

3. Scope of Services

3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide in-house and community based services for New
Hampshire residents.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provid^for
The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initialsl J
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

consumers and by consumers including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Peer support services that include supportive interactions,
shared experiences, acceptance, trust, respect, lived
experience, and mutual support among members, participants,
staff and volunteers.

3.1.2.2. Maintenance of a safe physical location that:

3.1.2.2.1. Is open a minimum of forty-four (44) hours per week,
eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week and
four (4) hours on one (1) additional day per week at
each location; and

3.1.2.2.2. Provides face-to-face or telephone peer support
services to PSA members or others who contact the

PSA at a minimum of forty (40) hours per week at
each location.

3.1.2.3. Peer support services based on the Intentional Peer Support
model that:

3.1.2.3.1. Foster recovery from mental illness by helping
individuals identify and achieve personal goals while
building an evolving vision of their recovery.

3.1.2.3.2. Foster self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and
independence.

3.1.2.3.3. Emphasize mutuality and reciprocity as
demonstrated by shared decision-making; strong
conflict resolution; non-medical approaches; and
non-static roles, including but not limited to, staff who
are members and members who are educators.

3.1.2.3.4. Offer alternative views on mental health, mental
illness and the effects of trauma and abuse.

3.1.2.3.5. Encourage informed decision-making abput all
aspects of people's lives.

3.1.2.3.6. Support people with mental illness in challenging
perceived self-limitations, while encouraging the
development of beliefs that enhance personal and
relational growth.

3.1.2.3.7. Emphasize a holistic approach to health that
includes a vision of the whole person.

3.1.2.4. Providing opportunities to learn wellness strategies by using, at a minimum,
Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and Whole Health Action
Management (WHAM), to strengthen individual abilities to attain and
maintain their health and recovery from mental illness.

3.1.2.5. Provide in-house and community-based services according to the

The Alternalive Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5
Deliverables in Subsection 12.1. through Subsection 12.2.

3.1.2.6. Provide outreach by face-to-face or by telephone contact with consumers
by providing support to individuals who are unable to attend agency
activities, visiting people who are hospitalized with a psychiatric condition,
and reaching out to people who meet membership criteria and are
homeless.

3.1.2.7. Provide monthly newsletters published by the peer support agency (PSA)
that describes agency services and activities: other community services;
social and recreational opportunities; member articles and contributions
and other relevant topics that might be -of interest to members and
participants.

3.1.2.8. Distribute the newsletters to the members and other interested parties,
which may include but are not limited to community mental health centers
and other appropriate community organizations, at least five. (5) business
days prior to the upcoming month.

3.1.2.9. Provide monthly education events and presentations topics germane to
issues and concems of consumers of mental health services which must

include, but are not limited to:

3.1.2.9.1. Rights Protection.

3.1.2.9.2. Peer Advocacy.

3.1.2.9.3. Recovery.

3.1.2.9.4. Employment.

3.1.2.9.5. Wellness Management.

3.1.2.9.6. Community Resources.

3.1.2.10. Provide an electronic copy of the monthly newsletters and education events
in Subparagraph 3.1.2.7. and Paragraph 11.6.3., to the Office of Consumer
and Family Affairs within the Department's Bureau of Behavioral Health,
and the Mental Health Block Grant State Planner and Mental Health Block

Grant Advisory Council no later than five (5) days prior to the beginning of
the following month.

3.1.2.11. Provide individual peer assistance by assisting adults to:

3.1.2.11.1. Locate, obtain, and maintain mental health services and
supports through referral, consumer education, and self-
empowerment;

3.1.2.11.2. Support individuals who are identifying problems by
assisting them in addressing the issue and/or in resolving
grievances; and

3.1.2.11.3. Promote self-advocacy.

3.1.2.12. Provide employment education by providing members with:

3.1.2.12.1. Information relative to obtaining and maint^^

The Alternalive Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials J
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5
competitive employment.

3.1.2.12.2. Referrals to community mental health center employment
programs.

3.1.2.12.3. Employment-related activities, which may include, but are
not limited to:

3.1.2.12.3.1. Resume writing.

3.1.2.12.3.2. Interviewing techniques.

3.1.2.12.3.3. Assistance with completing employment
applications.

3.1.2.13. Inform members and the general public about peer support and wellness
services available by providing Community Education Presentations about
mental illness and the peer support community on a monthly basis to
potential referral sources, funders, or families of individuals affected by
mental illness.

3.1.2.14. Inform local human service providers and the general public about the
stigma of mental Illness, wellness and recovery and collaborate with other
local human service providers that serve consumers in order to facilitate
referrals and share Information about services and other local resources.

3.1.2.15. Provide training and technical assistance to assist consumers to advocate
for themselves and on their own behalf regarding healthcare such as, but
not limited to:

3.1.2.15.1. Preparation techniques for doctors' appointments.

3.1.2.15.2. How to take notes.

3.1.2.15.3. How to use the physician's desk reference book for
medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.2.16. Invite guests to participate in peer support activities.

3.1.2.17. Provide residential support services, as needed, by providing support and
assistance such as help with staying in their home or apartment, or finding
a place to live.

3.1.2.18. Maintain at least a monthly schedule of peer support and wellness services
and activities, which includes, but Is not limited to:

3.1.2.18.1. Staff development and training.

3.1.2.18.2. Events that Include community-based services.

3.1.2.18.3. Community outreach events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests, as needed. The Contractor shall;

3.2.1. Transport members, participants, guests, in a Contractor owned or leased
vehicle, to and from their homes and/or the Contractor's PSA to participate in
activities that may include, but not limited to:

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

3.2.1.1. Peer support services.

3.2.1.2. Wellness and recovery activities.

3.2.1.3. Annuai conferences.

3.2.1.4. Regionai meetings.

3.2.1.5. Councii meetings.

3.2.2. Ensure all vehicles and drivers used for transportation comply with Federal and
State Department of Transportation and Department of Safety regulations, which
include, but are not limited to:

3.2.2.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative Rule Saf-
C 500, Vehicle Registration Rules.

3.2.2.2. Vehicles must be inspected in accordance with NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 3200, Official Motor Vehicle Inspection Requirements.

3.2.2.3. Drivers must be licensed in accordance with NH Administrative Rule

Saf-C 1000, Driver Licensing.

3.2.3. Require all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor-owned
vehicles sign a State, of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor ̂Vehicle
Driver Records form in order to access individual driver records that indicate

drivers have safe driving records.

3.2.4. Require all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor-owned
vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Driving course offered
through a State of New Hampshire-approved agency.

3.3. The Contractor shall acknowledge funding from the Department to support
transportation costs:

3.3.1. Is not used for activities other than peer support related activities defined in this
Agreement.

3.3.2. May be used on an 'as needed' basis to pay for bus rides that are necessary to
transport individuals to peer support services provided by the Contractor.

3.4. Warmline Services

3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide warmline services that offer on-call telephone peer
support services to members, participants, and others. The Contractor shall
ensure warmline services:

3.4.1.1. Are provided to any individual with the ability to receive calls and
make calls statewide and who lives or works in the State of New

Hampshire.

3.4.1.2. Are provided during the hours the PSA is closed.

3.4.1.3. Assist individuals with addressing a current crisis related to their
mental health.

3.4.1.4. Include referrals to appropriate treatment and other resources
available in the consumer's service area.

The Alternalive Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5
3.4.1.5. Are provided by staff who are trained in providing warmline,services.

3.4.1.6. May include outreach cails described in Subparagraph 3.1.2.6.

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local community mental health center, unless otherwise pre-approved by the
Department.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services at a physical location and/or building
that is in compliance with Exhibit C, Section 15. and with the Life Safety requirements,
which include, but are not limited to, ensuring the building:

4.2.1. Is in compliance with local health, building and fire safety codes.

4.2.2. Is maintained in good repair and free of hazards, and includes, but is not limited
to:

4.2.2.1. A minimum of one {1) indoor bathroom that includes a sink and toilet.

4.2.2.2. A minimum of one (1) telephone for incoming and outgoing calls.

4.2.2.3. A functioning septic or other sewage disposal system.

4.2.2.4. A source of potable water for drinking and food preparation as
follows:

4.2.2.4.1. If drinking water is supplied by a non-public water
system, the Contractor shall ensure the water is tested
and found to be in accordance with NH Administrative

Rules Env-Ws 300, Drinking Water Rules, Part 15,
Maximum Contaminant Levels and Maximurn

Contaminant Level Goal for Regulated Organics and
Part 316, Regulated Secondary Maximum
Contaminant Levels initially and every five (5) years
thereafter.

4.2.2.4.2. If the water is not approved for drinking, the Contractor
shall implement an alternative rriethod for providing
safe drinking water.

5. Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a Peer Support Agency (PSA)

5.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services to individuals defined In Subsection
1.4. who have a desire to work on wellness issues, and who have a desire to.partlcipate
in services.

5.2. The Contractor shall request consumers complete a membership application to join and,
support the activities and mission of the PSA.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the membership application includes, but is not limited to:

5.3.1. The minimum engagement policy.

5.3.2. Suspension of membership policy.

5.3.3. Membership rules.
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5.3.4. Attestation that the consumer supports the mission of the PSA.

5.4. The Contractor shaii provide services to both members and non-members.

6. Staffing Requirements for a PSA

6.1. The Contractors shaii employ an Executive Director who:

6.1.1. Is appointed by the Board of Directors.

6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the Board of Directors.

6.1.3. Has, at a minimum, the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One (1) year of supervisory or management experience: and

6.1.3.1.1. An associate's degree or higher administration, business
management, education, health, or human services; or

6.1.3.1.2. Additional years of experience in the peer support field
that can be substituted for one (1) year of academic
experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the Board of Directors to ensure peer support and
wellness services and activities are provided in accordance with:

6.1.4.1. The performance expectations approved by the Board.

6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules.

6.1.4.3. The Contract terms and conditions.

6.1.4.4. The Quality improvement reviews.

6.2. The Contractor shall screen each staff member for tuberculosis prior to employment.

6.3. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund, or transfer staff positions among programs
without prior written permission from the Department.

6.4. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan for Department approval no
later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date, which includes but Is not
limited to:

6.4.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel
or other personnel during the period of this Agreement.

6.4.2. The description of how additional staff resources shall be allocated to support
this Agreement in the event of Inability to meet any performance standard.

6.4.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements.

6.4.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely manner,
staff replacements/additions with comparable experience.

6.5. The Contractor shall submit an emergency staffing plan within thirty (30) days of the
contract effective date if the contract that includes, but not limited to:

6.5.1. Inclement weather notifications for programming and transportation services.

6.5.2. Emergency evacuation plans for the Agency.
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6.6. Prior to making an offer of employment or for volunteer work, the Contractor shall, after

obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or persons for whom
information is being sought:

6.6.1. Obtain at least two (2) references for the person;

6.6.2. Submit the person's name for review against the bureau of elderly and adult
services (BEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-F:49;

6.6.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no history of:

6.6.3.1. Felony conviction; or

6.6.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

6.6.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

6.6.3.2.2. Violence;

6.6.3.2.3. Exploitation;

6.6.3.2.4. Child pornography;

6.6.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

6.6.3.2.6. Theft;

6.6.3.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol; or

6.6.3.2.8. Any other conduct that represents evidence of behavior
that could endanger the well-being of a consumer; and

6.6.4. Complete a motor vehicles record check to ensure that the person has a valid
driver's license if the person will be transporting consumers.

6.7. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the Department, it shall not
hire any individual or approve any individual to act as a volunteer if:

6.7.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

6.7.2. The Individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

6.7.3. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors specified in Subparagraph
6.6.3.2.

7. Staff Training and Development

7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document all staff and volunteers have appropriate
training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities of their
respective positions. The Contractor shall ensure:

7.1.1. All personnel and training records are current and available to the Department,
as requested.

7.1.2. All staff training shall be in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 400, Community Mental Health, Part 402, Peer Support, Section 402.05,
Staff Training, Staff Development and Orientation.

7.2. The Contractor shall maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed trainings
and certifications.
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7.3. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval thirty (30) days prior to the training

date, for all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered
by the Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as, but not limited to:

7.3.1. Peer Support.

7.3.2. Warmline.

7.3.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups.

7.3.4. Sexual Harassment.

7.3.5. Member Rights.

7.4. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its required
consultations to meet state certification.

7.5. The Contractor shall provide Wellness, Recovery, and Planning training to staff during
the years in which Intentional Peer Support is not provided.

7.6. The Contractor shall ensure administrative staff, including the Executive Director,
participate in trainings on:

7.6.1. Staff Development.

7.6.2. Supervision.

7.6.3. Performance Appraisals.

7.6.4. Employment Practices.

7.6.5. Harassment.

7.6.6. Program Development.

7.6.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process.

7.6.8. Financial Management.

7.7. The Contractor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a PSA in the region.

7.8. The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department no later than thirty (30)
days prior to the training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either
the Departrrient or the Contractor.

7.9. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Support Agencies to offer combined
trainings to facilitate efficient use of training funds and to increase the scope of trainings
offered.

7.10. The Contractor shall purge all data in accordance with the instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two (2) year period.

8. Composition and Responsibilities of a PSA

8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a PSA by:

B.1.1. Being incorporated with the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-prgjit
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agency.

8.1.2. Having a plan for govemance that requires a Board of Directors who:

8.1.2.1. Are responsible for the management and control of the property and
affairs of the corporation.

8.1.2.2. Have the powers usually vested in the Board of Directors of a non-
for-profit corporation.

8.1.2.3. Are comprised of a minimum of nine (9) individuals with at least 51%
of the individuals who self-identify as consurriers.

8.1.2.4. Have membership where less than 20% of the Board members are
related by blood, marriage, or cohabitation to other Board members.

8.1.2.5. Establish and maintain the bylaws that include, but are not limited to:

8.1.2.5.1. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of Directors.

8.1.2.5.2. Term limits for the Board of Directors officers ensuring .
not more than 20% of the Board members serve for

more than six (6) consecutive years.

8.1.2.5.3. A nominating process that actively recruits diverse
individuals whose skills and life experiences serve the
needs of the agency.

8.1.2.5.4. A procedure by which inactive PSA members are
removed from the PSA Board.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit a corrective action plan to the Department within five (5)
days when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required minimum of nine
(9) members.

8.3. The Contractor shall submit an updated list of current Board of Directors members and
a corrective action plan with timefranr»es to comply with the required number of
members when membership falls below the minimum required number of five (5).
members to the Department and NH Department of Justice, Division of Charitable
Trusts.

8.4. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the

members and officers of the Board of Directors, which includes written descriptions
outlining the duties of the members and officers of the Board of Directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have annual trainings related to the members and officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

8.6. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval of agency financial policies and procedures that includes, but not be
limited to, the following:

8.6.1. Cash Management including, but not limited to:

8.6.1.1. Cash receipts.

8.6.1.2. Cash disbursements.
y- OS
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8.6.1.3. Petty cash.

8.6.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets.

8.6.3. Internal Control Procedures.

8.6.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

8.7. The Contractor shall have open attendance to PSA members during a portion of a
Board meeting.

8.8. The Contractor shall publish the times and locations of Board of Directors meetings in
an effort to encourage PSA member attendance.

8.9. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall maintain written records that are available to

the Department upon request, which include, but are not limited to;

8.9.1. Board of Directors meeting minutes that include, but are not limited to:
K

8.9.1.1. Topics discussed.

8.9.1.2. Votes and actions taken.

8.9.1.3. A monthly review of the agency's financial status.

8.9.2. Current Board of Directors list that includes, but is not limited to:

8.9.2.1. Member name.

8.9.2.2. Member address.

8.9.2.3. Member phone number. ,

8.9.2.4. Member e-mail address.

8.9.2.5. Board office held.

8.9.2.6. Date joined the Board.

8.9.2.7. Member Board expiration date.

8.9.3. Documentation of the process and results of annual Board of Directors
elections.

8.9.4. Policy manuals that Include, but are not limited to policies for:

8.9.4.1. Human Resources.

8.9.4.2. Staff Development.

8.9.4.3. Financial Responsibilities.

8.9.4.4. Protection for member and participant rights.

8.10. The Contractor shall pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer support
services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may not pay for
under this Agreement.

9. Participation In Statewide/Regional Meetings

9.1. The Contractor shall support the recruitment-and training of individuals for serving on
local, regional and state mental health policy, planning and advisory initiatives. '
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9.2. The Contractor shall ensure the participation of individuals other than the Contractor's

employees who provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training
events.

9.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Executive Director, or designee, attends the
Department's monthly Peer Support Directors meeting for the purpose exchanging
information as well as supporting and strengthening the statewide Peer Support
system.

9.4. The Contractor shall meet, a minimum of two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, which may include,
but are not limited to:

9.4.1. Mental health centers.

9.4.2. Area homeless shelters.

9.4.3. Community action programs.

9.4.4. Housing agencies.

9.5. The Contractor shall submit documentation to the Department that demonstrates
attendance at the meetings in Section 9.

10. Grievance and Appeals

10.1. The Contractor shall submit a grievance and appeals process to the Department for
approval. The Contractor shall ensure the grievance and appeals process includes,
but is not limited to:

10.1.1. How to receive complaints orally, or in writing, ensuring information collected
includes, but is not limited to:

10.1.1.1. Consumer name.

10.1.1.2. Date of written grievance. ^

10.1.1.3. Nature and subject of the grievance.

10.1.1.4. A method to submit an anonymous complaint.

10.1.2. A policy relative to assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process
including, but not limited to, how to file a complaint.

10.1.3. A method to track complaints.

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participant's rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants.

10.1.5. An immediate review of the complaint and investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her designee.

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance for which a formal investigation
is requested.

10.1.7. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal any written decision
rendered by the Board of Directors.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Board of Directors issues a written decision to t{^e
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member or participant filing a grievance upon completing an investigation and within
twenty (20) business days setting forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.3. The Contractor shall submit a copy of the written decision in Subsection 10.2. of the
complaint to the Department within ten (10) days from the written decision.

11. Reporting Requirements

11.1. The Contractor shall submit a report that lists the names of the trained individuals In
accordance with Section 7. Staff Training and Development, utilizing reporting forms
provided by the Department.

11.2. The Contractor shall provide the prior month's interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and
Loss Statements to the Department no later than the 30'^ of the month, ensuring the
report includes, but is not limited to:

11.2.1. The Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available

to cover the cost of current liabilities. The Contractor shall:

11.2.1.1. Utilize the following formula: Total current assets divided by total
current liabilities.

11.2.1.2. Maintain a minimumcurrent ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance allowed.

11.2.2. Accounts Payable that measure the Contractor's timeliness in paying invoices,
ensuring no outstanding invoices greater than sixty (60) days.

11.2.3. Budget Management that compares budgets to actual revenues and expenses
to determine the percentage of the Contractors budget executed year-to-date.

11.2.4. Ensure revenues are equal to or greater than the year-to-date calculation while
ensuring expenses are equal to or less than the year-to-date calculation.

11.3. The Contractor shall prepare an Annual Report presentation for the benefit of the
Mental Health Block Grant Advisory Council.

11.4. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly written report to the Department, on a form
supplied by the Department, no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following
the end of each quarter that includes, but is not limited to:

11.4.1. Community outreach activities as outlined in Section 12. Deliverables.

11.4.2. Compilation of program evaluation and surveys submitted In the past quarter.

11.4.3. Peer support service deliverables as identified on templates provided by the
Department.

11.4.4. Statistical data including, but not limited to:

11.4.4.1. The total number of unduplicated participants served on a daily
basis.

11.4.4.2. The total number of current members, defined as only those
members who have been served within the past year.

11.4.4.3. Program utilization totals by percentage.

11.4.4.4. Number of telephone peer support contacts.
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11.4.4.5. Number and description of outreach activities.

11.4.4.6. Number and description of educational events provided:

11.4.4.6.1. On-site; and

11.4.4.6.2. In the community.

11.4.5. Board of Directors meeting minutes for the previous quarter that include, but are
not be limited to:

11.4.5.1. Executive Director's report.

11.4.5.2. Board of Directors roster.

11.5. The Contractor shall provide a report for Department approval by July 31 of each State
Fiscal Year, which outlines:

11.5.1. Specific steps the Contractor has taken to increase membership In the previous
State Fiscal Year.

11.5.2. A plan for how the Contractor shall increase the unduplicated numbers served
in the above activities by ten (10) percent of the total served in the previous
year, for each subsequent State Fiscal Year.

11.5.3. Monthly in-house schedules and newsletters.

11.5.4. Quarterly revenue and expenses by cost, category and locations.

11.5.5. Quarterly Capital Expenditure Reports.

11.5.6. Quarterly Auditor's Reports: The prior three (3) months of monthly interim
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements including separate statements
for related parties that are certified by an officer of the reporting entity to
measure the agency's fiscal integrity.

12. Deliverables

12.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of in-house services at
each Center each week, of which five (5) hours may be conducted in the Center's
community or region, as approved by the Department. The Contractor shall provide
services that include, but are not limited to:

12.1.1. New topics introduced every month.

12.1.2. A minimum of five (5) separate discussion groups per week that address
emotional wellbeing topics, which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.2.1. IPS.

12.1.2.2. WRAP.

12.1.2.3. WHAM.

12.1.2.4. Setting boundaries.

12.1.2.5. Positive thinking.

12.1.2.6. Wellness.
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12.1.2.7. Stress management.

12.1.2.8. Addressing trauma.

12.1.2.9. Reduction of negative or intrusive thoughts.

12.1.2.10. Management of emotional states including, but not limited to;

12.1.2.10.1.Anger.

12.1.2.10.2. Depression.

12.1.2.10.3.Anxiety.

12.1.2.10.4.Mania

12.1.3. A minimum of five (5) discussion or practice groups per week that address
physical wellbeing topics which may Include, but are not limited to:

12.1.3.1. Smoking cessation.

12.1.3.2. Weight loss.

12.1.3.3. Nutrition and Cooking.

12.1.3.4. Physical exercise.

12.1.3.5. Mindfulness activities including, but not limited to:

12.1.3.5.1. Yoga.

12.1.3.5.2. Meditation.

12.1.3.5.3. Journaling.

12.1.4. A minimum of four (4) activity groups per week that that provide positive skill-
building activities which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.4.1. Arts and crafts.

12.1.4.2. Music expression.

12.1.4.3. Creative writing.

12.1.4.4. Cooking.

12.1.4.5. Sewing.

12.1.4.6. Gardening.

12.1.4.7. Movies.

12.1.5. A minimum of one (1) group per week based on topics relevant to fostering
independence which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.5.1. Online blogs or articles that relate to mental health.

12.1.5.2. Obtaining employment.

12.1.5.3. Budgeting.

12.1.5.4. Decision-making.

12.1.5.5. Self-advocacy.
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12.2. The Contractor shall provide community-based services including, but not limited to a

minimum of one (1) trip into the community per month for activities that may include,
but are not limited to;

12.2.1. Visiting a natural setting.

12.2.2. Volunteering opportunities.

12.2.3. Visiting a museum.

12.2.4. Visiting a local historical site.

12.2.5. Visiting local farms or gardens.

12.3. The Contractor shall provide community outreach that includes, but is not limited to:

12.3.1. Providing monthly community education presentations about mental illness and
the peer support community to potential referral sources, funders, or families of
individuals affected by mental illness, including, but not limited to:

12.3.1.1. Local psychiatric hospitals.

12.3.1.2. Local mental health clinics.

12.3.1.3. Local community events.

12.3.2. Providing monthly educational events and presentations to members,
participants, or other individuals seeking support and information relating to the
issues and concerns of consumers of mental health services which includes, but
is not limited to educational topics to be covered over the course of the year,
which may include, but are not limited to:

12.3.2.1. Rights protection.

12.3.2.2. Peer Advocacy.

12.3.2.3. Recovery.

12.3.2.4. Employment.

12.3.2.5. Wellness Management.

12.3.2.6. Community Resources.

13. Quality Improvement

13.1. The Contractor shall participate in quality program reviews and site visits on a schedule
provided by the Department. All contract deliverables, programs, and activities shall be
subject to review during this time. These reviews shall result in a report and potential
corrective action.

13.2. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance reviews as follows:

13.2.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract
compliance requirements as identified in 0MB Circular A-133.

13.2.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that shall include, but is not
limited to:

13.2.2.1. Data.
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13.2.2.2. Financial records.

13.2.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work sites, locations, and work
spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work sites, locations, and work

spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff.

13.3. The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities including, but not limited to;

13.3.1. Participating in bi-annual quality improvement review as in Subsection 13.1.

13.3.2. Participating in ongoing monitoring and reporting based on the bi-annual review
and corrective action plan submitted in conjunction with the Department and
Contractor. '

13.3.3. Conducting member satisfaction surveys provided by and as instructed the
Department.

13.3.4. Reviewing personnel files for completeness.

13.3.5. Reviewing the complaint process.

13.4. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty (30)
days of notification of noncompliance with contract activities.

13.5. The Contractor shall provide all requested audits to the Department no later than ten
(10) days after receiving the request from the Department.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
of the General Provisions of this Agreement, Form P-37. for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by;

2.1. 100% General Funds.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of
Services in compliance with funding requirements in Section 2., above.

4. The Contractor shall submit one (1) invoice to the Department upon Govemor and Council
approval of this Agreement requesting an advance payment in an amount not to exceed
$35,696 for peer support services as described in Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of
Services. The Contractor shall ensure:

4.1. The invoice clearly states a request for the advance payment, to be provided at the start
of each State Fiscal Year (SFY), in the amount of $35,696, referenced in Exhibit A -
Amendment #4, Scope of Services.

4.2. The invoice includes how funds will be utilized toward peer support services in
accordance with Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services, Exhibit B-5 Amendment
#3 and Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3.

4.3. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for actual expenditures incurred in
accordance with Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services, Exhibit B-5 Amendment
#3 and Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3.

4.4. The Department shall recoup the advance payment back by deducting 1/3^*^ of the
advanced amount from the December 2020, January 2021, and February 2021 invoices,
unless otherwise agreed upon by the Department.

5. Subsequent to the action in Section 4., the Department shall make monthly payments to the
Contractor based upon cost reimbursement, as submitted by the Contractor to maintain
services and as approved by the Department, of the Department approved budget amounts
in Exhibit B-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget.

5.1. In no event shall the total of the initial payment in Section 4. and monthly payments in
Section 5. exceed the budget amounts set forth in Section 5.

5.2. The Department will adjust monthly payments for expenditures set forth in Section 10.,
below and amounts paid to initiate services in Section 4., above.

6. Payment for services provided in Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services shall be made
as follows:

6.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied forms, by the tenth (10th)
working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month.

The Alternalive Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #5

6.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor on actual expenditures, within thirty (30)
days of receipt of each Department-approved invoice for Contractor services provided
pursuant to this Agreement.

6.3. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Bureau of Mental Health

Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

7. The Contractor shall provide its Revenue and Expense Budget on Budget Form A supplied
by the Department, within twenty (20) calendar days of the contract effective date and then
twenty (20) days from the beginning of each fiscal year thereafter.

8. The Contractor shall provide quarterly Revenue and Expense Reports on Budget Form A,
within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each fiscal quarter, defined as Jujy 1 to
September 30, October 1 to December 31, January 1 to March 31, and April 1 to June 30.

9. The Contractor shall provide supporting documentation, when required by the Department, to
support evidence of actual expenditures, in accordance with the Department approved
budgets in Section 5.

10. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved budgets in Section 5. shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

11. When the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the Department for the duration of the contract period.

12. Funding may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

13. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the said services have
not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

14. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to the budget amounts identified in Section 5., to adjust amounts within
the budgets, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

15. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds not used, in whole or in part,
for the purposes stated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one hundred and twenty
(120) days of the Completion Date.

16. Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of each State Fiscal Year to submit to
the Department final invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior invoice will need
to be accompanied by supporting documentation.

17. Property Standards

17.1. Insurance coverage.

The Allernative Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Departmentof Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #5

17.1.1. The Contractor shall, at a minimum, provide the equivalent insurance coverage
for real property and equipment acquired or improved with State funds as
provided to property owned by the Contractor.

17.2. Real property.

17.2.1. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this section, title to real
property acquired or improved in whole or in part with State funds will vest upon
acquisition in the Contractor.

17.2.2. Except as otherwise provided by State statutes or in this Agreement, real
property will be used for the originally authorized purpose as long as needed for

. that purpose, during which time the Contractor must not dispose of or encumber
its title or other interests without State approval.

17.2.3. When real property is no longer needed for the originally authorized purpose,
the Contractor must obtain disposition instructions from the State. The^

'  instructions must provide for one of the following alternatives:

17.2.3.1. Retain title after compensating the State. The amount paid to the
State will be, computed by applying the State's percentage of
participation in the cost of the original purchase (and costs of any
improvements) to the fair market value of the property. However, in
those situations where the Contractor is disposing of real property
acquired or improved vyith State funds and acquiring replacement real
property prior to expiration of this Agreement and any amendment
thereof, the net proceeds from the disposition may be used as an
offset to the cost of the replacement property.

17.2.3.2. Sell the property and compensate the State. The amount due to the
State will be calculated by applying the State's percentage of
participation in the cost of the original purchase (and cost of any
improvements) to the proceeds of the sale after deduction of any
actual and reasonable selling and fixing-up expenses. If the State
appropriation funding this Agreement or any amendment thereof has
not been closed out,.the net proceeds from sale may be offset against
the original cost of the property. When the Contractor is directed to
sell property; sales procedures must be followed that provide for
competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest possible
return.

17.2.3.3. Transfer title to a third party designated/approved by the State. The
Contractor is entitled to be paid an amount calculated by applying the
State's percentage of participation in the purchase of the real property
(and cost of any improvements) to the current fair market value of the
property.

17.3. Equipment.

17.3.1. Equipment means tangible personal property (including information technology
systems) purchased in whole or in part with State funds and that has a useful

'  life of more than one (1) year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equ^g or
exceeds $5,000.

The Allernative Life Cenler Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #5
17.3.2. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this section, title to

equipment acquired with State funds will vest upon acquisition in the Contractor
subject to the following conditions:

17.3.2.1. Use the equipment for the authorized purposes of the project during
the period of performance, or until the property is no longer needed
for the purposes of the project.

17.3.2.2. Not encumber the property without approval of the State.

17.3.2.3. Use and dispose of the property in accordance with Paragraph
18.2.2., Paragraph 18.2.1. and Paragraph 18.3.5.

17.3.3. Use.

17.3.3.1. Equipment must be used by the Contractor in the program or project
for which it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the
project or program continues to be supported by State funds, and the
Contractor must not encumber the property without prior approval of
the State. When no longer needed for the original program or project,
the equipment may be used in other activities funded by the State.

17.3.3.2. During the time that equipment is used on the project or program for
which it was acquired, the Contractor must also make equipment
available for use on other projects or programs currently or previously
supported by the State, provided that such use will not interfere with
the work on the projects or program for which it was originally
acquired. First preference for other use must be given to other
programs or projects supported by the State that financed the
equipment. Use for non-State-funded programs or projects is also
permissible with approval from the State.

17.3.3.3. When acquiring replacement equipment, the Contractor may use the
equipment to be replaced as a trade-in or sell the property and use
the proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement property.

17.3.4. Management requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (including
replacement equipment), whether acquired In whole or in part with State funding,
until disposition takes place will, as a minimum, meet the following
requirements:

17.3.4.1. Property records must be maintained that include a description of the
property, a serial number or other identification number, the source
of funding for the property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and
cost of the property, percentage of State participation in the project
costs for the Agreement under which the property was acquired, the
location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the
property.

17.3.4.2. A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results
reconciled with the property records at least once every two (2) years.

The Allernative Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

RFP-2017.BBH-02-PEERS-06-05 Page 4 of 5 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: F05170FC-0607-42D1-88AA-3ADB1AAA6666

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #5
17.3;4.3. A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards

to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage,
or theft must be investigated.

17.3.4.4. Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the
property in good condition.

17.3.4.5. If the Contractor is authorized or required to sell the property, proper
sales procedures must be established to ensure the highest possible
return.

17.3.5. Disposition. When original or replacement equipment acquired with State funds
is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities
currently or previously supported by the State, except as otherwise provided by
State statutes or in this Agreement, the Contractor must request disposition;
instructions from the State. Disposition of the equipment will be made as follows;

17.3.5.1. Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value of $5,000 '
or less may be retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further
obligation to the State.

17.3.5.2. Items of equipment with a current per-unit fair-market value in excess .
of $5,000 may be retained by the Contractor or sold. The State is
entitled to an amount calculated by multiplying the current market
value or proceeds from sale by the State's percentage of participation
in the cost of the original purchase. If the equipment is sold, the State
may permit the Contractor to deduct and retain from the State's share
$500 or ten (10) percent of the proceeds, whichever is less, for its '
selling and handling expenses.

I

17.3.5.3. The Contractor may transfer title to the property to an eligible third
party provided that, in such cases, the Contractor must be entitled to
compensation for its attributable percentage of the current fair market'
value of the property.

17.3.5.4. In cases where the Contractor fails to take appropriate disposition '
actions, the State may direct the Contractor to take disposition actions.

18. Property Trust Relationship and Liens

18.1. Real property, equipment, and intangible property, that are acquired or improved with
State funds must be held in trust by the Contractor as trustee for the beneficiaries of
the project or program under which the property was acquired or Improved. The State
may require the Contractor to record liens or other appropriate^notices of record to
indicate that personal or real property has been acquired or improved with State funds
and that use and disposition conditions apply to the property.

The Allernative Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Conlner. Socfctar>* of Slate ijflhc Slate of New l lam{»hirc. do hereby certify lhaiTHE ALTERNATIVE LIFE

center is a New Hampshire NonpniiHt Girpuraiion registered to tmosaa business in New Hampshire on Joniiar)- 15.1999. 1

further certify that all fees and dccumcnts required by the Secrctao' oT State's ofncc hare been received and is In good ctandios as

far (»this office is concerned.

nusiDCM ID: 307757

CcrtificatuNottihen 00045l$7i3

Op

a;

5?
S
%

%

<1

INTF-STIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cdiisc to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this nth day of November A.D. 2019.

William M. Gurdna

Sccreiar)' of Sutic
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I  ̂OU-thl . hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot ̂  contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected cierkiia^qSar^fficer of _ ^ k.C, u-e L lie n-ier-J
(Corporation/LLC Naitie) ^

2. The following is a Xj/liQ copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ■// 20 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

/  (Date)
VOTED: That . LM1Q.P, Af^ J fJoM pf (may list more than one person)

(Name and Title of Contract Sigrlatory)

is duly authorized oh behalf of, to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corix>ration/ LLC)

of New" Harhpshire and any of its agericies or departrhents and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instalments, and,any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(s) indicated and that "they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitatipns are expressly stat^ herein.

Dated: Jd/j^k.0^O
f  / Signature of Elected Officer

Name:

Rev. 03/24/20
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/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATC (MM/ODrrrYY>

10/19/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pDlicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER >

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAM™^^ Faifley Kenneally
(603)293-2791 ^ (603)293-7188

ADCWSS' f®'it®y®®slnsurance.net

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A
Philadelphia Insurance Co

INSURED

Alternative Life Center

c/o Debit One

41 Washington Street

Conway , NH 03818

INSURER B
Wesco Insurance Co 25011

INSUFIER C
Mount Vemon

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2020 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

AODUISUaRI POUCYEFF

IN8D WVD POUCY NUMBER (MM/00/YYYY>TYPE OF INSURANCE
POUCY EXP
IMM/OiVYYYYl UMITS

INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMA(5E TO REWTBB
PREMISES (E« occufrencal

PHPK2053469

MED EXP (Any on« p«f»onl

10/25/2020 10/25/2021
PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENLAGGREQATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

.  I k kimi I r wo •

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Abuse and Molestation

1,000,000

100,000.

5,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

50.000

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
fE« «cc»d»nn

BODILY INJURY (Pef p«f«on) 1,000,000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2053473 10/25/2020 10/25/2021 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccMenn

Uninsured motorist 81 1,000.000

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIt^

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yea, daacrtbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beldw

OTH-
_ER

WWC 3491913 10/20/2020 10/20/2021
E.L EACH ACCIDENT

100.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
100.000

E.L, DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
500.000

Directors and Officers
Per claim $1,000,000

NDO2552060B 10/25/2020 10/25/2021

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional RemarW Schedule, may be atUched If more apace la required)

locations:

6 Main Street. Conway, NH
27 Lombard Street. Colebrook. NH

567 Main Street, Berlin. NH
267 Main Street. Littleton, NH

Employee Dishonesty Coverage $37,500

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

NH DHHS DBH

129 Pleasant Street

Concord

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

NH 03301

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

■  ©1988-2015ACORDCORPORATION. Aiirightsreserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



DocuSign Envelope ID: F05170FC-0607-42D1-88AA-3ADB1AAA6666 .

qIc

Alternative Life Center

"Mission Statement"

"Our Mission is to provide a sanctuary where
peopie, eighteen years and oider, iearn to create a
persona) vision ieading their own recovery. The

journey towards recovery occurs in a
compassionate atmosphere through education,
peer support^ sharing of common experiences
and utiiizing individuai as weli as community

resources."

wwvv.alcceniers.OfB atcceniers^gmail.com



DocuSign Envelope ID: F05170FC-0607-42D1-88AA-3AOB1AAA6666

Financial Statements

THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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To the Board of Directors of
The Alternative Life Center

Conway, New Hampshire

Leone, ^
McDonnell
& Roberts

PKOFKS.SIONAI, ASSOCIATION

CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS

WOLFEBORO • NORTH CONWAY
DOVER • CONCORD

STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Alternative Life Center (a nonprofit
corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related
statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Alternative Life Center as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for ttie purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The Schedule of Functional Revenue, Support and Expenses and the Schedule of Bureau
of Mental Health Services (BMHS) Refundable Advance on pages 12 and 13 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The Information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the The Alternative Life Center's 2018 financial statements, and our
report dated October 3, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

November?, 2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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THE ALTERMATIVE LIFE CFWTFR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

ASSETS

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $  23.240 $  193 $  23.433 $  195,270
Cash and cash equivalents • member funds 10,584 . 10.584 10,531
Accounts receivable 11,071 39,731 50,802 ,  7,787
Prepaid expenses 2,990 - 2,990 6,859

Total current assets 47,885 39,924 .  87,809 220,447

PROPERTY

Vehicles 90.787 . 90,787 90,787
Equipment 31,811 . 31,811 31,811
Leasehold improvements 4,500 - 4,500 4,500

Total 127,098 127,098 127,098
Less: accumulated depreciation (110,355) - (110,355) (93,610)

Property, net 16,743 16,743 33,488

Total assets $  64,628 $  39,924 $  104,552 S  253,935

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Refundable advances

Refundable advances - Crisis Respite

3,654 $

12,856

39.924

3,654

12,856

39,924

5,445

11,270

182,103

13,366

Total current liabilities 16,510 39,924 56,434 212,184

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 48,118 48,118 41,751

Total net assets 48,118 48,118 41.751

Total liabilities and net assets S  64,628 $ 39,924 $  104,552 $ 253,935

See Notes to Financial Statements

3
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTFR

. STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30.2018

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

. Bureau of Mental Health Services support and revenue:
Grants

Interest

$  552,169 S

52

$  552,169

52

$  473,521

107

Total Bureau of Mental Health Services

support and revenue 552,221 552,221 473,628

Other support and revenue;
Peer support revenue
Fundraising and donations

24,348

2,335

24,348

2,335
10,036

5,777

Total other support and revenue 26,683 26,683 15,813

Total support and revenue 578,904 578,904 489,441

EXPENSES

Program sen/ices
Management and general

488,459

84,078

488,459

84,078
421,645

79.465

Total expenses 572,537 572,537 501,110

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 6,367 6,367 (11,669)

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 41,751 41,751 53,420

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  48,118 $ $  48,118 $  41,751

See Notes to Financial Statements

4
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ̂
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  6,367 $ $  6,367 $  (11,669)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 16,745 - 16,745 16,745
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (8,115) (34,900) (43,015) (5,747)
Prepaid expenses 3,869 - 3,869 1,355

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (1.791) - (1,791) 1,960

Accrued payroll and related taxes 1,586 - 1,586 1,648
Refundable advances - (142,179) (142,179) 2,052
Refundable advances - Crisis Respite - (13,366) (13,366) 5,379

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18,661 (190,445) (171,784) 11,723

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18,661 (190,445) (171,784) 11,723

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,163 190,638 205.801 194,078

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.

END OF YEAR $  33,824 $  193 $  34,017 $ 205,801

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

Management
Program and 2019 2018

Services General Total Total

Salaries and wages $  274,410 $  41,572 $  315,982 . $ 262.313
Payroll taxes 21,987 3,195 25,182 21,421
Ernployee benefits 16,585 13,306 29,891 21,178
Rent 48,907 1,661 50,568 49,663
Education and in service training 30,936 - 30,936 33,697
Professional fees 10,105 8,785 18,890 15,397
Travel - staff transportation 21,482 . 21,482 25,070
Depreciation 8,372 8,373 16,745 16,745
Insurance 8,082 4,814 12,896 11,129
Telephone and internet 10,244 387 10,631 10,742
Transportation - client services 6,485 . 6,485 6,318
Utilities 7,858 . 7,858 7,483
Office supplies and advertising 1,986 1,985 3,971 4.625
Consumable supplies and food 2,765 - 2,765 3,790
Building and household supplies 2,059 2,059 2,418
Repairs and maintenance 3,061 3,061 3,454
Postage 9,328 - 9,328 551
Membership expenses 2,492 2,492 2.421
Other 1,315 - 1,315 2,695

Total functional expenses $  488.459 $  84,078 $  572,537 $  501,110

See Notes to Financial Statements

6
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

.The Alternative Life Center (the Center) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
providing four sanctuaries where people coping with or recovering from symptoms of
mental illness or emotional disorders learn to create a personal vision leading to their
own recovery in a compassionate atmosphere through education, peer support, sharing
of common experiences and utilizing individual as well as community resources in
Conway, Berlin, Colebrook, Littleton and Wolfeboro, New Hampshire and surrounding
communities.

Basis of Accountina

The financial statements of the Center have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Center have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Center to report
information regarding Its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Center. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Center's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed
by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of the Center or by passage of time.
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.
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Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from
net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the

statement of activities.

The Center only had net assets without donor restrictions for the year ended
June 30,2019.

)

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such Information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the Center's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the
summarized information was derived. ,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Center classifies certificates of deposit as cash equivalents. The Center maintains
cash accounts for funds raised by members' to be used for members* benefit.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of grants and program service fees receivable. At June 30,
.2019, accounts receivable were considered fully collectable, and therefore, no
provisions for bad debts have been made in these financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year financial
statements.

Advertising

The Center expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Propertv and Depreciation

Property is stated at cost or fair value at date of donation. Material assets with a useful
life in excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation Is computed using straight-iine
methods over the estimated lives of the related assets as follows:

Vehicles 5 years
Equipment 5 - 7 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments
are capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts,
along with the related depreciation allowances, and any gain or loss is recognized.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instmrnents, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value
is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC
820-10, the Center may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and
cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values.

The carrying amount of cash, other assets and current liabilities, approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Income Taxes

The Center is a nonprofit corporation exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. The Intemal Revenue Service has determined the Center to
be other than a private foundation.

The Center follows FASB ASC Topic No. 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which requires the Center to report uncertain tax positions, related interest and
penalties, and to adjust its assets and liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits and
accrued interest and penalties accordingly. At June 30. 2019, the Center determined it
had no tax positions that did not meet the "more likely than not" standard of being
sustained by tax authorities.

The Center's open audit periods are 2015 through 2018. The Center does not expect
any tax positions to change significantly within the next twelve months.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs-have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited. Such allocations have been determined by management
on an equitable basis. Salaries and wages have been allocated based on time and
effort. All other expenses are allocated based on direct assignment. .

Donations

Donated materials and equipment are reflected as contributions in the accompanying
financial statements at their estimated values at date of receipt. No amounts have been
reflected in the statements for donated services, as no objective basis is available to
measure the value of such services: however, a number of volunteers have donated
time to the Center's program services. The Board of Directors serves in a volunteer
capacity.
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Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence _about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the estimates
inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent
events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the
statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through November 7, 2019, the date the June 30. 2019
financial statements were available for issuance.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) -
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information
about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of
information provided about expenses and investment return. The Center has adjusted
the presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented.

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABITY

The following represents the Center's financial assets as of June 30, 2019:

Financial assets at year-end:
2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,017
Accounts receivable 50.802

Total financial assets S 84.819

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Refundable advances available to spend
only with approval from the State $ 39.924

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 44.895

The Center's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of operating
expenses (approximately $46,000).

10
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NOTE 3 REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

The Center records grant revenue as a refundable advance until it Is expended for the
purpose of the grant, at which time it is recognized as revenue. The balance in
refundable advance liabilities at June 30, 2019, represents amounts received from the
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Mental Health
Services (BMHS) that will be expended in future fiscal years in accordance with the
grant agreement and the approval of BMHS. The Schedule of Bureau of Mental Health
Services (BMHS) Refundable Advances reconciles the refundable advance liabilities.

NOTE 4 FUNDRAISING REVENUE

The Center recorded fundraising activities revenue for proceeds from yard-sale type
fundraising events during the year ended June 30, 2019. The Center conducts these
activities to raise funds for specific client activities or non-budgeted Center expenses.
These funds are kept in separate accounts by the Center, and related expenses are
recorded as either fundraising or client expenses. The net Income from these activities
is hot related to the refundable advance received from the New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Mental Health Services.

NOTE 5 LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Center leases its facilities under the terms of operating leases that expired June 30,
2019. New one year leases were signed effective July 1, 2019. Lease payments totaled
$50,568 for the year ended June 30, 2019 and future minimum lease payments are
$50,568. •

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended June 30, 2019, approximately 95% of the total support and revenue
was derived frorh the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,
Bureau of Mental Health Services. The future existence of the Center is dependent upon
the funding policies and continued support of this source.

NOTE 7 CONTINGENCIES - GRANT COMPLIANCE

The Center receives funds under a state grant and from Federal sources. Under the
tenns of these agreements, the Center is required to use the funds within a certain
period and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenses
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the
Center might be required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for these contingencies because specific amounts, if
any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of June 30, 2019.

NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Center maintains a tax sheltered 403(b) plan that covers substantially all full-time
employees. The Center contributes up to 3% of the base compensation of eligible
participants to the plan. Contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2019
totaled $2,281.

11



THE ALTERWATTVg Lffg CgUTPB

SCHEDULE OF FUHCTIONAL REVEMUE. SUPPORT AHO EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR EHDEO JUNE M Ml*

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Grants

Pmt support ravanue
Fundni^ and UortatiarM
imerast

Total ravanue and suppod

EXPENSES

Program Sarvieet:
SMrias and wagas
Payrol laxas
Employae bartafits
Rant

Education and In servica Irainhg
Profaasional faa*

Travai • staff transportation
Oepracxation
Insvranca

- Talaphone and interrtat

Trartsportatlon - clant sarvicas
Utatias

Office luppaei and advertising
CottttjRiaUe supptias and food
BUUng and nousahoid suppiaa
Rapain end ittaintenanca
Postage
Membership expartsas

Other

Total program sarvicas;

Martagamera ertd general:

Salarias and wages
Patrol taxes

Etnployaa benefits
Rant

Proiassional leas

Oapracietion

Insurance

Talaphorta and internal
. Office suppkas artd advertising

Pear Support
Conwiv

18t.7S6

Pear Support Pear Support Pear Support

27,526

2,052

6.4S2

14.947

27.487

10.105
4.657

6.372
6,082 '
2.146
2.344

2.057
137

615

360

2.586
9.231

954

8.314

799

1,331

1,661

6,785

6.373

4.814

367

1,568

Barltn Colabreek Littleton

5 60,264 $ 72,091 5 126.059

S 60.264 5 72.091 I 126.059

S 35.507 S 48.674 % 56.419
2.903 3.927 4.614
1,009 2.096 4.^
9.660 10.600 13.500

104

1.436 4.132 7.082

1,615 2.366 ■  1.704
747 1,664 1,151

1.671 1.227

361 669 619
596 457 661
573 344 567
63 5 341
20 M 47

45 44 272

76,539 92.580

33,256
2,396

.11.975

Warm

Una

t  21.648

$  21.646

Crtoia

Raaolta

86.351

68.351

Total

BMHS

Funds

552,169

52

552.221

S  20,351 % 71.900 5 260377
1,699 5701 20.896
542 1,331 16,150

48,907

- 3.345 30,936

10.105
1.478 16.966

- 8.372
• 8,082

679 1,332 10,244
579 6,485

2.210 7,658

1.986
236 2.765
195 2.059
44 3.061

9,326

1.31S

(  23 471 % 66 351 1 467.911

41.572

3.195

13.306

1.661

8.765

8.373

4.814

387

Other

Non^UHS

Proarims

24.348
2.335

26.683

14,033

1,091

435

2.49

2,492

I  20.548

2019

Tew

552.169

24.348

2.335
52

576.904

274.410
21.987

16,565

48,907

30.S36

10.105

21.462

8.372

6.C62

10.244

6.485

7.658
1.986

2,765

2.059

3.061
9.328

2.492
1.315

488.459

41.572
3,195

13,306

1.681

8.785

8.373

4,814

367

Total ntanagemanl and ganaral S 36.052 i . I 46.026 S 6 5 64 078

Total expanses i 166.596 i 56.426 S 76.539 5 140.606 i  23.471 S 66.351 t 551.969 S 20.546 $ 572.637

Saa Indspandanl Auditors' Report

12
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THE ALTERNATIVE UFE CENTER

SCHEDULE OF BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES (BMHS)
REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Total FY 2019 BMHS funds received
Recognition of funds released by BMHS

Total funds received

BMHS expenses (taken from audit report)
Paid on behalf of other agencies
Interest on BMHS funds held

Depreciation expense

BMHS surplus

Refundable advances balance at June 30. 2018

Refundable advances used

Refundable advances balance at June 30, 2019, including Crisis Respite

Less: refundable advances - Crisis Respite

Refundable advances - balance at June 30, 2019

Total

$  500,858
155,545

656,403

(551,989)
(121,211)

52

16,745

195,469

(155.545)

39,924

$  39,924

See Independent Auditors' Report
13
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BOARD MEMBERS 2019-2020

Maddie Co«eno(2Q2!)
NftAnaiifli^onway NH 03818

Convvuy NH 03818

mcpond 1 @hotmajl.com

Gardiner Perry (2022)

ConwoyNH 03818

gardpenyO29@gmail.0m

Robert Randall (2020)

No Conway NH 03860
n cell

Fay Rcilly (2021)
Conway NH 03818

iCtr Cbnwoy NH 03813
rayinak@hotmail.coni

Ccll:l

(President)

Elaine South (2022)
(West Owipcc NH 03890
•^om NH 03836

H: rnmm ccIhmmm

cldines6uth@rpadrunner.cpm
(Secretary)

Bonnie Hayes (2020)

North Conway NH 03860
work eel)

bonnic@selcctrealestale.com
(Vice president)

Leo Sullivan (2021)

IntervuieNH 03845
I rsu 11 @road runner, co m

Judiil^nglish (2020)
f-l 03846

. lacksoii NH 03846
H: MfBMM cell:

jienh@roadKjnncr.com

FYl; Laura Mckinova

Altcmaiive LiTe Center

Pd Box 241, CQn>vay NH 03818
cc!l:6Ci3 259-6610
ALC 447-I765 Laura: 444-5344 (LPS)

alccentcryi^L'miiil.com website:nlccentcrs.org

(10/15/2019)
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Laura Mekindva Wopdsville, NH 03785
houdini037K5@gmnil.com

603 259 6610

OBJECTIVE

To challenge myself and grow in my position arid life.

EDUCATION

2018

2016

20.15

20M

2013

2008

1998

Recovery Coach
Inientional Pwr Support Trainer Refresher

Intentional Peer Support Trainer Refresher

WRAP Facilitator

Peer Specialist Ccrtincatipn

IntcnUonal Peer Support Trainer

Certified in intentiohal Peer Support

Ci.ED

WORK EXPERIENCE

May 2014r Present Intentional Peer Support Trainer
Responding for efTcctivcly traihing the
Peer Support Agencies in intentional Peer
Support, also maintaining their Co
Reflections, Worm line trainings, Conflict
Resolutions, and Crisis Respite training.

December 2006 - Present
The Alternative Life Center

Started as floor staff and currently
f^ecutive Director. Duties include but not
limited to, facilitating support/wcllhcss
groups, building community ties and
contacts, promoting the wcllncss of the
individuals wc serve. OvcrMcing four
sites, one outreach, a warm line, a respite
and two peer specialist positions.
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Laura MekinoVa
108 A Wild Ammonoosuc.Rd.

Wood^illcyNH 03785
houdini03785r<7j^iTiniLcom
603 259 6610

May 2006« December 2006
Sunny Garden Resthuranl
Waitressing

November 2005- April 2006 HR Block

Bookkeeper mid accounts payable

SKILLS

Computer litcralc, efTccttye communication
skills, and a team player. ProHcienl writing
skills.

REFERENCES

Available upon request
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Kevin A.Rodwell

KRodwell85(5)gmall.com

WcM!>(lsv]l]e,NH 03785

OBIEaiVC:

My objective to obtaining the Assistant Director, is to continue my development and knowledge of Core
IPS Tasks, Principle, & Valu^ of the Intentional Peer Support practice. To carry on the practice of IPS
and play an active role in the training process and execution of peer support on ail fronts. In addition I
would like to be able to support and encourage those in peer support to take it to the next level. Those

liew to it, to understand its purpose and instill its effectiveness. I want to be an avenue of effective IPS

practice and a practitioner of passing the message along to all those whom could bcneflt.from Peer
Support

skias & ABiirrv:

Quick Learner

Passionate

Adaptable

Knwledgeable about the IPS Core Tasks & Principles

Energetic

Team Player

EXPERIENCE:

FEBRUARY 2018 - CURRENT

PEER SUPPORT ASSISTANT, ON THE ROAD TO WELLNESS

I was hired as a peer support assistant to learn the practice of IPS and practice peer support
inicntlonoHy. I created and maintained peer relationships with the reaspofisabillty orfacliitatlng fifteen
of our twenty ayqilable groups. I base the groups and create material that is relevant to the group, the
daily needs of fellow Peers, and ultimately spreading the practice of Intentionally practicing peer
support. I help support my fellow peers and co workers to achieve wellness an optimal level,
consistently.

* 2^^ Annual Breakfast Speech
•f Chosen to be sponsored and trained at state level.
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OCTOBER 2018-CURRENT

Mentee/State Trainer Trainee, NH Peer Support Mentoring Program

Trained to conduct co*reflections as of April 16,2018.

4> Tralnefdtoteachthenewtralnlngmpdulesasof April 16,2019.

FEBRUARY 2019 - JUNE 2019

RESPITE / FLOOR STAFF, ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

A Worked Floor and Respite as staff expanding my experience of demonstrating IPS with my peers in

the communities we serve.

JUNE 2019 - FEBRUARY 2020

NH IPS STATE TRAINER. NH PEER VOICE

♦ Conduct statc-widd Trainings for IPS in NH:

IPS CORE

IPS REFRESHER

WARMLINE

CRISIS RESPITE

COREFLEaiONS

JUNE 2019 - FEBRUARY 2020

■  DIREaOR OF PUBLIC RELATIONS. ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

4 Established and maintained relationmships In the cornmunity.

A Redesigned organizational forms and created an easy^access database.

A Rebranded.our organizational logo, pamphlet, and website.

* Helped design and promote programming fro ALC with organizations in our community:

CCDP-LIricoln Police

CCDP-Littleton Regional Hospital
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FEBRUARY 2019-CURRENT 2020

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

♦ Malntaiin Public Relations Responabilltles

♦ Working with staff and Executive director to Improve programming and staffing.

MOU — The.Brldge Project

EDUCATION:

Northern Essex Communitv College - HaverhlD, MA - Associates In Business

JUNE 2012 Degree Awarded

REFRENCES:

Laura Meklnova

Executive Director - Littleton Peer Support

(603)-259-6610
alccentefs<g)Bmall.com

pavid Blacksmith

Executive Director - On The Road To Wellness

(6p3|-S4p 1431

David.b^^otrtw.org
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LoriA-ShiWactlc

Conmittlontr

KjKJs & Fei
Director

JUN10'20pm

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

. DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORA L HEAL TH

IJ9 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9S44 1-800-8S3-334S EiL 9544

Fm:603-27M332 TOD Aecew: I-800-73S-2964 w«n*.dhh$.oh.fOv

3-1

June 9. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arid the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

-if:
REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Departnient of Hearth and Human Sen/ices, Division for
Behavioral Health, to amend existing agreements with the vendors listed below
to continue providing peer support services to adults with mental illness by
exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $5,368,958
from $10,940,316 to $16,309,274 and by extending the completion dates from
June 30,2020 to June 30,2022. effective upon Governor and Council approval.
55.1% Federal Funds, 44.9% General Funds.

2) Further authorize a total advance-payment of $221,627, for the vendors listed
below in accordance with the terms of the contracts, effective upon Governor
and Council approval. 55.1% Federal Funds and 44.9% General Funds.

The agreements were approved by Governor and Council as Indicated in the table
below.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Number

Location Contract

Amount

Increaae/

(Oecreaae)
Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Connections

Peer

Support
Center

#15707

0>B001
Portsmouth S977.544 $492,406 $1,469,950

O.06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18#338
A2: 06/19/19 #28

H.E.A.R.T.S

Peer

Support
Center

Reaion IV

#20926

7-B001
Nashua $1,533,325 $780,432 $2,313,757

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 08/20/18#33B

A2: 06/19/19 #28

Lakes

Region
Consumer

Advisory
Board

#15706

0-B001
Laconia $1,355,548 $681,072 $2,036,620

0:08/29/18 #23

A1: 06/20/18#33B

A2: 06/19/19 #28

Monadnock

Area Peer

Support
Aqency

#15797

3-8001
Keene $1,067,447 $556,460 $1,623,907

0:08/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18#33B
A2: 06/19/19 #28

y
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On the

Road to

Recovery.
Inc.

#15683

6-B001
Manchester $1,739,123 $827,348 $2;566.471

0:08/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18#338
A2: 06/19/19 #28

The

Aiternative

Life Center

#16808

. 1-8001
Conway 52,000.576 $862,946 $2,863,522

O:06«9/16 #23
A1: 06/21/17 #38

A2: 06/20/2018

#338

A3: 06/19/19 #28

The

Stepping
Stone Drop-
In Center

Association

#15769
7-B001

Claremont $1,520,154 $776,488 $2,296,642

0:06/29/16 #23
A1: 06/20/18 #338

A2: 06/19/2018

#28

Tri-City
Consumers'

Action Co-

ooerative

#15779

7-8001
Rochester $746,599 $391,806 $1,138,405

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18#33B

/<Z\ 06/19/19#28

Totals $10,940,316 $5,368,956 $16,309,274

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021 and
anticipated to be available for Stale Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT
05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, PEER SUPPORT SERVICES
05-96-92-922010-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, PEER SUPPORT SERVICES
05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT
05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: GLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER, GLENCLIFF HOME,
PROFESSIONAL CARE

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing peer support services for adults
who are eighteen (18) years of age .and cider who self-identify as a recipient, a former
recipient, or are at significant risk of becoming a recipient of mental health services.
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Approximately 2,200 individuals will be served from July 1,2020 through June 30,
2022.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provision, Section 3 that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to four (4)
years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service,
parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The
Department is in agreement with renewing services for two (2) of the remaining two (2)
years at this time.

The contractors provide sen/ices that enhance personal wellness, independence,
and recovery by increasing personal awareness, and symptom management of mental
illness. Peer support services include supportive interactions and shared experiences
using an Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental illness and
sejf-advocacy skills through personal connection and building relationships. The
contractors provided peerservices to 2.161 adults with mental illness in State Fiscal Year
2019 as evidenced by quarterly data reports. The Department conducted on-srte reviews
in State Fiscal Year 2019 of all contractors As evidenced in the reviews, programming
was delivered using principles and practice of Intentional Peer Support and related peer
disciplines.

All contractors met expectations as outlined in NH Administrative Rule He-M 402
and developed quality improvement plans with the Department to address areas needing
improvement. The contractors have taken advantage of available technical assistance
and trainings to maintain well-rounded, professional, and sustainable peer-run programs.

Peer support agencies provide individuals with a comprehensive array of In-house
and community based discussion groups, practice groups, educational events, social
outings, community outreach, and community support. Peer support agencies provide
Intentional Peer Support services through face-to face meetings and telephone calls.
Telephone-based peer support services, known as Warmline Services, are available
statewide to assist individuals v/ho may experience mental health crises outside of regular
business hours.

Three (3) of the agencies. H:E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Agericy, Monadnock Area
Peer Support, and The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association, also provide respite
beds for individuals who have a mental illness, are experiencing or at risk of a mental
health crisis, and need a therapeutic respite from their current living situation. Respite
beds provide twenty-four (24) hour seven (7) days a week access to peer support services
and are available for up to a maximum of seven (7) days. Peer Support Agencies and
peer respite services are also in accordance with the recommendations 10 Year Mental
Health Plan and Community Mental Health Agreement.
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Each contractor's effectiveness to deliver services will be measured through
programmatic audits, reviews, and ongoing financial audits relative to areas that include,
but are not limited to:

• Monthly financial ratios, expenses, and status;
• Outreach activities;

•  Educational events;

•  Program evaluations and surveys;

•  Service deliverable expectations;
• Numbers served on daily basis, number of current rriembers, and program

utilization totals;

• Ongoing steps to increase membership: and
• Number of services provided beyond the immediate crisis stabilization, including

referrals. ,

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals with
mental health conditions, statewide, may not have access to the valuable support they
rely on to manage the symptoms of their mental illness. Should the^ peer support
services become unavailable, some individuals may require a higher level of service,
including hospitalization, which is significantly more costly than peer support servlices.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 55.1% Federal Funds. CFDA #93.958/FAIN SM010035-19 and
44.9% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitt

.ori A. Shibinette
Commissioner

Tht Deparimeniof fleoUh and Human Sirviee$' Mission is to join communitits and families
in preuiding opporluniiits for cUitens to achieve health and independence.



Financial Oelail

05-95.92-920010-7143 HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH QIVOF DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL.HEALTH. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

AcUvilyCode: 92207143
The Alternative Life Center

Vendor« 066801

State Fiscal Year Class TlUe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decreaset

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Comracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  . 290.154.00 $ S  290.154.00
2018 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  290,154.00 $ S  290.154.00
2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S S
2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 % % s
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i s s
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s s

Subtotal s  sao.3oe.oo s $  960.308.00

The Stepping Stone Orop-ln Center Association

Vendor 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

'  (Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 %  209.790.00 S $  209.790.00
2016 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 I  209.790.00 s $  209.790.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s j

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ s j

2021 Contracts for Svs 102-500731 s i j

2022 Coniracts for FVog Svs 102-500731 s s j

Sutitotal S  419,980.00 $. i  419,580.00

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor Id 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  188.183.00 S i  188,183.00
2018 Contracts for Prog'Svs 102-500731 S  188.183.00 s i  188.183.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s ■ s $
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s S
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s s
2022 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i $ $

Subtotal I  376.366.00 $ S  . 376,366.00

Monadnock Area Roar Support Agency

Vendor#157973

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  146.449.00 $ S  146,449.00
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  146.449.00 $ S  146.449.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ 5

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S
•  2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s j

2022 . ' Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ % j

Subtotal S  292.898.00 s $  292,898:00

H.EJt.R.T.S. Pear Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI
Vendor # 209267

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account CuToni Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oocroase)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Coniracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S - 211.880.00 S S  211,660.00
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  211,860.00 S S  211.660.00
2019 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s S
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ $
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ s
2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s s

Subtotal $  423.720.00 $ $  423,720.00.

Pase 1 ol7
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On tho Road to Racoverv. Inc.

Vendor«156839

Stale Fttcal Year Class Tide Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Rovtsed Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  245.562.00 S S  ' 245.562.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  245.562.00 s S ' 245.562.00

2016 Contracts (or Proo Svs 102-500731 % $ $

2020 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s s

2021 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s s

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs - 102-500731 s s s

Subtotal . $  491,124.00 i i  491.124.00

Connec(lor>s Peer SuoDort Center

Vendor U 157070

Slate Fiscal Year Class Tide Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increesef

(Oocroase)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  135,751.00 5 5  135,751.00

2018 ■Contracts (or Prog' Svs 102-500731 $  135,751.00 5 S  135.751.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ . $ S
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 5 s
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ s
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i 5 5

Subtotal 5  271.502.00 S S  271,502.00

TrI-Clty Consumart'Acdon Co-operetlve
Vendor #157797 '

Stete Fiscal Year Closs Tide Class Accouni Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  102.362.00 S $  102.362.00
2018 Contracts'(or Prog Svs 102-500731 $  102.362.00 5 S  102.362.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S S $
2020 ' Contracts (or Prog Svs' 102-500731 s S S

Subtotal 5  204,724.09 s S. 204,724.00

I > 3.060,222.00 |ISUB total' I $ 3.0g0.222.00 I $

05-95-92-920010-7011 HEAt.TH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OERT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF. DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds
ActhriiyCode: 92207011

Tho Alternative Life Center
Vendor« 066801

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/.

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  233,122.00 S S  233.122.00
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  233.122.00 s S  233.122.00
2019 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S s S

2020 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s 5
2021 Contracts (or Proo Svs 102-500731 S s
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5 S s

Subtotal t  466.244.00 5 t  466.244.00

The Stcooina Stone Droo-ln Center Astocladon
vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Accouni Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  188.555.00 $ S  168.555.00
2018 Conirects for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  168.555.00 i $  168.555.00
2019 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 i s $
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ s
2021 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $
2022 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ i

Subtotal i  337.110.00 $ i  337.110.00

Pace 2 or 7
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Lakes RsQlon Consumer Advisory Board

Vendors 157060

Stale Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Coniracis for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  151.196.00 S S  151.196.00

2018 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  151,196.00 $ S  151.196.00

2019 Contracts for Profl Svs 102-500731 s S S

2020 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s s

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs . 102-500731 s s $

Subtotal %  302.392.00 s -s ' .302,392.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor# 157973

State Fiscal Year Claea Title Class Account Current Budget .
Amount Increase!

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 • Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  117,665.00 S $ -  117.665.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs -102-500731 $  - 117,665.00 i S 117.665.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i % s .

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s % $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i s $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ $ .

Subtotal S  235.330.00 s s 235,330.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Cantor of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor # 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  • 170,218.00 % $  - 170,218.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  170,218.00 $ $  170,218.00

2019 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S S

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ s

. 2021 Contracts for Prog Svs - 102-500731 $ S s

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $

Subtotal $  340,436.00 $ S  340,436.00

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor #158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account >  Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  197,296.00 S S 197,296.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  197.296.00 S s 197,296.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ s

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ s

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 5 s -

Subtotal %  394,592.00 S $ 394,592.00

Connections Peer Support (-enter

Vendor # 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 . Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109,071.00 S S  109.071.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109,071.00 S S  109,071.00
2019 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S s S

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s s

Subtotal $  210.142.00 s i  218.142.00

Trl-Clty Consumers' Action Co-operailve -

Vendor#157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  82,245.00 S $  82,245.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  82,245.00 S S  82,245.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs. 102-500731 S s S

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $

Page 3 of 7
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2021 Contrscis for Ptqq Svs 102-500731 i i  - Is ■ 1
•  2022 Contr»cts for Proa Svs 102-500731 i s  - $
Subtotal t  164.490.00 S  - Is 164.490.00 1

SUB TOTAL I S 2.458.736.00 11 a.458.T36.00

05-95-92-922010-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV
. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% Genarol Furxfs

Activiiy Code: 92204118
Tho AlterriBtlvs LIfo Center '

verxfor 0 068801 ■

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

{Docresse)

Revised Budget

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S S 8
2016 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s S 8 ..

2019 Conlrects for Preo Svs 102-500731 S  233.122.00 s . 8 233.122.x
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  190.632.00 s 6.250.00 8 197.X2.X
2021 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s 190.632.00 8 1X.d32.X
2022 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s $ 190.832.00 8 1X.632.X

Subtotal S  423,954.00 s 367.914.00 8 811.866.x

1 ne steppina bione Oroo-ln Center Asaociailon

Vendor 0 157967

State Fiscal Yeor Class Title Class Account .  Current Budget
Amount irwreasef

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ 8
2016 Contracts for ProQ Svs 102-500731 s S 8
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  168.555.00 $ . 8 166.55S.X
2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  171,573.00 $ 6.250.00 8 177.823.x
2021 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ 171.573.00 8 171.573.x
2022 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s 8 171.573.00 8 171.573.x

Subtotal S  .340,120.00 S 349.396.00 8 609.924.x
y

i^Kot Keaion consumer Advlsorv Board

Vendor 0 157080 '

State Fiscal Year Class Title Clest Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contrects for Prog Svs 102-500731 s S 8
2018 Contracts for f^roa Svs 102-500731 s 8
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  151.196.00 s . 8 151.196.x
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  150,319.00 s 6.250.00 8 1S6.S69.X
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s 150.319.x 8 1X.319.X
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s 1X.319.X 8 1X.319.X

Subtotal $  • 301,815.00 s 3X.888.X 8 608.403.W

Monadnoch Ares Peer Suooort Aoency

Vendor 0 157973

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount tncreese/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S 8
20.16 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S 8 .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 %  117.665.00 $ 8 117.X5.X
2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  122.561.00 % 6.250.x 8 128.811.x
2021 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 1 i 122.561.x 8 122.set.X
2022 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s i 122.561.x 8 122,561.x

Subtotal S  240,226.00 s 251.372.00 8 491.596.00

n.b.A.K.1.2(. Koor bupport Center of Greater Nashua Reolon VI

Vendor 0 209267

State Fiscal Year Clest Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S 8 8
2016 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S . 5 8
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 170.218.00 $ 8 170.218.x
2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ 194.727.00 8  6.250.00 8 2X.977.X
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ .  . 8  194.727.00 8 194.727.x
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $  194,727.00 $ 194.727.00

Paged of 7
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Subtotal S  364.945.00 s 395.704,00 $ 760,649.00

On thB Road to Rocovorv. Inc.

Vendor# 156839

State Flacal Year Cless Title Class Account Current BudQel
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $
2018 Contracts for Profl Svs 102-500731 S s S .

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $  ' 197,296.00 $ . s 197,296.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  182,903.00 $ 6.250.00 i 189.153.00
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s i 162.903.00 s 182.903.00
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s % 182,903.00 s 182,903.00

Subtotal S  380.199.00 i 372,056.00 $ 752,255.00

Connections Peer Suooort Center

Vendor# 157070

State Fiscal Year Claaa TItJe Claaa Account Currant Budoal
Amount Increase/'

(Decrease)

Ravlsad Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S- S S .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S . 109.071.00 s . $ 109,071.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  108.294.00 s 6.250.00 s 114.544.00
2021 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 108.294.00 s 108.294.00
2022 Contracts for Prog.Svs 102-500731 $ s 108.294.00 $ 108.294.00

Subtotal S  217.365.00 5 222.638.00 s 440.2Q3.00

Trt-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-ooeratlve

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 S % S
2018 Contracts lor Proo Svs 102-500731 s . S $
2019 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s -  62,245.00 i S ■  82.245.00
2020 Contracts for Proo Svs •102-500731 s 58,159.00 $ ■  6.250.00 % 64.409.00
2021 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ . $ 58.159.00 $ 56.159.00
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s . $ 58.159.00 s 56.159.00

Subtotal $ 140.404.00 5 122.568,00 s 262,972.00

SUB TOTAL
•

s 2.408.736.00 • 8 2,408,736.00 1 S 4,617,472.00

05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Activity Code: 92204120

The Aitemallvo Life Center '

Vendor # 066801

State Flacal Year Class Title Class Account Curronl Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revltad Budget

Amount
2017 Contracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 S S S
2016 Coniracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 S s s .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  290.154.00 s 8 290,154.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  237.516.00 s . 8 237.516.00
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 237.516.00 8 237,516.00
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 237,516.00 8 237.516.00

Subtotal S  527.670.00 $ 475,032.00 8 1,002,702.00

The Stooping Stone Drop-In Center Association

Vendor#157967

State Fiscel Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
. Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S i S
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ 8
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  209,790.00 S S 209,790.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S ' 213.548.00 S . S 213,546.00
2021 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 S s 213.546.00 $ 213.548.00
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ i 213.546.00 S 213.546.00

Subtotal %  423.336.00 % 427.092.00 % 850,428.00
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Financial OeUil

Lakes Realon Consumer Advisory Board

Vendors 1S706O '

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currant Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oocroase)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ $
2016 Contracts for Proa Svs . 102-500731 $ $ S .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  188,183.00 % s 168,163.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  187.092.00 % . s 167.092.00
2021 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 % 167.092.00 s 187.092.00
2022 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 s S 167.092.00 s 187.092.00

Subtotal % . 375.275.00 5 374.164.00 s 749.459.00

Monadnock Area Peer Supooit Aoencv

Vendor S 157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increese/

(Decreese)

Revfeed Budget

Amount -
2017 Contracts (or Proa Svs 102-500731 S S S
2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s s .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  148.449.00 1 s 146.449.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  152.544.00 s $ 152.544.00,
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 5 •  152.544.00 $ 152.544.00
2022 ' Contracts lor Proo Svs 102-500731 s $ 152.544.00 s 152.544.00

Subtotal S  298.993.00 8 305.088.00 % . 604,081.00
•

H.E AR.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Reoon VI
Vendors 209267

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revltod Budget
Amount

2017 Conlracis (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s i S
2018 Conlracls (or Proa Svs 102-500731 $  • i $ .

2019 Conlracis for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  211,860.00 $ s 211.860.00
2020 Conlracis for Proa Svs 102-500731 i  192,384.00 S s 192.364.00
2021 . Contracts lor Prog Svs - 102-500731 $ $ 192.364.00 $ 192.364.00
2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 192,364.00 s 192.364.00

Subtotal i  404.224.00 s 364,726.00 s 788,952.00

On the Road to Recoverv. Inc.

Vendors 168839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oecreese)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  . . S S
2018 Conlracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s S S .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 •$ 245.562.00 s 5 245:562.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  227.646.00 s . S 227,648.00
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ 227.646.00 S 227.646.00
2022 Conlracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 227,646.00 $ 227.646.00

Subtotal $  473.208.00 s •455,292.00 8 928,500.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor# 157070

State Fiscal Yaar Class TlUa Ciass Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 8 8 S
2018 Conlracis for Prog Svs • 102-500731 8 . S 8 .

2019 Conlracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 8 135.751.00 8 8 135.751.00
2020 Conlracis lor Proo Svs 102-500731 8 134.784.00 8 . 8 134.784.00
2021 • Conlracis lor Proa Svs 102-500731 8 . 8 134.784.00 8 134.784.00
2022 Conlracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 8 . 8 134.784.00 8 134.784.00

Subtotal 8 270.535.00 8 269.568.00 8 540,103.00

'

Tri-Cltv Consumert' Action Cooperative

Vendor# 157797 '

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Conlracis (or Prog Svs 102-500731 8 8 S
2018 Conlracis (or Prog Svs 102-500731 8 . 8 8
2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 8 102.362.00 S S 102.362.00
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Financial Detail

2020 Contracts (or Proo Svs 102-500731 $ 134.619.00 $ . S 134.619.00

2021 Contracts (or Proa Svs ^102-500731 S - $ 134.619.00 s 134.619.00.

2022 Contracls (or Proq Svs 102-500731 $ t 134.619.00 s 134.619.00

Subtotal t 236.981.00 $ 269.238.00 t 906.219.00

It 3.010,222.00 1 S 2.960.?22.001 $ 5.970.444.00 1[SUB total"

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: GLENCUFP HOME FOR ELDER.
GLENCLIFF HOME. PROFESSIONAL CARE

80% Other Furxis/ 20% General Funds

Aclivlty Code: 91000000

The Altenstlvo Life Center

Vendor #068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decroaee)

Revised Budget
Amount

2018 Consultants 046-500464 S  1.200.00 $ S  1,200.00

2019 Consultants 046-500464 $  1.200.00 $ S  1.200.00

2020 Consultants 046-500464 5 $ S

Subtotal S  2.400.00 t $  2,400.00

SUB TOTAL 2,400.00 I t 2.400.00

t  10,940.316.00 I t 5.360,958.00 I S 10,300.274.00 jTOTAL
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New Hampshire Departmenl of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Oopartmont of Health and Human Services

Amendment to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 4** Amendment to the Peer Support Services »n!ract (heieinafler referred to as "Amendmant W) is
Pv end between the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Hoalih and Human Sor^s (horolnrfiof
^erred to as the "State- or-Department") and The Allefnallve Life Center, (herematter
Conuactor). a nonprofit cofporatlon wilh a place of business el 6 Main Street. Conway. NH 03810.
WHER^S. pursuant to an aQreoment {the "Contract') approved by the
on June 29. 2016. (Uem »23). as amended on June 21; 2017. (Item »38). June 20.2016. (Item »33B). and
on Juite 19. 2019. (Item #28). lite Contiactoi uyroeU to poifonn ceiluiti seivicesUasod upon the lonnsaiKJ
conditions spelled in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums apecmed; and
WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to maVe changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract: and

WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph IB and Exhibit C-l. Reviaicns to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3. the ConlfBd may be amended and extended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor end Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, and increase the price lifhitaiion to
support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants arid conditions conlained
in the Contract and sat forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. (Seneral Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Dale to read:

June 30.2022.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Umitallon. to road:

$2,863,522.

3. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #3. Scope of Services. Section 1.. Subsedlon 1.5.. to read:

I.5. RESERVED.

4. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #3. Scope of Services. Section 3.. Subsection 3.1. Peer Support
Services. Paragraph 3.1.1.. Sutiparagraph 3.1.1.1 to read:

3.1.1.2. Maimalnlng a safe physical location mat:
\

3.1.1.2.1 Is open a minimum total of forty-four (44) hours per week, eight (8) hours
per day. five days per week and four (4) hours on one (1) additional day per
week ai each location: and

3.1.1.2.2. Provides face-to-faoe or telephone peer support services to peer support
agency members or others who oontact the peer support agency at a
minimum of forty (40) hours per week at each location.

5. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #3. Scope of Services. Section 11. Reporting. Subsection 11.3.. to
read:

II.3. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the fifteenth (15"') of the month following
the end of each quarter, the prior querter's Board of Director meeting rrtinutes. with all
attachments, including, but not limited to. the Exewtive Director's report and Boerd of
Directors' Roster.

b. Add Exhibit A - Amendmeni #3. Scope of Services. Section ii. Reporting. Subsection 1V5.. to

IL-The AliemMive Life Cenler Amondmoni«4 CoiVfaclof Iniuol#
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

read:

11.5. The Contractor ehatl subnet o querteriy written report to the Departmenl, on a form suppiied
by the Department, no later than the fifteenth (tS**) of the month foltowinq the quarter
r^arding;

7. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment #3. Scope of Services. Sedion 12. Deliverables. Subsection 12.1..
to read-

12.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of in-house services at eadt
Center each week including up to five (S) hours conducted In the center's community or
region, as approved by the Oapartmanl. ensurfr^ iin-houso services indude. but are not
lirr^ed to:

12.t. 1. New topics iiiliuiJuceU at least iDOiilhly.

12.1.2. A minifnum of five (S) separate discussion groups per waek that address emotional
wedbeing topics, which may Indude. but are rtot .limited to:

12.1.2.1. IPS

12.1.2.2. WRAP;

12.1.2.3. WHAM.

12.1:2.4. Setting boundaries.

12.1.2.5. Posftive thinking.

12.1.2.6. Wdlness.

12.1.2.7. Stress management.

12.1.2.8. Addressing trauma

12.1.2.9. Reduction of negative or intrusive t^ughta.

12.1.2.10. Manegementofemolional states including, but notlimited to:

12.1.2.10.1. Anger.

12.1.2.10.2. Depression.

12.12.10.3 Anxiety.

12.1.2.10.4. Mania.

12.1.3. A minimum off five <5) discussion or practice groups per week that address physical
wellbeing topic, which may include, but ere not limited to:

12.1.3.1. Smoking cessation.

12.1.3.2. Weightless.

12.1.3.3. Nutrition and cooking.

12.1.3.4. Physical exercise.

12.1.3.5. Mlndfulness activities. Induding but r>ot limited to:

12.1.3.5.1. Yoga

12.1.3.5.2.. Medltotion.

12.1.3.5.3. Journaling.

12.1.4. A minimum of tour (4) activity groups per week that provide positive skllNbuilldng activities.

ThtAiiwndivoUtoCentK . ."/nwament CorwrectorirfiiH!!
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

which may indude but are not limited to;

12.1.4.1. Ads and crafts.

12.1.4.2. Music expression.

12.1.4.3. Creative wmmg.

12144 Cooklr>g.

12.1.4.5. Sewing.

12.1.4.6. Gardening.

12.1.4.7. Movies.

12.1.5. A rrtnlm of one (1) group per week baaed on topica relevant to fostering Independence
which may indude. but are not limited to:

12.1.5.1. Online bloga or articles that relate to mental health.

12.1.5.2. Obtaining employment

12.1.5.3. Budgeting.

12.1.5.4. Oedsion-making.

12.1.5.5. Self-advocacy.

0. Add Exhibit A - Amendment «3. Scope of Services. Section 13. Oualily Improvement. Subsedion
13.5.. to read:

13.5. The Contrador shall provide ell requested audits within ten (10) daya of the request by the
. Department.

9. fwlodify Exhibit B. Amendment 02. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Seeflon 5.. to
read:

S. Subsequent (o the action In Secliun 4.; tl« Depailrnenl ahall make monthly payinenla to the
Contractor based upon cost reimtHirserhant. as submitted by the Contrador to maintain
services end as approved by the Department, of the Department approved budget amounts In
Exhibit G-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-6 Amendment 03 SFY 2022 Budget.

5.1. In no event shall the total of the InHlal payment in Section 4. and monthly payments in
Section 5. exceed the budget amounls sol forth In Section 5.

5.2. The Department vnll adjust monthly payments.for expenditures set forth In Section 9.;
below and amounts paid to initiate ser^ces In Section 4., above.

5.2. Expenditures shall be In accordance with the budgets identified in Section S.. as
approved by the Department. .

5.3. Allowable costs end expenses shall t>e determdnad by the Department. In accordance
with applicable slate and federal laws end regulations.

10. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment 02. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 6.. to
read:

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph IB of the General Pro^sions Form P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the price limitetion and adjusting encumbrances between Stele
Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written
agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council,
if needed end jusltfied.

RFP-2017-e8H-02.PEER5-06-AO< Pao«3of6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

11. fUlodify Exhibit B-4 by deleting Hs content in Us entirety end replacing it with Exhibit B-4 Amendment
- 04. SPY 2020 Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-4 - Amendment 04. SPY 2021 Budget, which is attached hereto and Incorporated
by reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-6 - Amendment 04. SPY 2022 Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporeted
by referertce herein.

Th® AttomBtivo Ufo Conto* Amon<lmoni#4 Comroaof ifBtieti
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New Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

All terms and conditions of the Conlraci and prior amendmenls not inconsistenl with (his Amendment 04
remain in ful) force and effect. This amendmeni shall be effective upon the date of Governor end Executive

Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set Iheii hands as of the date rMrillen below.

State d New Hampshire
Oepartment of Heatlh and Human Services

Date Kafli Fox

Director

The Allematlve Life Center

Name

Tiw: J f^oarj fpeoi^O-TW

Tha Atternaiive Ufa Canter

nrP-2017-BaH02-PEERSOS-A04
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amendntent. having been reviewed by this office. Is epproved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/3/20
Date Name;

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was epproved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire el Iho Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Th« Allwnotiv* Life C«nlor Am«odnicni M
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Exhibit B-4 • Arrandmont 04

Now Ho

ContJDCtor Nomt:

tudgot ReqiMfl for^

Budgot ̂rtod:^

8FY 2020 Budget

iripohlro Department of KdalUi end Human Soiree*
TTw AiUrrullve Life Center

Peer Supoort Servlcet

8FY20 (Tnrie threueh cno/zoi

Um lisni BudgW -

RtfocnBeitambB UneTtcm'Bud^ Deectlptlon. Tdtd'Aatount-

600 PERSONNEL C03T8 • 1-»•• • • i'- . •!. t

«01 CaWivIWmm men

002' Ernotovoe.Bonoitt 22419

603 PoyrelltniM 22.468

SuWal .339.030

on PROFESSIONAL FEES

624 AocounOna 0.000

02$ Audit Fflds

on LoaalFfles 30

627' Other Proieulonal Fees end Censuluiriti
Subiotei 0,030

030 ^AFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAtNlNO '.S'i '.TV LT'TV! .Z.

631 PubOcsdom erxJ Joumsb

632 In-8crv1ce Trolnina 3.0CO

633 Confetenaet and Ccnventione

634; Other Ston Oevotopmonl

SuMotsl 3,000

040 DCCUPANCy COSTS

641 Rofll .  4A040

642 Modoefle Povmentx

043 Heetlna Ceets

044 Other UUitlee 4.4n.

04S Midntenonce end Ropeirt -630

.048 Taxes

047 Other Occupancy Cosli

Subtetel 62.100

consumable 8UPPUE8 '  ■ 1. • * ■ ..

651 ONea 3.000

"  652 BuUdlno/Houwhokl '600

053 RehfibUtaUorVTrdnlno

.655 Food
057' Other Coneumobte Suppttoo

Bubtotal 3,890
Other Expenses

600 CAPITAL EXPEK0ITURE6

685. DEPRECIATION

670 EOUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400

660 EQUIPMENTMAINTENANCE
>06 ADVERT)dlN(3

PRINTING '

720 TE LE PHONEK^OMMUN tCATIONS 4.tX<l

730 POSTAGDSHIPPINO 300

Subtotal 6.600
740 TRANSPORTATION .**V * '

•741 Board ManSiom

742 Stafl 10.910.

743- Mombers and Portldpants 1.000

Bubtatal 11.010
760 Atelslance to Indivtduels -= - - .•• •

751 CSent Servloee

.752

Subtotal

760 INSURANCE .  .•.?> ■. .T.J.
701 Metpractico 6 Bortdine 9.000
762 VehlcJea zooo
763 ComDrohcfnMvoProDertv&UeNity 1 1.500
'600 OTHER EXPENDITURES 1.447
.601 INTEREST EXPENSE

Suueial 6.047
\

TOTAL PR66IUM 1434498

RPP.3Ot7.e8H<Q-^ERS!d0AO4
EjcNoh B-SAmwttnani M

Psgolofi
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Exhibit ̂  - Afflsndmofll 04

Now Ha

CentnclorNamo:

^udgot Raquofl for

Budgot Period:

8FY 2021 Budget

mpshire Oepertment 6f Health'arid Humen Servleee

The AtlemalJvo Lite Center

>eer Support ServUes

8nr21 (771/20 throuoh 6/30/21)

Jnoitem dutfgel
Refwenee Number line llem'Budeel OeearipSbn . TbtiJ'Amouht

600 PER80NNEL-C09TB

OOt CelsfviWenM 901,090

602 Emoiovoo Bonofll • aeis

603 PomU toxos Tzm.

Suotote) iiifiio

620 PROFESSIONAL FEES

624 Aoeounttno S.OOO

629 Audit Feoa

626 Laottl Fees 30

(177 CXnef Pforasslaiuil Fees dmI ConsuQarUa

Subioiel 0.030

036 bEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING r

631 PublcsUona end Joumats 1

632 ti><8oiv)coTntjnlno 5000

633 Contoiencea snd Convenilont.

634 Other Slsn;Devotopment

SuttotaJ ' 3,000

646 OtdUPANCY COSTS
641 Rent 4S.»i1

642 Modoaflo PBYmonis

b43 Kaodin Ceeta
644 Other . OtUee 4.400

645 MNnienenea end Repairs 890

640 Texof

647 Other Occuponrr Costs

Bubtoid 62.1 B1

600 CONSUMABLE 6UPPUE8 r.r".-;.-?'!""'* •''

esi OtOco 800

652 BuUdiru/Housohold

05) RohabUtsUonn'rtilnina

eS9..Food

657 Other ConsumobioSirDDfles

Subtoiel 800

Other Expenses

660 CAPITALEXPENOITURES

665 deprecIAYi6M
670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL- 2.400

660 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE -

''00 AOVERTISING

•'10 PRINTING

720 TELEPHONEA^OMMUNtCATlONS 3.0U)

730 P0STAGE/SHIPPIN6 200

Subtoiel 6.600
740 TRANSPORTATION -T'T" '

741 Board Members

742 8tett . &7S0

743 Members end Portfdponts 1.000

Subtoiel 9.760

760 Assistance to Individuals

751 Cfenl Servtoos

752 Ctothtno

Subtotal

780 INSURANCE

761 MalorflcUee 6 Bondlnn 6.000
762 Vehicles • 1.000
763 CairprehensNe PreoertY A Ueblitv 1.500

600 OTHER EXPENDITURES 1.447

BOI INTEREST Expense 1

Subtolnl a.Mr

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES iiia.iiH

RFP;20t7-6aH4a.PEEA84M&4
ExHtii &S Amndmini M
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Eihlbll 6-6 • Amflndmont 64

Now Hi

Contractor Nimt:

tudgct Ro<|U««t for

Dudgtt Portod:

SPY 2022 Budeet
mpthiro Ooparimont of Health end Human Servlcea

The ARemeilve Life Center

Peer Support Services /

SfYS} mi/21 Ihreuoh 6/307221

Unt Item ttuood *

RoNrenoi'Numter.}, Uiwllcm BuOpd Dcscrlpttoh! Totsi Amouni

1  eOO PERSONNEL COSTa ,f .1 r • . • • «

8

1
c•

1

i

292.B30

■002 Employee Bcnem 2zais
603 Pevroataxn 21466

Bubtslol 338;030
620 PRDF.ESSiONAL PEES
024 AccounPna 8.000
026 AuOU Pen
B26 LoaoiFeas 30
027 Othe; ProtouiORSi Fen end contusana

CuMotel 8.030
630 6TAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TKAININO 'I;': •
031 Pubitcailoni end Joumsb
032 IfhSofvice Tfolnlno 3.000
633 Cenlorancei end ConvenOona
634 Other Stan Devetooment

Subteliri 3.000
-640 OCCUPANCY COSTS •  • : ■ .

641 Rent 40.641
642 Mortoaoo Poyments
643 Hemtno Costs
644 Other UUSUa '  4.400
645 Moiniensnce ond Ropain 650
646 Totos
647 Olher.OccuMncv Code

Sutjtots) 62,191
6S0 CONSUMABLE SUPPUES
est Oftce 600
652 BiitdtnpAiouMhoU
653 Rehata^tionn'ralntna
659 Food
657 Olhor Consumable SuppVee

Subtold ' 600
Other EipenMS •  —«T»-~ •-•r".

666
065 DEPRECIAVtbrJ
070 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400
660 EQUIPMENT MAtNTEkAHcE
700 AbVERTISlNc
710 PRIhTHNC
726 TEL£PHONeAi6Mf.4UH16A'nofis U.UW

■730 POSTAOE/SHl^klHd 200
Sutdotal 0400

740 TRANSPORTATION
741 Board MarrOers
742 Stan* e.rco
743 Membere and PnrticiDnnti 1,000

Subtotal 8.750
760 Asilttanco tetndlvlduala
751 Cieni Seivloes
752

SubtoiRi
760 INSURANCE .
701 Mahwodloe 6 Bondlnc 6.000
762 Vohldos 1.000
763
800

Comotohontlve Pronrtv & UnblOtv 1.S00

801
W 1 1^A^C*^W6 1 WPOl^Cl

INTEREST EXPANSE
1.447

Subtotal 6.947

1  TOTAL PRo6tiAHeV('^N5Ed —1 5428,345

R^P-3017.B8H4S>PEER946^
EtfiW 0-S AmvnOcMnI M
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Jeffrty A. Meyers
Commissioner

Kaija S. Fox
Director

Jomsn.3 Oh:?

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIV/SION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-S52-3345 Ext 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 23, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise renewal options and amend existing agreements with the vendors listed below to continue
providing peer support services to adults with mental illness by increasing the total price limitation
by $2,659,479 from $8,280,837 to $10,940,316 and by extending the completion date from June
30, 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective July 1, 2019 or upon Governor and Executive Council approval
whichever is later. 55.45% Federal Funds, 44,55% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Number
Location

Contract

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Connections Peer

Support Center
#157070-

8001
Portsmouth $734,466 $243,078 $977,544

O;06/29/16#23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

H.E.A.R.T.SPeer

Support Center
#209287-

8001
Nashua $1,146,234 $387,091 $1,533,325

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

Lakes Region
Consumer Advisory

Board

#157060-

8001
Laconia $1,018,137 $337,411 $1,355,548

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

Monadnock Area

Peer Support Agency
#157973-

8001
Keene $792,342 $275,105 $1,067,447

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

On the Road to

Recovery, Inc.
#158839-

8001
Manchester $1,328,574 $410,549 $1,739,123

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

The Stepping Stone
Drop-In Center
Association

#157697-

8001
Claremont $1,135,035 $385,119 $1,520,154

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

The Alternative Life

Center

#168081-

8001
Conway $1,572,228 $428,348 $2,000,576,

0:06/29/16 #23

A1:06/21/17#38

A2: 6/20/18#33B

Tri-City Consumers'
Action Co-operative

#157797-

8001
Rochester $553,821 $192,778 $746,599

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

Total $8,280,837 $2,659,479 $10,940,316



financial Detail

Lakes Reflion Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor#157060

State Fiscai Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $  151.196.00 % $  151.196.00
2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5  151.196.00 S $  151.196.00
2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S J

2020 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 5 $ J

Subtotal $  302.392.00 $ %  302,392.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Apencv

VerxJori 157973

.  State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  117.665.00 $ $  117.665.00
2018 Contracts lor Proo Svs 102-500731 S  117.665.00 $ 5  117.665.00
2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S $

Subtotal $  235,330.00 $ i  235,330.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua ReqIon VI
Vendor« 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account ' Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  170.218.00 $ $  170,218.00
2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5  170.218.00 $ $  170.218.00

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ $
2020 Contracts for l=Yoa Svs 102-500731 5 5 $

Subtotal 5  340,436.00 $ $  340,436.00

On the Road to Recovery. Inc.

Vendor# 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Cunent Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Conlracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  197.296.00 $ S  197.296.00

2018 Contracts (or Proa Svs 102-500731 5  197.296.00 $ $  197.298.00

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Subtotal $  394,592.00 5 6  394,592.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor# 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  109.071.00 $ 5  109.071.00

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  109.071.00 $ $  109.071.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 5 $

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ S %

Subtotal S  218,142.00 S $  218,142.00

Tii-Clty Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  82.245.00 $ 5  82.245.00
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5  82.245.00 $ $  82.245.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S S $
2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s $ 5

Subtotal 5  164,490.00 i $  164,490.00

SUB TOTAL 2,4S8,736.00 $ 2,458,736.00

05-95-92-922010-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV.
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% GeneralFunds

ActivllyCode: 92204118

Th« Altomatlve Life Center

Page 3 of 6



Financial Detail

Vendor i 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S i $
2018 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ S .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 %  233.122.00 s . 233.122.00

2020 Conlrads for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ % 190.632.00 $ 190.632.00

SutMotal %  233,122.00 % 190,632.00 $ 423,954.00

The Stepplnq Stone Drop-in Center Association

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for FToa Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2016 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ $ .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  168.555.00 . ? 168.555.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ 171,573.00 $ 171.573,00

Subtotal $  166,555.00 i 171.573.00 $ 340,128.00

Lakes Reqion Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor* 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s . $ .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 151,196.00 S . S 151.196.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s . 6 150.319,00 6 150,319,00

Subtotal 6 161,196.00 $ 150.319.00 $ 301,515.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor * 157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ . $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s S 6 .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  117.665.00 S . 5 117,665.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ s 122.561.00 $ 122.561.00

Subtotal $  117,665.00 s 122.561,00 % 240,226.00

H.E^R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor # 209267

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ . 5 ? .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S 170,216,00 S . S 170.218.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S S 194.727.00 $ 194.727.00

Subtotal $ 170,218.00 s 194.727.00 $ 364,945.00

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor* 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ . 5 S .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s 197.296.00 S - ? 197.296.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s . 5 182.903.00 s 182,903.00

Sutitotal s 197,296.00 S 182,903,00 $ 380,199.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor* 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S - S $ .

2019 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 109.071.00 s . $ 109.071,00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s . s 108.294.00 S 108.294.00

Subtotal % 109,071.00 s 108,294.00 i 217,365.00

Page 4 of 6



Financial Oeta it

Tri-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-operstive

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ % $
2016 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ S S
2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  82.245.00 $ S  62.245.00
2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 5  56.159.00 $  56.159.00

Subtotal %  82,245.00 $  56.159.00 6  140,404.00

SUB TOTAL 1,229.366.00 I $ 1.t79.368.00 I $ 2.408.736.00

05-95-92-92201CM120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

AdlvttyCode: 92204120

Tfie Alternative Life Center

Vendor# 066801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 % 5 $

2016 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S . S S .

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 ? 290.154.00 $ . $ 290.154.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ . $ 237.516.00 237.516.00

Subtotal 6 290,154.00 5 237.516.00 % 527,670.00

The Stepping Stone Drop-in Center Association

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 -  Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2016 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ . 5 $ .

2016 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S 209.790.00 $ . 5 209.790.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ . $ 213.546.00 $ 213.546.00

Subtotal $ 209,790.00 $ 213,546.00 $ 423,336.00

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor# 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 $ S

•  2016 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 . $ $ .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 188.163.00 S . s 188,163.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 5 187.092.00 $ 167.092.00

Sutrtotal 5 188,183.00 5 167.092.00 5 375.275.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

vendor #157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ S S

2016 Contracts for Prog_Svs. 102-500731 5 . $ S .

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 ? 146.449.00 5 _ $ 146,449.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 5 . $ 152.544.00 $ 152.544.00

Subtotal $ 146,449.00 $ 152.544.00 $ 298,993.00

H.E.A.R.T.8. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Reg

>
c
o

Vendor #209287

State Fiscal Year Class THIe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S 5 5

2016 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ . S $ .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 211.660.00 $ - S 211.860.00

2020 Conlracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s . 5 192.364.00 $ 192.364.00

Subtotal s 211,860.00 5 192.364.00 % 404,224.00

Page 5 of 6



Financial Detail

On th« Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor# 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s . S 5 .

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s 245.562.00 $ . 5 245.562.00

2020 • Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ . s 227.646.00 S 227,646.00

Subtotal $ 245,562.00 $ 227.646.00 $ 473,208.00

Connections PeerSupoort Center

Vendor#157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s . S $ -

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ 135.751,00 5 . $ 135.751.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s . S 134,784.00 5 134,784.00

Subtotal $ 135,751.00 $ 134.784.00 S 270,535.00

Tri-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor#157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ 5

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 5 $ $

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $  102.362.00 S 5  102.362.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $  134,619.00 5  134.619.00

Subtotal 5  102,362.00 S  134.619.00 $  236,981.00

1$ 1.530,111.00 1$ 1,480,111.00 1$ 3,010,222.00l|SUB TOTAL

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: GLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER,
GLENCLIFF HOME, PROFESSIONAL CARE

80% Other Funds/ 20% General Funds

Activity Code: 91000000

The Attenatlve Life Center

Vendor« 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2018 Consultants 046-500464 $  1,200.00 S $  1.200.00

2019 Consultants 046-500464 S  1.200,00 .S $  1,200.00

2020 Consultants 046-500464 S s S

Subtotal 5  2,400,00 s 5  2,400.00

SUBTOTAL 2,400.00 $ 2,400.00

$  6,280,637.00 1$ 2,659.479.00 1$ . 10,940,316.00 |TOTAL
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Pflftr Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 3"^ Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendmerit #3")
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "DepartmenT) and The Altemative Life Center (hereinafter referred to as
"ttie Contractor"), a non-profrt corporation with a place of business at 6 Main Street. Conway, NH.
03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on June 29. 2016 (Item #23) as amended on June 21, 2017 (ltem#38) and June 20. 2018
(ltefn#33B). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specifred In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope off work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph IB, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Govemor artd Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, and
modi^ the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain In full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of tt^e foregoing and the mutual covenants and condftlons
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read;

June 30. 2020.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,000,576.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read;

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A - Amendment #2, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A -
Amendment #3, Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B, Methods arto Conditions Precedent to Payment - Amendment #3.

7. Add Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3. SFY 2020 Budget.

8. Delete Exhibit C. Special Provisions. Section 9. Audit, in its entirety.

9. Delete Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements V4 In its entirety and replace with
Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements V5.

The Altemative Life Center Amendment #3
RFP-2017-8BH-02-PEERS-06 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support ServlceB

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below, (

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

51-^1
Date I ' Name: Katja S. Fox

Title: Director

Date / '

The Alternative Life Center

Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

County ofState of i" rt . Countv of t)efore the\7on on
undersignea officer, personally appeared the person identified directly atjove, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capaci^ indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: BBEMDANR. FlIffTBCNotwvPiiilo
MyOoR»iMo«i&plmOoioiMr3,2023

The Allemative Life Center
RFP-aOIT-BSH-Oa-PEERS^e

Amendment #3

Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
exec^ion.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

ZL

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #3
RFP-2017.BBH-02-PEERS-06 Page 3 of 3



Nftw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A • Amendment #3

Scone of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

ttwy will provide to persons with limited Ei^lish proficiency to ensure meanin^l
access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire Ger^era) Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
artd expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliarx»
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services in accordance vwth NH
Administrative Rule He-M 402. Peer Support, that will:

1.3.1. Increase quality of life for persons living with mental Illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase hope for and belief In the possibility of recovery for persons living
vwth mental Illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to persons
livir^ with mental illness In NH.

1.3.4. Provide attematlves to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitalization.

1.3.5. Increase social connectedness for persons living with mental illness In NH.

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees to provide mental health peer support sendees to persons 18
years of age or older who s^-identify as a recipient, as a former reapient. or at a
significant risk of becoming a recipient of mental health senrices, and may include
persons who are homeless.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to give priority of peer support services to consumers who are
age sixty (60) and over, who are most social isolated, and/or risk of placement in the
public mental health service delivery system.

1.6. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of Part 2 substance use disorder (SUD)
information or records created by a Part 2 provider the information or records shall be
subject to all safeguards of 42 CFR Part 2.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide in-house and community based services for Region I as
ouMlrted In NH Administrative Rule He-M 425.03, Designation of Community Mental
Health Regions. Table 425-1, Towns and Cities by Region, and in accordance with
this Agreement.

The Alternative Life Center ExWbit A Amendment #3 Contraclof Initials:

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Page 1 of 19 Date:



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nongovernmental Peer Support
Agency.

2.2. Consumers are any individual. 18 years of age or oWer. who setf Identifiw as a
recipient, as a former recipient, or as a signrficant risk of becoming a reapient of
publicatly funded mental health services.

2.3. Culturally Competent means having attained the knowledge, skills, and attitudes
necessary to provide effective supports, services, education and techitical assistance
to the populatiorts In the I served by the Contractor.

2.4. Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding Saturday and
Sunday.

2.5. Guests are any persons who are invited to visit the Peer Support Agency by a
member, participant, or die Peer Support Agency.

2.6. Homeless is (1) an Individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence; or (2) an individual or family who has a primary nighttime
residence that is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to
provide temporary living accommodations (Including welfare hotels and congregate
shelters), an institution other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence
for Individuals intended to be institutionalized, or a pubkc or private place not
designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular steeping accommodation for human
beings.

2.7. Management staff means staff that Is responsible for supenrising other staff and
volunteers affiliated with the program.

2.8. Members are any consumers, wrho have made an Informed decision to join, and
agree to. abide by, and support the goals and objectives of peer support services.

2.9. Mental illness is defined in RSA 135-0:2 X, namely, "a substantial impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impainnent is manifested by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions. It does not
Include Impairment primarily caused by: (a) epilepsy; (b) inteltectual disability; (c)
contimjous or noncontlnuous periods of intoxication caused by substances such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as
alcohol or drugs."

2.10. Participant means a consumer, who is not member, who participates In any aspect of
peer support services.

2.11. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support to persons 18 year of age and older who
self- identify as having a mental illness.

2.12. Recovery means for a person with a mental illness, development of personal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice, Increase quality of life,
minimize or eliminate impairment, and' decrease dependence on professional
services.

2.13. Region Is the geographic area of cities and towns in New Hampshire, as defined by
the Departn>ent.

The Alternative Lite Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contrador Initials; , . . ,
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Mow Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2.14. Serious Mental Illness (SMI) refers to individuals whom the state defines as having
either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI)
pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2. XV.

2.15. Quarter or Quarterly is defined as the periods of July 1 through September 30,
October 1 through December 31. January 1 through March 31, and April 1 through
June 30.

2.16. Week is defined as Monday through Sunday.

3. Scope of Services
3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support, services that are provided for
consumers and by consumers . including, but not limited to:

3.1.1.1. Peer support services that include supportive interactions
shared experierKcs. acceptance, trust, respect, lived
experience, and mutual support among members, participants,
staff and volunteers.

3.1.1.2. No less than forty-four hours of peer support services each
week, by face-to-face or by telephone to members of a peer
support agency or others who coritact the agency.

3.1.1.3. Peer support services at a minimum based on the Intentional
Peer Support model that:

3.1.1.3.1. Foster recovery from mental lllriess by helping
individuals identify and achieve personal goals
while building an evolving vision of their recovery.

3.1.1.3.2. Foster self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and
independence.

3.1.1.3.3. Emphasize mutuality and reciprocity as
demonstrated by shared decisiorKnaking. strong
conflict resolution, non-medical approaches to
help, and non-static roles, such as, staff who are
members and members who are educators.

3.1.1.3.4. Offer alternative views on mental health, mental
Illness arxi the effects of trauma and abuse.

3.1.1.3.5. Encourage infonned decision-making about all
aspects of people's lives.

3.1.1.3.6. Support people with mental illness in challenglf>g
perceived self-limitations, while encouraging the
development of beliefs that enhance personal and
relational growth.

3.1.1.3.7. Emphasize a holistic approach to health that
Includes a vision of the \vhole' person. '

The AKemative Life Center ExNbit A Amendment #3 Contrartor Initidls;
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3 1.1.4. Provide opportunrties to learn weilness strategies, by using at a

minimum Wellnass Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and
Whole Health Action Management (WHAM), to ̂ eng^en a
member's and p^icipants ability to attain and maintain their
health and recovery from mental illness.

3.1.1.5. Provide in-house and community-based services according to
the Deliverables in Subsection 12.1 through 12.2,5.

3.1.1.6. Provide outreach by face-to-face or by telephone contact with
consumers by providing support to those who are unable to
attend agency activities, visiting people who are hospitalized
with a psychiatric corwlition. and reaching out to people who
meet membership criteria and are homeless.

3.1.1.7. Provide monthly newsletters published by the peer support
agency that describes agency senrices and activities, other
community services, social and recreational opportunities,
meml>er articles and contributions and ottier relevant topics that
might be of interest to members and participants.

3.1.1.8. Distribute the Newsletters to the members and other interested
parties, su^ as community mental health centers and other
appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business
days prior to the upcoming month.

31,1.9. Provide Monthly Education Events and Presentations of
information germane to "issues and concerns of consumers of
mental health services which shall include, education topics to
be covered over the course of the year, but not limited to;

3.1.1.9.1. Rights Protection.

3.1.1.9.2. Peer Advocacy,

3.1.1.9.3. Recovery.

3.1.1.9.4. Employment,

3.1.1.9.5. Wellness Management, and

3.1.1.9.6. Community Resources.

3.1.1.10. Provide at least 5 days prior to the beginning of the month, to
the Office of Consumer and Family Affairs within the
Department's Bureau of Behavioral Health, arnl the Mental
Health Block Grant State planner and Mental Health Block
Grant Advisory Council, both electronic and a paper copy of the
monthly newsletters and education events in Section 3.2.1.16
and Section 3.2.1.18.

3.1.1.11. Provide Individual Peer Assistance by assisting adults to:

3.1.1.11.1. Locate, obtain, and maintain mental health
services and supports through referral, consumer
education, and s^-empowerment.

The Alternative Life Center
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3.1.1.11.2. Support individuals who are Identifying problems
by assisting them in addressing the issue and/or in
resolving grievances.

3.1.1.11.3. Promote self-advocacy. ^

3.1.1.12. Provide Employment Education by assisting members with:

3.1.1.12.1. Information on obtaining and maintaining
competitive employmenl (any employment open to
the general public and achieved during the
quarter, even if employment is time limited).

3.1.1.12.2. Referrals to community mental health centers
employment programs.

3.1.1.12.3. Employment related activities such as. but not
limited to, resume writing, interviewirrg. or
assistance with employment applications.

3.1.1.13. Inform the members and general public about the peer
supports and wellness services available ar>d provide monthly
Community Education Presentations to potential referral
sources, funders. or families of individuals affected by mental
illness, about mental illness and the peer support community.

3.1.1.14. Inform local human service providers and the general public
about the stigma of mental illness, wellness and recovery ar^
collaborate with other local human service providers that serve
consumers in order to fadRtate referrals and share information
about services and other local resources.

3.1.1.15. Provide training and technical assistance to help consumers on
their own behalf regarding healthcare such as but not limited to.
sharing techniques for being ready for a doctor's appointment
how to take notes, how to use the physician's desk reference
book for medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.1.16. Invite guests to participate In peer support activities.

3.1.1.17. Provide residential support services as needed by members
and participants by providing support and assistance such as
but not limited to help with staying in their home or apartment,
or finding a place to live.

3.1.1.18. Maintain at least a monthfy schedule of peer support and
wellness services arvJ activities, staff development arxi training,
and other related events including community-based services
and community outreach events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests as follows:

3.2.1. Through use of a Contractor-owned or leased vehicle, the Contractor will:

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A ArTiendment #3 Contractor initials:
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3 211 Transport members, participants, guests to and from their
homes and/or the Contractor's peer support agency to
partidpate in activities such as but rrot lirnited to:

3.2.1.1.1. Peer Support Services.

3.2.1.1.2. Wellness and Recovery Activities.

3.2.1.1.3. Annual Conferences.

3.2.1.1.4. Regional Meetings.

3.2.1.1.5. Council Meetings.

3.2.2. Comply with all applicable Federal and State Department of Trartsportation
and Department of Safety regulations such as but not limited to:

3.2.2.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500.

%

3.2.2.2. Vehldes must be inspected in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule Saf-C 3200.

3.2.2.3. Drivers must be licensed In accordance with NH Administrative
Rule Saf-CiOOO. drivers licensing.

3.2.3. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehides sign a State of New Hampshire Release of Individual .Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form that shows the driver has a safe driving record

3.2.4. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehides complete a National Safety Coundl Defensive Driving
course offered through a State of New Hampshire approved agency.

3.3. The Contractor shall acknowledge that funding from the Department to support
transportation costs may not be used for other than peer support related activities
defined in this Agreement., and on an as needed basis to pay for bus rides that are
necessary to provide peer support services.

3 4 Peer Support Services to GlenclifT Home Residents

3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support senrices as In Exhibit
A, Section 3.1.1.3 once a month to Glencltff Home residents who have
approval from the Diredor of Nursing for said services as follows:

3.4.1.1. Provide in a group setting at Glendiff Home by a trairied Peer
Support Team Leader, for up to a one (1) hour session.

3.4.1.2. Schedule peer support group sessions at least two weeks in
advance on the meeting date with approval of the Glendiff
Home's Social Service Staff Member and Activities Diredor.

3.4.1.3. Maintain a list of Glendiff Home residents that attended each
peer support group session and provide a copy of the list to the
Sodal Service Staff member or Activities Diredor following
each group session.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A AmerxJment #3 Contrador Initials

RFP-2017-eBH-02-PEERS-06 Page 6 of 19 Date:



New Hempehire Depertmant of Health and Human Services
Pear Support Sarvlcaa

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

3.5. Warmline Services

3.5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide warmline services «iat offers on-caH
telephone peer support sendees to members, participants, and others that:
3.5.1.1. Are primarily provided to any individual who lives or works in

Region 1. or anyone who lives or works elsewhere In the State
of New Hampshire or out-of-state.

3.5.1.2. Are provided during the hours the peer support agency Is
closed.

3.5.1.3. Are mainly provided to Individuals in the Contractor's region
with the ability to receive calls from and make calls to
individuals statewide.

3.5.1.4. Assist individuals in addressing a cunrent crisis related to their
mental health.

3.5.1.5. Refer clients to appropriate treatment and other resources in
the consumer's service area.

3.5.1.6. Are provided by staff that is trained in providing crisis services.

3.5.1.7. May include outreach calls described in Section 3.2.1.5

4, Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services
4.1. The Contractor will provide services in this Agreement to individuals who live or work

in Region 1, and services for cortsum^ statewide.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local mental health center, unless pre-approved by the DepartmenL

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a physical location/buildir>g to provide peer support
services that are in accordance with Exhibit C Section 15 and with the Life Safety
requirements that include but not limited to:

4.3.1. A building in compliance with local health, building and fire safety codes.

4.3.2. A building that is maintained in good repair and be free of hazard.

4.3.3. A building that includes:

4.3.3.1. At least one Indoor bathroom which includes a sink and toilet.

4.3.3.2. At least one telephone for incomir>g and outgoing calls.

4.3.3.3. A functioning seplic or other sewage disposal system.

4.3.3.4. A source, of potable water for drinking and food preparation as
follows:

4.3.3.4.1. If drinking water Is supplied by a non-public water
system, the water shall be tested and found to be
in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative
Rules Env-Ws 315 and Env-Ws 316 initially and
every five (5) years thereafter.

The Aitemative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor initialsitials:
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4.3.3.4.2. If the water is not approved for drinking, an
alternative method for providing safe drinking
water Shan be implemented.

5. Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a Peer
Support Agency
5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services to individuals defined in

Section 1.4 and 1.5 who haw a de^e to work on wellness issues, and who have a
willing desire to participate in services.

5.2. The Contractor will request consumers complete a membership application to join and
support the activities arKi mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.3. The Contractor agrees that the membership application shall state the minimum
engagement policy, suspension of membership policy, rules of membership, and that
the consumer supports the misskjn of the Peer Support Agency.

5.4. The Contractor agrees to provide services in this Contract to any consumers who are
non-members or memt)ers participating In sen/Ices.

6. Staffing Requirements for a Peer Support Agency
6.1. The Contractors shall employ an executive director who:

6.1.1. Is appointed by the board of directors.

6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the board of directors in
accordance with the published job description and competitive application
process.

6.1.3. Has at a minimum the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One year of supervisory or management experience, and
6.1-3.1.1. An associate's degree or higher administration,

business management, education, health, or
human services; or

6.1.3.1.2. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience: or

6.1.3.1.3. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the board of directors to ensure that peer support
and wellness services and activities are provided In accordance with.

6.1.4.1. The performance expectations approved by the board.
6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules.

6.1.4.3. The Contract terms and conditions.

6.1.4.4. The Quality Improvement reviews.

6.2. The,Contractor shall provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified In this
Agreement

The Alternative Life Center Extiibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials: _S5_
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6.3. The CorUfactor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry ̂  all
of the furKtions, requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion for the number of
clients as identified in Section 11.

6 4 The Contractor shall select and employ staff utilizing practices and procedur^ as
approved by the Department, that include at a minimum, assurance that offers^

^  employment are made in writing and include salary, start date, hc^ to wtwed
and job responsibilities, and that prior employment references shall be obtained and
verified.

6.5. The Contractor shall screen each staff member for tut)erculosis prior to employment.
6 6 The Contractor shall complete a Criminal Record Check, and submit the names of a

prospective employee who may have client contact, for review by the Department, to
assure that any person who is In regular corrtart with members and who becomes
employed by the Contractor or its Subcontractor after the Effective Date of this
Agreement is screened for criminal convictions In accordance RSA 106-B:14
which allovirs any public or private agency to request and receive a copy of the
criminal conviction record of another who has provided authorization in writing, duly
notarized, explicitly allowing the requester to receive such information.

6.7. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund. or transfer among programs staff
positions without prior written permission from the Department.

6 8 The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and shaU submit their
written Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty days of the effective
date of \he contract that includes but not be limited to:

6.8.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key
personnel or other personnel during the period of this Agreement.

6.8.2. The description of how additional staff resources will be allocated to support
this Agreement in the event of inability to meet any performance standard.

6.8.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements.
6.8.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely

manner, staff replacementsfadditions with comparable experience.

6.9. The Contractor shall submit a staffing emergency plan within thirty days of the
effective date If the contract that includes, but not limited to;

6.9.1. Inclement vi/eather notifications for programming and transportation services.
6.9.2. Emergency evacuation plans for the Agency.

7. Staff Training and Development
7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have

appropriate training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities
of their respective positions, by keeping up-to^ate personnd and training records
and documentation of all individuals. Staff training shall be In accordance with NH
State Rule He-M 402.05.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide orientation for all new staff providir>g peer support that
includes, but not limit^ to:

7.2.1. The statewide peer support system.

The Altemative Lite Center ExNbit AAmendmenl #3 Contractor Initials:
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7.2.2. Alt Department policies and rules applicable to the peer support.

7.2.3. Protection of member and participant rights.

7.2.4. Contractor policies and procedures.

7.2.5. PSA grievance procedures.

7.2.6. Harassment, discrimination, and diversity.

7.2.7. Documentation such as incident reports. atterrdarKe records, arKl telephone
logs.

7.2.8. Confidentiarrty according to applicable state rule, Department policy and
state and federal laws.

7.3. The Contractor stiall develop and implement written staff development policies
applicable to all staff that specifically address the following:

7.3.1. Job Descriptions.

7.3.2. Staffing pattem.

7.3.3. Conditions of employment.

7.3.4. Grievance procedures.

7.3.5. Performance reviews.

7.3.6. Individual staff development plans.

7.3.7. Prior employment or volunteer work, each staff member or votunteer shall
demonstrate evidence of or willingness to verify:

7.3.7.1. Citizenship or authorization to work.

7.3.7.2. Motor Vehicle Records check to ensure that potential employee
has a valid driver's license and a safe driving record if such
employee will be transporting members or participants.
Records must also indicate participation in a National Safety
Council Defensive Driving course offered through a State of
New Hampshire approved agency.

7.3.7.3. Criminal Records Check.

7.3.7.4. Previous employment.

7.3.7.5. References.

7.4. The Contractor shall screen each staff member, prior to employment, for tuberculosis
(IB) as follows:

7 4 1 All newly employed employees, including those with a history of bacille
calmette guerin (BCG) vaccination, who will have direct contact with
members and participants and the potential for occupationai exposure to
Mantoux TB through shared air space with persons with infectious TB shall
have a TB symptom screen, consistir»g of a Mantoux tuberculin skin test or
QuantiFERON-TB lest, performed upon employment.

The Alternative Ltfe Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initiats;
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7.4.2. Baseline two-step testing, If performed in association with Mantoux testing,

shall be conducted in accordance with the Guidelines for Environmerital
Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities (2003) published by the Centers
for Disease Control arKi Prevention (CDC).

7 4 3 Employees with a documented history of TB. documented Nstory of a
positive Mantoux test, or documented completion of treatrront for TB
disease or latent TB infection may substitute that documentation for the
baseline two-step test.

7.4.4. All positive TB test results shall be reported to the departments bureau of
disease control. 271-4469. in accordance with RSA 141-0:7, He-P 301.02
and He-P 301.03.

7 4.5. All employees with a diagnosis of suspect active pulmonary or laryngeal TB
shall be excluded from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB Is excluded or until
the employee is on TB treatment and a determination has been made that
the employee is noninfectious.

7.4.6. All employees with a newly posrtrve tuberculin skin test shall be excluded
from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB disease is ruled out.

7.4.7. Repeat TB testing shall be conducted in accordance with the CpC's
Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities
(2003).

7.4.8. Those employees with a history of previous positive results shall have a
symptom screen and, if symptomatic for TB disease, be referred for a
medical evaluation.

7.5. The Contractor shall complete an annual performance review based on the staff's job
description and conducted by his or her supervisor.

7.6. The Contractor shall complete a staff development plan annually with each staff
person by his or her supervisor that is based upon the staffs annual performanc»
review, and that includes objectives and methods for improving the staff person s
work-related skPIs and knowledge.

7.7. The Contractor shall conduct or refer staff to training activities that address objectives
for Improving staff competencies and according to the staffs development plan, along
wrth ongoing training In protection of member and participant rights.

7.8. The Contractor agrees to maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed
trainings and certificatior^s.

7.9. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval 30 days prior to the training date, for
all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered by the
Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as but not limited to:

7.9.1. Peer Support.

7.9.2. Warmline.

7.9.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups.

7.9.4. Sexual Harassment.

7.9.5. Member Rights.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initiate:
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7.10. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its required
consultations to meet certification a minimum of every other year.

7.11. The Contractor agrees that if Intentional Peer Support Is not t)eing offer^ In a given
year the Contractor shall provide Wellness, Recovery, and Planning training to staff.

7.12. The Contractor agrees that Administrative staff, inciuding the Executive Director, shall
participate In trainings on;

7.12.1. Staff Development.

7.12.2. Supervision.

7.12.3. Perfonnance Appraisals.

7.12.4. Employment Practices.

7.12.5. Harassrr^ent.

7.12.6. Program Development.

7.12.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process.

7.12.8. Financial Management.

7.13. The Contractor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training is, available to staff
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a peer support agency in the region.

7.14. The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department at least five (5) days
prior to the training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either ttie
Department or the Contractor.

7.15. The Contractor shall provide documentation to the Department, wrthin 30 days from
the training In Section 7.14. which demonstrates the staff person(s) participation and
completion of said training

7.16. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Support Agencies to offer combined
trainings to facilitate more efficient use of training funds and to increase the scope of
trainings offered.

7.17. The Contractor shall purge all data In accordance with the Instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support sendees within the prior two-year period.

8. Composition and Responsibilities of a Peer Support Agency
8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a Peer Support Agency by.

8.1.1. Being incorporated with the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-profit
agency.

8.1.2. Having a plan for governance that requires a Board of Directors who;
8.1.2.1. Have the responsibility for the entire management and control

of the proper^ and affairs of the rorporation.
8.1.2.2. Have the powers usually vested in the board of directors of a

non-for-pr^ corporation.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
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8.1.2.3. Are comprised of no fewer than 9 individuals with at least 51%
of the indivkluals who setf-identrfy as consumers.

8.1.2.4. Less 20% of the board members are related by blood,
marrla9e, or cohabitation to other board members.

8.1.2.5. Establish and maintain the bylaws that include, but are not
limited to:

8.1.2.5.1. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of
Directors.

8.1.2.5.2. Tenn limits for the board of director officers that
shall not aHow more than 20% of the board
members to serve for more than 6 consecutive
years.

8.1.2.5.3. Nominating process that actively recruits diverse
indivkluals whose skills and life experiences will
serve the needs of the agency.

8.1.2.5.4. A procedure by which inactive peer support
agency members are removed from the peer
support agency board.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit to the Department within 5 days, a corrective action plan
with time frames when the Board of Directors membership f^ls below the required
minimum of nine (9).

8.3. The Contractor shall submit to the Department and NH Department of Justice.
Division of Charitable Trusts and the Department, and updated list of current board
members and a corrective action plan with timeframes when the Board of Directors
membership falls below the State of New Hampshire minimum required number of
five (5).

8;4. The Contractor shall have written descriptions outlining the duties of the members
and officers of the board of directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the
members and officers of the board of directors.

8.6. The Contractor shall have annual trainings related to the members and officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fidudary responsibilities.

8.7. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval of agency financial policies and procedures that includes, but not
be limited to, the following:

6.7.1. Cash Management including cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty
cash.

8.7.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets.

8.7.3. Internal Control Procedures.

8.7.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

8.8. The Contractor shall have open attendance to peer support agency members during a
portion of a board meeting.
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8.9. The Contractor shall publish the tirnes and locations of Board of Director meetngs In
an effort to encourage peer support agency member attendance.

8.10. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall:

8.10.1. Maintain written records (board minutes) of their meetings including but not
limited to, topics discussed, voles and actions taken, and a monthly review
of the agency's financial status and make the minutes available to the
Department, as requested.

8.10.2. Maintain a current Board of Director list, Including txit not fimited to, member
name, board office held, address, phone number, e-mail address, date
jolrred, and term expiration date.

8.10.3. Maintain documentation of the process and resutts of annual board
electiorrs.

8.10.4. Notify the Department immedlatety in writing of any change in board
membership.

8.11. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department upon request a
policy manual that at a minimum Includes policies for:

8.11.1. Human Resources.

8.11.2. Staff Development.

8.11.3. Financial Responsibilities.

8.11.4. Protection for member and participant rights.

8.12. The Contractor shall pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer
support services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may
not pay for under this Agreement.

9. Participation in Statewide/Regional Meetings
9.1. The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of individuals for serving on

local, regional ar>d state mental health policy, planning and advisory initiatives.
Participation of individuals shall be from other than tlie Contractor's employees who
provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training events.

9.2. The Contractor's Executive Director, or designee. shall attend the Department's
monthly Peer Support Directors" meeting that is held for the purpose of information
exchange, support, and strer>gthening of the statewide Peer Support system.

9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, e.g., mental health
centers, area honreiess shelters, community action programs, housing agencies, etc.,

9.4. The Contractor shall submit to the Department written documentation demonstrating
attendance at the meetirtgs, but not limited to, the meetings in Section 9.2 and 9.3.

10. Grievance and Appeals
10.1. The Contractor shall submit, for Department approval, a grievance and appeals

process that includes, but is not limited to:

10.1.1. Receiving complaints orally, or in writing that include but are not limited to.
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10.1.1.1. Consumer name.

10.1.1.2. Date of written grievance.

10.1.1.3. Nature/subject of the grievance.

10.1.1.4. A method to submit an anonymous complaint.

10.1.2. Assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process including but
not limited to filing a complaint.

10.1.3. Tracking complaints.

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participants rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants.

10.1.5. An Immediate review of the complaint arwl investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her designee.

10.1.6. A process to atteriipt to resolve every grievance for which a formal
investigation is requested.

10.1.7. Following completion of a formal investigation, the board of directors of the
PSA shall issue a written decision to the member or participant within 20
business days setting forth the disposition of ttie gnevarKe.

10.1.8. Submitting a copy of the written decision in Section 10.1.7 of the complaint
to the Department within 10 days from the written decision.

10.1.9. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal the written
decision made in Section 10.1.7.

11. Reporting

11.1. The Contractor shall report on forms provided by the Department a list of the trained
individuals as In Section 7.

11.2. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 3Dth of the morith. the prior
month's interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss Statements:

11.2.1. Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available
to cover the cost of current liabilities by using the following formula; Total
current assets divided by total current liabilities. The Contractor shall
maintain a minimum current ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance allowed.

11.2.2. Accounts Payable that measures the Contractor's timeliness in paying
Invoices. The Contractor shall not have outstanding invoices greater than
sixty (60) days.

112 3. Budget Management that compares budget to actual revenues and
expenses to determine on a year -to-date basis the percentage of the
Contractors budget executed year-to-date.

11.2.3.1. Performance Standard: Revenuesshall be equal to or greater
than the year-to-date calculation. Expenses shall be equal to or
less than the year-to-date calculation.

The ABemative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
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11.3. The Contractor shall make prior months Board of Director meeting minutes available
to the Department, as requested, including all attachments such as, but not limited to
the Executive Director's report.

11.4. The Contractor will prepare an Annual Report presentation for the benefit of the
Mental Health Block Grant Advisory Council.

11.5. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly written report to the Department, on a form
supplied by the Departnient, no later than the 30th of the month following the quarter
regarding;

11.5.1. Community outreach activities as outlined in Section 12, Deliverables,
Subsection 12.3.

11.5.2. Compilation of program evaluation and surveys submitted in the past
quarter.

11.5.3. Quarterly peer support service deliverables as identified on templates
provided by the department.

11.5.4. Quarterly statistical data including, but not limited to:

11.5.5. The total number of unduplicated participants served on a daily basis.

11.5.6. The total number of currerrt members, defined as only those members who
have t>een served within the past year.

11.5.7. Program utilization totals by percentage.

11.5.8. Number of telephone peer support contacts.

11.5.9. Number and description of outreach activities.

11.5.10. Number and description of educational events provided:

11.5.10.1. On-site; and/or

11.5.10.2. In the community.

11.6. The Contractor shall provide a report for Department approval by July 31 of each ,
State Fiscal Year which outlines:

11.6.1. Specific steps ttie Contractor has taken to increase membership in the
previous State Fiscal Year.

11.6.2. A plan for how the Contractor shall Increase the unduplicated numbers
served in the above activities by ten (10) percent of the total served in the
previous year, for each subsequent State Fiscal Year.

11.6.3. Monthly livhouse schedules/calendars and newsletters.

11.6.4. Quarteriy revenue and expenses by cost, category and locations.

11.6.5. Quarterly Capital Expenditure Report.

11 6 6. Quarterly Auditor's Report; The prior three (3) months of monthly interim
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements including separate
statements for related parties that are certified by an officer of the reporting
entity to measure the agency's fiscal Integrity.
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12. Deliverables

12.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of in-house services at
each Center each week which include, but are not limrted to:

12.1.1. New topics introduced at least monthly.

12.1.2. A minimum of five (5) separate discussion groups per that address
emotional wehbeing topics virtuch may rnciude, but are not limited to:

12.1.2.1. IPS.

12.1.2.2. WRAP.

12.1.2.3. WHAM.

12.1.2.4. Setting boundaries.

12.1.2.5. Positive thinking.

12.1.2.6. Weilness

12.1.2.7. Stress management

12.1.2.8. Addressing trauma.

12.1.2.9. Reduction of negative or intrusive thoughts.

12.1.2.10. Management of emotional states Including, but not limited to:
12.1.2.10.1. Anger.

12.1.2.10.2. Depression.

12.1.2.10.3. Anxiety.

12.1.2.10.4. Mania

12.1.3. A minimum of five (5) discussion or practice groups per week that address
physical wellbeing topics which may Include, but are not limited to:

12.1.3.1. Smoking cessation.

12.1.3.2. Weight loss.

12.1.3.3. Nutrition/Cooking.

12.1.3.4. Physical exercise.

12.1.3.5. MIndfulness activities including, but not limited to:

12.1.3.5.1. Yoga.

12.1.3.5.2. Meditation.

12.1.3.5.3. Joumaling.

12.1.4. A minimum of four (4) activity groups per week that that provide positive
skin-building activities which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.4.1. Arts and crafts.

12.1.4.2. Music expression.

12.1.4.3. Creative writing.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractcx
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12.1.4.4. Cooking.

12.1.4.5. Sewing.

12.1.4.6. Gardening.

12.1.4.7. Movies.

12.1.5. A minimum of one (1) group per week based on topics relevant to fostering
independence which may Include, but are rtot limited to;

12.1.5.1. Online blogs or articles that relate to mental health.

12.1.5.2: Obtaining employment.

12.1.5.3. Budgeting.

12.1.5.4. Decision-making.

12.1.5.5. Seif-advocacy.

12.2. The Contractor shall provide community-based services Including, but not limited to a
minimum of one (1) trip into the community per month for an activity which may
include, but not be Bmrted to:

12.2.1. Visit to a natural setting.

12.2.2. Volunteer opportunity.

12.2.3. Visit to a museum.

12.2.4. Visit to a local historical site.

12.2.5. Visit to local farms or gardens.

12.3. The Contractor shall provide community outreach including, but not limited to:

12.3.1. Providing monthly community education presentations to potential referral
sources, funders, or families of individuals affected by mental illness, about
mental illness and the peer support community indudrng, but not limited to:

12.3.1.1. Local psychiatric hospitals.

12.3.1.2. Local mental health clinics.

12.3.1.3. Local community events.

12.3.2. Providing monthly educational events and presentations of information to
members, participants, or other individuals seeking support and information
relating to the Issues and concerns of consumers of mental health services
which shall trtdude, but not be limited to educational topics to be covered
over the course of the year such as:

12.3.2.1. Rights protection.

12.3.2.2. Peer Advocacy.

12.3.2.3. Recovery.

12.3.2.4. Employment.

12.3.2.5. Wellness Management.

12.3.2.6. Community Resources.
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13. Quality Improvement
13.1. The Contractor shall participate In quality program reviews and site visits on a

scheduled provided by the Department. All contract deliverables, programs, and
activities shall be subject to review during this time. These reviews shall result in a
report and potential conBCtive action.

13.2. The Contractor shall partidpale in quality assurance reviews as fottows:

13.2.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract
compliance requirements as identified In 0MB Circular A-133.

13.2.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that includes but is not
limited to;

13.2.2.1. Data.

13.2.2.2. Financial records.

13.2.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work sites/locations/work
spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work sites/locations/work
spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff.

13.3. The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities IrKduding but not limited to:

13.3.1. Participate In bi-annual quality improvement review as in Section 13.1.

13.3.2. Participate In ongoing monitoring and reporting based on the bi-annual
review and corrective action plan submitted in conjunction with the
Department artd Contractor.

13.3.3. Conduct member satisfaction surveys provided by and as instructed the
Department.

13.3.4. Review of personnel files for completeness.

13.3.5. Review of complaint process.

13.4. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty
(30) days from the date the Department notifies the Contractor is not in compliance
with the contract.

The Alternative Ufe Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contrador Initialsiais:
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
of the General Provisions of this Agreement, Form P-37. for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:

2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services, the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Community Mental
Health Senrices Block Grant (CFDA #93.958/ FAIN# B09SM010035-19).

2.3. Federal funds from the Designated State Health Program (DSHP) (CFDA #93.778).

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhltxt A, Scope of Services in compliance
with funding requirements in Section 2 above.

4. The Department may make an initial payment to the Contractor each July of an amount
determine by the Department as necessary for the Contractor to initiate services each
State Fiscal Year.

5. Subsequent to the action in Section 4, the Department shall make monthly payments to the
Contractor based upon cash reimbursement as submitted by the Contractor to maintain
services and approved by the Department, of the Department approved budget amounts in
Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3.

5.1. In no event shall the total of the initial payment in Section 4 and monthly payments In
Section 5 exceed the budget amounts s^ forth in Section 5.

5.2. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the budget identified in Section 5 as approved
by the Department.

5.3. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the Departmerrt In accordance
with applicable state and federal laws arxi regulations.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to the budget amounts identified in Section 5. to adjust amounts within
the budgets, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of tx)th parties
and may t)e made without otitalning approval of Govemor and Executive Council.

7. Payment for services provided in Exhibit A Scope of Services shall be made as follows;

7.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied forms, by the tenth
(lO"*) working day of each month, which Identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses Incurred in 8te prior month.

7.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor on actual expenditures, within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each Department-approved invoice for Contractor services
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

7.3. The invoice must be submitted to:
Financial Manager
Bureau of Mental Health

' Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street. Main Building
Concord. NH 03301

The Aftcmative Ue Center ExWbM B - Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
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8. The Contractor shall provide its Revenue and Expense Budget on Budget Form A supplied
by the Department, within twenty (20) cateixlar days of the contract effective date and then
twenty (20) days from the beginning of each fiscal year thereafter.

9. The Contractor shall provide quarterly Revenue and Expense Reports on Budget Form A.
within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each fiscal quarter, defined as July 1 to
September 30, October 1 to December 31, January 1 to March 31. and Apnl 1 to June 30.

10. The Contractor shall provide supporting documentation, when required by the Department,
to support evidence of actual expenditures, in accordarKe with the Department approved
budgets in Section 5.

11. Any expervjrture that exceeds the approved budgets in Section 5 shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

12. When the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the Department for the duration of lt»e contract period.

13. Funding may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

14. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of norwompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if ̂  said
services have not b^n completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement

15. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds not used. In whole or in
part, for the purposes stated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one hundred and
twenty (120) days of the Completion Date.

16. Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of each State Fiscal Year to submit to
the Department final invoices for payment Any adjustments made to a prior invoice wll
need to be accompanied by suppo^ng documentation.

The Aftemalive Ute Centaf B - Amendment #3 Contrador triliab.
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Exhibit B-4 • Amendment

8FY2020 Budget

^  New Hampshire Depaitment of Heatth and Human Servtcee
Contractof Name; Aitofnative Life Center

budget Request for Peer Support Servicoe - Reqion 1

Budget Pertod-. SPY20 (7/1/19 through 6/30>20)

MO PERSONNEL COSTS

601 Satarv & Wanes 260.SS2

602 Emolovee Benefit 41.617

60:t Pavrell taxes 21.485

Subtotal 342,954

620 PROFESSIONAL FEES

7.725624 Accountina

625 Audit Fees

626 Local Fees 30

627 Other Professionai Fees and Consutlanis
Subtotal 7,755

S30 STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING HUllHaUUaiUUaS
631 Publicalions and Journals

632 IrvSefvice TralrWxi 3.000

633 Conferences and Conventions

634 Ottter Staff Devdopcnenl

Subtotal 3,000

640 OCCUPANCY COSTS

641 Rent 48.941

R42 Mortoaoe Pavments

643 Heatinq Costs

644 Other Utilities 4.600

645 Maintenance and Reoaire 938

646 Taxes

647 Other OccuDancv Costs
SUXolal 54.479

650 CONSUMABLE SUPPUES tegBMBIilMWlllllUM

1.310651 Office

652 Etiiildirvi/Household BOO

653 RehabUitation/Tralnino

655 Food 0

657 Other Cortsumabic Suoolies

Subtotal 2,110

Othar Expenses

660 CAPITAL EXPENDfTURES
666 CFPRFCIATION

670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400

660 FOIIiPMENT MAINTENANCE

700 ADVERTISING 0

710 PRINTING

720 TELEPHONE/COMMUNICATIONS 3.000

730 POSTAGE^HIPPING 650

Subtotal 6.050

740 TRANSPORTATION

741 Board hAembers

742 Staff 8.000

743 Members and PartidosntS 4.000

SubtotaJ 12,000

750 Assistance to Individuals

751 Client Services

752 ClotNna

Subtotal 0

760 INSURANCE
0761 Matoractice & Bondinq

762 Votiides 0

763 Comorehensive Prooenv & liatxiitv 0

800 OTHER EXPENDITURES

801 INTEREST EXPENSE

Subtotal 0

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES $42S,34S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foiiowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations wt>ere persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meanir^ 'Computer Security
Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data' means all confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Sut)stance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identrfiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Senrices (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This i^ormation Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pi). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promu^ated thereunder.

6. 'Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial cf service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any networt( or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected r^twork (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network artd not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, persor^al
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which Is linked
or linKable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, another's maiden
name. etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Starxlards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 artd 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Infonnation at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conftdentia! Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined urxier this Contract. Further, Contractor,
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees arxl agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibii K Contractor INtiais FX
OHHS Information

Security Requirementsmiy Keqwremeno .a
Page2of• Date ' ' 7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and alMve those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additlona) restrictiorrs and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor c^rees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data t^tween applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such infonmation.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a W^b site.

5. File Hosting Services, also knovim as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. arid when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
rerrwtely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol. If
End U^r is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data wiU be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, trar^er or process data coilected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capatHlities, and irKludes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAn^P/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicabte statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy arid security. All servers and devices must have
curently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyvrare, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

8. Disposition

1. If the Corttractor will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sut>-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any sut>contractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with. Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzatlon, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-68, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanltization, National Institute of Standards ar>d Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request The written certific^lon will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard ̂ pies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

)

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECUfVTY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as foDows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure d^ruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, di^, paper, etc.).

VS.Lasr update IWOana E>«bHK Contfactoftrtters
DHHS InfonriBlion

Securrty Requremeots . . _
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DHHS Information Secuilty Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contrador systems that colled, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
wtiere applicable.

4. The Cofrtradof will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
deted potential security events that can impad State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contrador provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of proteclir^ Departmertt (xWidential information.

6. If the Contrador will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contrador will maintain a
program of an irrtemal process or processes that defines spedfic security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contrador. irxiuding breach notification requirements.

7. The Contrador will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access arHj authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining arvi maintaining access to any Department system(6). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contrador and any applicable sub-contradors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contrador is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contrador will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contrador will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department ar>d
Contrador to monitor for any changes in risks, tiireats, and vulnerabilrties that may
occur over the life of the Contrador engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contrador. or the Departmerrt may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contrador chaniges.

10. The Contrador will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contrador shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contrador all costs of response and recovery from

p-/f
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DHHS information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Infomnatlon, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 562a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually idontifiable health
Information and as applicabie under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a leve) and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https^/www.nh.gov/doitArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guideimes, standards, and
procurement information relating to verxtors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at ttie email addresses
provided In S^lon VI. This Includes a confidentiat information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to onty those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in conrrection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, ttieft or inadvertent disdosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Infomiatlon onty if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last update ICVOS/lfl Exhibit K Contractof Initials
OHHS Irrfonnation
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidentiai inforrnation received under this Contract and IndividuaRy
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometrlc identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable Information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV 3t>ove.

h. In alt other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users win keep their credential information secure.
This applies to aedentlals used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract. Including the privacy and security requirements provided m herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulatiorts until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Inddent Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliarK» with all applicable obl^ations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Corrtractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is Involved in incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
aiKl determine risk-based responses to inctdents; and

vs. Lest update 10/09/18 ExhtoitK Contraetof I nitials iP̂
DHHS Information
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5. Oetermlne whether Breach fK)tification is required, and, rf so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options,~'and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicatXe, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformatk)nSecurityOffic8@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Lasi update 1(V09/>8 E;diibilK Conlfacioftnittala
DHHS Information
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
CommiasioDer

KetjaS. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

1» PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03MJ
603.271.9422 l4t00452.334S Ext. M22

Fex:6Q3.271.S431 TDD Acmm: 1-M0-73S.2964 www^lifiajiLBOv

May 16. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Behavioral Health,
Bureau of Mental Health Services, to exercise renewal options to agreements with the
vendors listed below to continue providing peer, support services to adults with mental
Illness, by Increasing the price limitation by $2,760,679 from $5,520,158 to $8,280,837,
and by extending the contract completion dates from June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019,
effective upon approval by the Governor and Executive Council. Funding is
55.45%Federa!, 44.55% General Funds

2) Upon approval of Request #1. authorize the Department to process advance payments of
up to a maximum of one-twelfth (1/12th) of each contract price limitation for State Fiscal
Year 2019.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 29,
2016 (Item #23), and amended on June 21,2017 (Item #38).

Vendor Location
Current

Amount

Increase

Amount

Revised

Amount

Connection Peer Support Center Portsmouth, NH $489,644 $244,822 ■ $734,466

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support
Center of Greater Nashua Region

VI

Nashua, NH $764,156 $382,078 $1,146,234

Lakes Region Consumer
Advisory Board

Laconia, NH $678,758 $339,379 $1,018,137

Monadnock Area Peer Support
Agency

Keene, NH $528,228 $264,114 $792,342

On the Road to Recovery, Inc. Manchester, NH $885,716 $442,858 $1,328,574

The Stepping Stone Drop-In
Center Association

Claremont, NH $756,690 $378,345 $1,135,035

The Alternative Life Center Conway. NH $1,047,752 $524,476 $1,572,228

Tri-Clly Consumers' Action Co
operative

■Rochester. NH $369,214 $184,607 $553,821

Totals $5,520,168 $2,760,679 $8,280,837
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Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 with authority to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

Please see attached financial detail.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for continuation of peer support services to adults with
long-term and/or severe mental illness at Peer Support Agencies. The Contractors provide
services that enhance personal weliness, independence, and recovery by reducing crises due
to symptoms of mental illness. Peer support services include supportive Interactions and
shared experiences using an Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental
illness and self-advocacy skills.

Peer support services teach weliness self-management, and provide outreach through
face-to-face meetings, or telephone calls, to provide continued support to individuals who may
not be able to attend face-to-face peer support service meetings. Telephone peer support
services are available statewide to assist individuals who may experience mental health crises
during hours when the contractors' agencies are closed for business. These eight (8) Peer
Support Agency contractors expect to serve a total of 3,990 individuals through these contract
amendments.

Contractors produce a monthly newsletter to inform members, participants, community
mental health centers, community organizations, and the public about services and ongoing
activities at the agency. Activities include skills trainings and educational events for members
to learn about topics such as symptom management and how to navigate services, local
education and community outreach efforts around stigma, weliness, and recovery, and
me^ings with other human service providers to facilitate appropriate referrals. The
nev\rsletters and documentation of monthly trainings, educational meetings, and community
outreach events are submitted on a monthly basis to the Department.

The DHHS conducts a review of all contracted Peer Support Agency policies and
procedures to ensure they are at! up to date, on file, and meet expectations of the contract.
Ongoing tracking and oversight is maintained by the Department. Contractors produce
quarterly statistical data reports that are submitted to the Department based on contract
deliverables. Monthly reports are submitted that include a list of trained staff and trainings they
have completed, service utilization data, program activity data, revenue and expense by cost
and program category, a Capital Expenditure Report, an Interim Balance Sheet, a Profit and
Loss statement, and all Board Meeting Minutes. If items are not being met a corrective action
plan is required. The Contractor also prepares an annual report for. presentation to the
Department and Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council. Each contractor undergoes a
bi-annual quality improvement review and participates In ongoing monitoring and reporting
based on these reviews. Each contractor conducts member satisfaction surveys as requested
by the department and at any time the contractor Is found out of compliance, the agency has
30 days to submit a corrective action plan to ensure compliance Is regained.

Approval of the advance payment for each of,the eight (8) contractors will allow them to
continue to cover operating expenses. If approved, the total advance payment amount will not
exceed $331,281. The funds will be used to cover day to day costs that include payroll and
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occupancy. The Department considers advance payment to these vendors as a rjecessary
method to ensure ongoing services for the clients that they serve. The Department is in close
communication with these agencies and monitors their financial status on an ongoing basis.

Language in the eight (8) contracts reserves the Department's right to renew each
contract for up to four (4) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds,
satisfactory performance of the contractors, and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council hot approve this request, 3,990 individuals
may not have access the valuable support that they rely on to manage their symptoms of
mental illness. Some individuals may require a higher level of service, including hospltalization,
should these peer support services become unavailable.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 44.55% General Funds and 55.45% Federal Funds from United
States Department of Health and Human Services, Block Grants for Community Mental Health
Services. Catalog of Federal Domestic Award (CFDA) 93.958. and Federal Award
identification Number (FAIN) SM010035-18

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox"
Director

Approved by:
Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

. T7)0 DcptrUncnt of HQ9ltH ond Human Sarvicas' Mis&ion is la join convnuniiies and fa/n^s
in providing opportunHias forciiizans to achieve haai^ and indapendence.



Financial Details for Peer Support Services

(»-85-92.920010-7t43 HEALTH AMD SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTI1 DIV OF. 01V
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Fadoral Funds

Actn^ty code: 02207U3

The AltwrwUve Ltfe Center

Vendor ioeesol

Sute Fiteai Y«tf Class Title CIsss Account Current BudQet
Amount Incraasef

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Cor>troas (ot Proa Sve 102-500731 $290,154 SO S280154

2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $290,154 $0 S290.154

2.019 Contrects tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO so $0

Subtotal $580,308 so S580.$08

The Stfpoint) Stone DrotMn Center Aeeoclslion

Vendor# 157957

SUte Fiscal Year CtossTlUe Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Oacrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts fbr Proo Svs 102-500731 $209 790 $0 $209,790

2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 ' $209,790 SO $209 790
2.019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

Subtotsi $419,580 $0 1419.580

Lakes Repion Consumer AtMsorv Board

Vendor# 157060

Sifile Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease}

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts fbr Proo Svs 102-500731 $188183 SO $188,183
2.018 Contracts fbr Proo Svs 102-500731 $188183 SO $188,183
2.019 Contrects for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO $0 SO

Subtotal $375^68 $0 $376,366

Monad nock Area Peer Suooort AgertcY

Vertdor# 157973

SUle Piecsl Year Class Title Claes Account Current Budget
Amount Increase!

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $145,449 SO $148,449
2.018 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $148,449 $0 $148,449
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 $0 SO

Subtotal- $292,898 $0 $292,898

H.GJLR.T.S. Peer SoPDOrt Center of Greater Nashua Reg on VI
Vendor # 209287

Slate FfscalYear Class Title Class Aecoimt Currant Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Centrads for Proa Svs 102-500731 S21188Q SO $211,880

2 018 Corttracls for Proo Svs 102-600731 ■  $211,890 SO $211,860
2.019 Contractt for Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 so SO

Subtotal $423,720 so $423,720

Pjcelofe



Financial Details for Peer Supporl Services

On th« Road to Rocovory. Inc.

Vendor* ISSSSg

State Plscil YMt Class Tin* Claia Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Oocrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 S245.562 SO S24S.562
2.016 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-600731 J245.862 SO S245 562
2.010 Contmm ftw Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

Subtotal 1491.124 SO S491.124

Connections Peer Suooort Center

Verier #157070

Slate Fiscal Year Class Tide Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S135751 $0 S13S.751
2.018 Contrada for Pma Svs 102-600731 5135.751 SO S135 7.51
2.019 Cordmcts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal S271.602 SO S271.B02

Tri-Cltv Coiiiuinera' Action Co-operative

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Yew Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decreess)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts tor Proa Svs 102-500731 5102 367 $0 $102,362
2 018 Contracts tor Proa Svs 102-500731 S102.362 SO S102.362
Z019 Contracts ky Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal 1204,734 SO S204.724

SUB TOTAL ».060,222| l3.oeo.2al

05.B5-92-«0010-70l 1 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVIceS. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT Of. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIVOF, DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100S CSenerol Funds

^:tivitv Code: 92207011

The Atlemative Life Center

Vender #066601

State Fiscal Yew Class Title Class Account Curnjnt Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oocroase)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S233.122 SO S233.122
2.018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 1233.122 to S233.122
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

Subtotal S466.244 SO S486.244

ITm Steooino Stone Droo-ln Centtfr Association

Vertdor# 157957

SUte Rscal Yew Clase Titte Class Accouf# Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oecrecae)

Revised Budget

Amouftt
2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $166,555 SO S1S8555

Z018 Contmcta for Proo Svs 102-500731 St68.SS5 SO $166,555
i019 Coniracta for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal SS37.110 SO S3S7.110

Pan 2 of 6



Financial Details for Peer Support Services

lakM ReoFon Consumer Advisory Bosrct

Vendor# 157050

Stste PbeeiYeer Clete Title Class Account Current 6ud9et
Arnount Increiso/

(Oocrosse)
Revised Budget

Amount
i0i7 Confrflcts (or Proa Svs 102-800731 S1S1106 SO S1S1 196
2 018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5151.198 S( S1S1.1d6
2.016 Contracts fer Proa Svs 102.500731 SO £0 SO

Subtotal 5302.392 SO S302.392

Montdnock Area Peer Supt>ort Aoancy

Vendor #157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Sudflet
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  117.865 S S  117.665
3.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  M7 68S $ I  117.865
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ s $

Subtotal 5  235.330 $ S  236,330

H.t:.A.K.T.a. Peer SupDort Center of Greater Nasfwe RonIon VI
Vendor# 209287

State Pbcel Veer cues Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount tnereesc/

(Decresst)
Revised Budget

Amount
2.017 Contracts for Pnn Svs 102-500731 $170,218 SO S170 218
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S170.218 SO St70 216
2.019 CorXracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO .  SO SO

Subtotal S340.436 50 S340.436

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor# 1MM9

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contrects for Proo Svs 102-800731 $197 296 SO S197.296
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $197 296 SO S197.296
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 so SO

Subtotal 5394.692 so $394,592

Connccllens Peer Support Center

Vendor #157070

State Fiecal Year Class THIe Class Accouitt Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revleed Budget
Amount

2.017 ContrBcts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5109.071 SO S109.071
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 5109.071 SO S109.071
2.019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal 5218.142 SO $218,142

Tri-Citv Comumsrs'Action Co-operative

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Tttio Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 582.245 SO S82.24S
2.018 Contracts far Prog Svs 102-500731 $82,245 so $82,245
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-600731 50 SO SO

Subtotal $164,460 so $164,490

SUB TOTAL »2.45e.7Ml a t2.4M.736

O5-95-92-9220t0-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEAtTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General Funds

/V:ifviiy Cfode: 922041)8

The Altemctlve Life Center

Vendor 0 068801

State Fiicti Yaar Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decresae)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Prog Svs 103-500731 SO SO SO
2.016 Coorracls tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO 50 so

2.019 Conlracis for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO 5233.122 5233122
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Subtotal S233.122 $233.1221

ThoSttODlno Stont DtPtMn Comor Ass Delation

VBHdvS 157967

Stats Fiscal Ysar Cists Title Class Account Currant Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Bedget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

2016 Contracts (tx Proo Svs 102-500731 SO so SO
2.019 Ccntrects for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S168.5S6 $168,525

Subtotal 10 $168,595 $1«8.68S

Lakes Region Consumer Adviiory Board

Vendor « 1S7050

Stale Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

pecrease]
Revised Budget

Amownl

2.017 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 SO $0
2.018 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500ni $0 SO SO
2.019 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO $181,196 S151.198

. Subtotal SO $151,196 $181,196

Monadrwck Area Peer Support Aoency

Vendor #157673

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Conlreds tor Proo Svs ' 102-500731 S S S
2.018 Com facts tor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S $
2019 Com facts tor ProQ Svs 102-500731 s S  1)7.685 S  117.668

Subtotal s S  117.665 $  117.665

H.E.AJ%.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Reoion VI
Vendor #209267

Slats Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amour# Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Comracts for proo Svs 102-800731 $0 $0 SO
2.018 Contracts lor Proo Svs )02-600731 SO SO SO
2.019 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S170.218 $170,218

Subtotal SO S170.216 $170,218

On the Road to Recovery. Inc.

Vendor# 158839

State Fiscal Yaar Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

Pecrease)

Revised Budgst
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.018 Cortfracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

2.019 CorFrscts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S197.206 $107 706

Subtotal SO $197,296 8197.288

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor# 1570ro

SUta Rscsl Year Ctass Thie Class Account Current Budget
Amourtt Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.01 a Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 so SO SO
2019 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S1D9.071 S109.071

Subtotal $0 S109,071 $100,071

Tri-CKv Consumers' Action Co-operotlve

Vendor# 157797

State Ffscit Year Class THio CIbss Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decroaoc)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.018 Contacts for Prog Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

2.019 Conirocts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO $62245 882.245
Subtotal $0 $82,245 $82,248

SUB TOTAL 1  1 sol S1,229,3681 S1.229.368
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Financial Deiaiis for Peer Support Services

05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV;
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

lOO^FtderalFunat

T)* AJt*maiiv0 Lift Centtr

VendorfOesSOl

pttt* Fiicel Ytar Class THle Class Account Current Budget
Amount incrceeet

(OKrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Corttracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.oie Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

2 019 • Contracts fix Proo Svs 102-500731 so (290.154 S290.154

Subtotal so $290,154 $290,154

Tho St«pDin{i Stone Dfoe-ln Center Aeeocletion

Vendor 0157967

State Fieeal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount tncreaca/

(Oecreate)

Revised Budget
Amount

Z017 Conirads for Proo Svs 102-600731 SO SO SO

2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-5OO731 SO so SO
Z019 Cerrtrads for Proa Svs 102-500731 so S209.790 S200.700

Subtotal so $209,790 $209,790

Lakes Reoion Consumer Advisorv Board

Vendor# 1S7060 '

State Ftscal Year Class TiUe Qass Account Current Budget
Amount Increase'

(Decreaee)

Revbed Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

2.018 Contracta for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 so $188,183 S1S8183

Sublotal t so $188,183 St88,183

Monadnock Area Peer Suosert Aqon cv

vendor# 157873

SuteFHeefYeer Cfftss TiUe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

fOecrease)

Revlsid Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO $0 SO
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2 019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 so S14S449 S146.449

Subtotal so $146,449 5146.449

H.EAJLT.S. Peer Support Canter of Greater Neshua Realon VI

Venoor« 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount IrKrease/

(Decreate)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2019 Contracts for Rnxi Svs 102-500731 SO $211,860 S211 860

Subtotal so S2lt.660 $211,860

On the Road to Recoverv. inc.

Vendor # 1S8839

Slate Rscel Year Class THIe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Irrcreaso/

(Decrease)

Rmrlscd Budget

AriMunt

2.017 Contreds for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO so SG

2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S24S.562 $245,562

Subtotal so S245.562 $245,562

Connections Peer Supoorl Center

Vendor# 157070

SUte Rscal Year Class THIe Class Account Cuaent Budget
Amount Increase/

{Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

2.018 Conlrscta for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO $0 SO
2.019 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S135.7S1 St35 751

Subtotal SO $135,751 $135,751
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Financial Delays for Peer Support Services

Tri^ftv CensuiTMr*' Acton C»-oo»raUvt

Ventfof A157787

State Fiscal Year Ctaas Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Incraase/

(Dacraate)

Rovised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts (or Proo Sva 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.0 tfi Contracts ior Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

i019 Contracts (or Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S102.362 S102.382
Sutrtotal SO S102,362 S102.361

|SUB TOTAL K ti.S30.iii| sipSSO^Tiil

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOOAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS:GLENCUFF HOME FOR ELDER
GLENCLIFF HOME. PROFESSIONAL CARE

60% Other Funds/ 20% General Funds

AcIMtyCode: 91000000

The Alternative Life Center

Vendor d 056601

State Fiscal Year ClasaTUIa Claas Account Curnnt Budget
Amount Increeaa/

(Qacrease)

Revieed Budget
Amtrunt

2.018 Consultants 046-500464 SI.200 SO St.200

2.019 CortsuKanis 046-900464 SO -  S1200 St.200

Subtotal 11.200 S1.200 S2.400

TOTAL $5.5W.1S8i t2.760.67»r S8^0.B37|
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
P6«r Support Sofvlcos

Stete of New Hampehfre
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment P2 to the Peer Support Services

This 2nd Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #2")
dated this 27th day of April. 2018. is by and between the State of New Hanpshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Alternative Life
Center (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 6
Main Street Conway, NH, 03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2016 (Item #23) and as amended on June 21, 2017 (Item #38) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions spedfied In the Contract as amended arxj
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State arid the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and ''

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.6. to read;
05-95-92-920010714S-102-600731; 05-95-92-920010-7011-102-500731; 05-95-9100105710.
046-0464; 05-09S910010-5710046-0462; 05-95-92-9220104118-102-500731 • 05-95-92-
9220104120102-500731. .

2. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read*
June 30. 2019.

3. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation to read-
Si.572.228.

4. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Formp.37. General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number to read-
603-271-9330.

6. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #2
Scope of Services.

7. Delete Exhbrt B, Paragraph 9, and replace with;

9. Of the Budgeted amounts identified in Exhibits B-1 and B-2. for each Stale Fiscal Year
the following activities will be reimbursed only on a cost reimbursement basis (except for
9,2 Capital Reserve Fund, See Section 11 below ), only upon prior approval of the
Department, and up to the amounts listed below as follows:

9.1. Training and Development: $1,000.

9.2. Capital Reserve Fund: $0.

The Artemaftve Life Center. Amerrdment #2
SS-2017.BBK-02.peERS<l5 Pago 1 af4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

9.3. Capital Expenditure; $0.

9.4. Crisis Respite: $87,581.

9.5. Retirement; $. $4,049.

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1. SPY 2019 Budget.

9. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

TtiB Aliemitlve Lff© C©ntftr. Amendment #2
8S.20U-BBH02^BeRS-06 Pag© 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

This ̂ endment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Departn>ent of Health and Human Serwces

Date

The Alternative Life Center

Date Jame:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of of on ^ before ttie
mdersigned offiMr, personally appeared the person Identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the p^on whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

JlffANIE A. COflOTTO. Notory PublicMyCommissbn Expha Marchge. gpip " •
lie or Justice of the Peace ■Si of Notary

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expres;

Tho AJteTOtiw \Jk C«rtef. Amendmart 92
SS.2D17-BBH-02.PEERWB ^Je3(rf4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Name: ̂ /irjjto^hdr 6- rfbtJn
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Trtie:

TTie Allemittve UTa Centar. Amendmanl«
SS-2017^aH^2-PEERS-06 Pa^a 4 otA



New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Servlcea
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services that will:

1.3.1. increase quality of life for persons living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase hope for and belief in the possibility of recovery for persons living
with mental illness In NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to persons
living with mental illness In NH.

1.3.4. Provide alternatives to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitaiization.

1.3.5. Increase socie! connectedness for persons living with mental illness In NH.

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees to provide menial health peer support services to persons 18
years of age or older who self-identify as a recipient, as a former recipient, or at a
significant risk of becomlrtg a recipient of mental health services, and may include
persons who are homeless.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to give priority of peer support services to consumers who are
age sixty (80) and over, who are most socfal Isoiated, and/or risk of placement in the
public mental health service defivery system..

1.6. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of Part 2 substance use disorder (SLID)
Information or records created by a Part 2 provider the information or records shall be
subject to all safeguards of 42 CFR Part 2.

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nor^overnmental Peer Support
Agency.

2.2. Consumers are any individual, 18 years of age or older, who self identifies as a
recipient, as a former redpient, or as a significant risk of becoming a recipient of
publically funded mental health services.

2.3. Culturally Competent means having attained the knowledge, skills, and attitudes
necessary to provide effective supports, services, education and technical assistance
to the populations in the 1 served by the Contractor.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Amendment #2 Conlraclx initial?:
The AHemative Life Center , 7
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New Harr^hlre Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

rc

2.4. Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday, exduding Saturday and
Sunday.

2.5. Guests are any persons who are invited to visit the Peer Support Agency by a
member, participant, or the Peer Support Agency.

2.6. Homeless is (1) an individual or family vrfio lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence: or (2) an IrKllvldual or family who has a primary nighttime
residence that is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to
■provide temporary living accommodations (including welfare hotels and congregate
shelters), an Institution other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence
for individuals intended to be institutionalized, or a public or private place not
designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular keeping accommodation for human
beings.

2.7. Management staff means staff that Is responsible for supervising other staff and
volunteers affjfiated with (he program.

2.8. Members are any consumers, who have made an informed decision to join, and
agree to, abide by, and support the goals and objectlvBs of peer support services.

2.9. Mental illness is defined in RSA 135-C:2 X. namely, "a substantial Impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impairment Is manifested'by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions. It does not
incii^ Impairment prlmarity caused by (a) epDepsy (b) intdlectual disability; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous periods of intoxication caused by substances such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as
alcohol or drugs."

2.10. Participant means a consumer, who is not member, who participates in any aspect of
peer support services.

2.11. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose Is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support to persons 18 year of age and older who
self- Identify as having a mental illness.

2.12. Recovery means for a person with a n^entai illness, development of personal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice, increase quality of life,
minimize or eliminate Impairment, and decrease dependence on professional
services.

2.13. Region Is the geographic area of cities and towns in New Hampshire, as defined by
the Department.

2.14. SMI is Serious Mental Illness that refers to individuals whom the stale defines as
having either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness
(SPMI) pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2. XV.

2.15. Quarter or Quarterfy Is defined as the periods of July 1 through September 30.
October 1 through December 31, January 1 through March 31, and April 1 throuoh
June 30,

2.16. Week Is defined as Monday through Sunday.

^ Amtndment tt2 Contraclof Initials: AftTne Artcmative Life Center

Page 2 of 10 Date: j7Z4l_5_.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

3. Scope of Services
3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provided for
consumers and by consumers , including, but not limited to:

3.1.1.1. Peer support services that include supportive interactions
shared experiences, acceptance, trust, respect, lived
experience, and mutual support among members, participants,
staff and volunteers.

3.1.1.2. No less than forty-four hours of peer support services each
week, by face-to-face or by telephone to members of a peer
support agency or others who contact the agency.

3.1.1.3. Peer support services at a minimum based on the Intentional
Peer Support modei that:

3.1.1.3.1. Foster recovery from mental illness by helping
individuals identify and achieve personal goals
while building an evoiving vision of their recovery.

3.1.1.3.2. Foster self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and
independence.

3.1.1.3.3. Emphasize mutuality and reciprocity as
demonstrated by shared decision-making, strong
conflict resolution, non-medical approaches to
help, and non-static roles, such as. staff who are
members and members who are educators.

3.1.1.3.4. Offer alternative views on mental health, mental
illness and the effects of traurria and abuse.

3.1.1.3.5. Encourage Informed decision-making about all
aspects of people's lives.

3.1.I.3.S. Support people with mental illness In challenging
perceived self-limitations, while encouraging the
development of beliefs that enhance personal and
relational growth.

3.1.1.3.7. Emphasize a holistic approach to health that
includes a vision of the "whole" person.

3.1.1.4. Provide opportunities to learn wellness strategies, by using at a
minimum Weliness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and
Whole Health Action Management (WHAM), to strengthen a
member's and participant's ability to attain and maintain their
health and recovery from mental illness.

3.1.1.5. Provide outreach by face-to-face or by telephone contact with
consumers by providing support to those who are unable to
attend agency activities, visiting people who are hospitalized
with a psychiatric condition, and reaching out to people who
meet membership criteria and are homeless.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Amendments Contractor Initials'
Tho Alternative Life Center . y
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servtees
Peer Support Servlcee

Exhibit A Amendment #2

a:

3.1.1.6.

3.1.1.7.

3.1.1.8.

3,1.1.9.

3.1.1.10.

3.1.1.11.

Provide monthly newsletters published by the peer support
agency that describes agency services and activities, other
community services, social and recreational opportunities,
member articles and contributions and other relevant topics that
might be of interest to members and participants.

Distribute the Newsletters to the members and other inlerasted
parties, such as community mental health canters and other
appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business
days prior to the upcoming month.

Provide Monthly Education Events and Presentations of
Information germane to Issues and concerns of consumers of
mental health services which shall Include, education topics to
be covered over the course of the year, but not limited to:

3.1.1.8.1. Rights Protection.

3.1.1.8.2. Peer Advocacy,

3.1.1.8.3. Recovery,

3-1.1.8.4. Employment,

3.1.1.8.5. Wellness Management, and

-3.1.1.8.6. Community Resources.

Provide at least 5 days prior to the beginning of the month, to
the Office of Consumer and Family Affairs within the
Department's Bureau of Behavioral Health, and the Mental
Health Block Grant State Planner and Mental Health Block
Grant Advisory Council, both electronic and a paper copy of the
monthly newsletters and education events in Section 3.2.1.16
and Section 3.2.1.18. ,

Provide Individual Peer Assistance by assisting adults to:

3.1.1.10.1. Locate, obtain, arxi maintain mental health
sen/ices and supports through referral, consumer
education, and self-empowerment.

3.1.1.10.2. Support irxtivlduals who are Identifying problems
by assisting them in addressing the Issue and/or In
resolving grievances.

3.1.1.10.3. Promote self-advocacy.

Provide Employment Education by assisting members wth:

3.1.1.11.1. Information on obtaining and maintaining
competitive employment (any employment open to
the general public and achieved during the
quarter, even if employment is time limited).

3.1.1.11.2. Referrals to community mental health centers
employment programs.

RFP-2017.BBH.Q2.PEERS-08
Tho AUemative Life Cenler

Exhibit A Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Servfcea

Exhibit A Amendment #2

3.1.1.T1.3. Employment related activities such as, but not
limited to, resume writing, interviewing, or
assistance with empbyment applications.

3.1.1.12. infofm the members and general public about the peer
supports and wellness services available and provide monthly
Community Education' Presentattens to potential referral
sources, funders, or families of Indivlduais affected by mental
illness, about mental illness and the peer support community.

3.1.1.13. Inform local human service providers and the general publte
about the stigma of mental illness, wellness and recovery and
collaborate with other bcai human service providers that serve
consumers in order to facilitate referrals and share iriformation
about services and other local resources.

3.1.1.14. Provide training and technical assistance to help consumers en
their own behalf regarding healthcare such as but not limited to,
sharing techniques for being ready for a doctor's appointment,
how to take notes, how to use the physician's desk reference
book for medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.1.15. Invite guests to partidpate in peer support activities.

3.1.1.16. Provide residential support services as needed by members
and participants by providing support and assistance such as
but not limited to help with staying in their home or apartment,
or finding a place to live.

3.1.1.17. Maintain at least a monthly schedule of peer support and
wellness services and activities, staff development and training,
and other related events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests as follows:

3.2.1. Through use of a Contractor-owned or leased vehicle, the Contractor svill:

3.2.1.1. Transport members, partldpanls, guests to and from their
homes and/or the • Contractor's peer support agency to
partidpate in activlUes such as but not limited to:

3.2.1.1.1. Peer Support Services.

3.2.1.1.2. Wellness and Recovery Activities.

3.2.1.1.3. Annual Conferences.

3.2.1.1.4. Regional Meetings.

3.2.1.1.5. Council Meetings.

3.2.2. Comply with all applicable Federal and State Department of Transportation
•  and Department of Safety regulations such as but not limited to:

3.2.2.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500.

RfP-2017.BBH-02-PeERS-06 E*hlbll A Amendment #2 Contractor IdliaU" /f
The Alternative Ufe Center - y ^ ■
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

JV

3.2.2.2. Vehicles must be Inspected In accordance with NK
Administrative Rule Saf-C 3200,

3.2.2.3. Drivers must be licensed in accordance with NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing.

3.2.3. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles sign a State of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form that shows the driver has a safe driving record.

3.2.4. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Driving
course offered through a State of New Hampshire approved agency.

3.3. The Contractor shall acknowledge that funding from the Department to support
transportation costs may not be used for other than peer support related activities
defined in this Agreement., and on an as rteeded basis to pay for bus rides that are
necessary to provide peer support services.

3.4. Crisis Respite

3.4.1. The Contractor agrees to operate a peer operated Crisis Respite that
provides early intervention for individuals (18) years of age and older who
have a mental lilness and who are experiencing a crisis in the community as
follows:

3.4.1.1. Provide to any consumer from any of the Regions In New
Hampshire regardless of where they five or work.

3.4.1.2. Provide a short-term crisis respite in a safe environment,
staffed by peers, Intended to maintain community placement
and avoid hospltalization.

3.4.1.3. Provide interventions using a model of Intentional Peer Support
(IPS), that focus on individuars strengths and assists In
personal recovery and wellness.

3.4.1.4. Provide a place for the person to stay temporarily in order to
facilitate recovery and shall be staffed with a trained personnel
twenty-four (24) hours per day when participants are in the
program.

3.4.1.5. Develop a referral process and making referrals to the local
community mental health center for those who require a higher
level of care or evaluation for hospilalization.

3.4.1.6. Offer other peer support agency sen/Ices and supports during
the course of stay at the crisis respite program.

3.4.1.7. Provide transportation to and from the crisis respite program to
other community-based appointments.

3.4.1.8. Administer a functional assessment that Is approved by the
Department, at the time of entry and exit from the program.

3.4.1.9. Provide Individualized supports with a focus on wellness and
recovery that may include Wellness Recovery Action Plan
(WRAP), If applicable.

RFP-2017-BaH-02-PEERS-08 Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Irrflials; Af(
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New Hampshire Departmerrt of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

3.4.1.10. Support the Individual In returning to participation in community
activities, services and supports.

3.4.1.11. Ensure the indlviduars health needs If they become 111 or injured
are addressed during the course of their stay In the crisis
respite program.

3.4.1.12. Ensure communication with other service providers involved in
the fnd/viduars care, with their written consent.

3.5. Peer Support Services to Glendiff Home Residents

3.5.1. The Contractor shall provide intentional Peer Support services as In Exhibit
A, Section 3.1.1.3 once a month to Gtendiff Home residents who have
approval from the Director of Nursing for said services as follovw:

3.5.1.1. Provide in a group setting at Glendiff Home by a trained Peer
Support Team Leader, for up to a one (1) hour session.

3.5.1.2. Schedule peer support group sessbns at least two weeks in
advance on the meeting date with approval of the Glencliff
Home's Social Sen/ice Staff Member and Activities Director.

3.5.1.3. Maintain a list of Qlenciiff Home residents that attended each
peer support group session and provide a copy of the list to the
Social Service Staff member or Activities Director foltowing
each group session.

3.6. Warmllne Services

3.6.1. The Contractor agrees to provide warmllne services that offers on-call
telephone peer support services to members, participants, and others that:

3.6.1.1. Are primarily provided to any individual who lives or works En
Region .1, or anyone who lives or works elsewhere in the State
of New Hampshire or out-of-state.

3.6.1.2. Are provided during the hours the peer support agency Is
ctosed.

3.6.1.3. Are mainly provided to individuals In the Contractor's region
with the aliillty to receive calls from and make calls to
irbivlduais statewide.

3.6.1.4. Assist individuals in addressing a current crisis related to their
mental health.

3.6.1.5. Refer clients to appropriate treatment and other resources In
the consumer's sen/ice area.

3.6.1.8. Are provided by staff that Is trained In providing crisis services.

3.6.1.7. May include outreach calls described In Section 3.2.1.5

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services
4.1. The Contractor will provide services in this Agreement to Individuals who live or work

in Region 1, and services for consumers statewide.
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4.2. The Contractor shalf provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local mental health center, unless pre-approved by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a physical location/building to provide peer support
services that are in accordance with Exhibit C Section 15 and with the Life Safety
requirements that indude but not limited to:

4.3.1. A building In compliance with local health, building end fire safety codes.

4.3.2. A building that is maintained tn good repair and be free of hazard.

4.3.3. A building that includes:

4.3.3.1. At least one indoor bathroom which Indudes a sink and toilet.

4.3.3.2. At least one telephone for Incoming and outgoing calls.

4.3.3.3. A functioning septic or other sev/age disposal system.

4.3.3.4. A source of potable water for dn'nklng and food preparation as
follows:

4.3.3.4.1. if drinking water is supplied by a non-public water
system, the water shall be tested and found to be
In accordance with New Hampshire Administrative
Rules Env-Ws 315 and Env-Ws 316 initially and
every five (5) years thereafter.

4.3.3.4.2. If the water Is not approved for drinking, an
alternative method for providing safe drinking
water shall be implemented.

5. Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a Peer
Support Agency
5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services to individuals defined in

Section 1.4 and 1.5 who have a desire to work on wellness Issues, and who have a
willing desire to participate In services.

5.2. The Contractor will request consumers complete a membership application to join and
support the activities and mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.3. The Contractor agrees that the membership application shall state the minimum
engagement policy, suspension of membership policy, rules of membership, and that
the consumer supports the mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.4. The Contractor agrees to provide services in this Contract to any consumers who are
non-members or members participating in services.

6. Staffing Requirements for a Peer Support Agency
6.1. The Contractors shall employ an executive director who:

6.1.1. Is appointed by the board of directors.

6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the board of directors in
accordance with the published Job description and competitive application
process.
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6.1.3. Has at a minimum the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One year of supervisory or management experience, and

6.1.3.1.1. An associate's degree or higher administration,
business management education, health, or
human services; or

6.1.3.1.2. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience: or

6.1.3.1.3. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of acaderhic
expenence.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the board of directors to ensure that peer support
'  and wellness services and actrvities are provided in accordance with:

6.1.4.1. The perfomnance expectations approved by the board.

6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules.

6.1.4.3. The Contract terms and conditions.

6.1.4.4. The Quality Improvement reviews.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this
Agreement.

6.3. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out aQ
of the functions, requirements, roles, and duties In a timely fashion for the number of
clients as identified In Section 11.

6.4. The Contractor shall select and employ staff utilizing practices and procedures as
approved by the Department, that Include at a minimum, assurance that offers of
ennployment are ma^ in writing and include salary, start date, hours to be worked,
and job responsibilities, and that prior empioyment references shall be obtained and
verified.

6.5. The Contractor shall screen each staff member for tuberculosis prior to employment.

6.6. The Contractor sinall complete a Criminal Record Check, and submit the names of a
prospective employee who may have client contact, for review by the Department, to
assure that any person who Is In regular contact with members and who becomes
employed by the Contractor or its Subcontractor after the Effective Date of this
Agreement te screened for criminal convictions In accordance with RSA 106-6:14
which allows any public or private agency to request and receive a copy of the
criminal conviction record of another who has provided authorization in writing, duly
notarized, explicitly allowing the requester to receive such Information.

6.7. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund, or transfer among programs staff
positions without prior written permission from the Department.

6.8. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and shall submit their
written Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty days of the effective
date of the contract that irx:ludes but not be limited to:

6.8.1. The process for replacement of personnel In the event of loss of key
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personnel or other personnel during the period of this Agreement.

6.8.2. The description of how additional staff resources will be allocated to support
this Agreement In the event of inability to meet any performance standard.

6.8.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements.

6.8.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely
manner, staff replacements/additions with comparable experience.

6.9. The Contractor shall submit a staffing emergency plan within thirty days of the
effective date If the contract that includes, but not limited to;

6.9.1. Inclement weathernotificatlons for programming and transportation servfces.

6.9.2. Emergency evacuation plans for the Agency.

7, Staff Training and Development
7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have

appropriate training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities
of their respective positions, by keeping up-to-date personnel and training records
and documentation of all Individuals. Staff training shall be In accordance with NH
State Rule He-Wl 402.05.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide orientation for all new staff providing peer support that
Includes, but not limited to:

7.2.1. The statewide peer support system.

7.2.2. All Department policies and rules applicable to the peer support.

7.2.3. Protection of member and participant rights.

7.2.4. Contractor policies and i^ocedures.

7.2.5. PSA grievance procedures.

7.2.6. Harassment, discrimination, and diversity.

7.2.7. Documentation such as incident reports, attendance records, and telephone
logs.

7.2.8. Confidentiality according to applicable state rule, Department policy and
state and federallaws.

7.3. The Contractor shall develop and Implement written staff development policies
applicable to all staff that speclficdliy address the following:

7.3.1. Job Descriptions.

7.3.2. Staffing pattern.

7.3.3. Conditions of employment.

7.3.4. Grievance procedures.

7.3.5. Performance reviews.

7.3.6. Indlviduai staff development plans.

7.3.7. Prior employment or volunteer work, each staff member or volunteer shall
demonstrate evidence of or willingness to verify:
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7.3.7.1. Citizenship or authorization to work.

7.3.7.2. Motor Vehicle Records check to ensure that potential employee
has a valid driver's license and a safe driving record if such
employee wHI be transporting members or participants.
Records must also indicate participation in a National Safety
Council Defensive Driving course offered through a State of
New Hampshire approved agency.

7.3.7.3. Criminal Records Check.

7.3.7.4. Previous employment.

7.3.7.5. References.

7.4. The Contractor shall screen each staff member, prior to employment, for tuberculosis
(TB) as follows;

7.4.1. All newly employed employees, including those with a history of bacille
calmette guerin (BCG) vaccination, who will have direct contact with
members and participants and the potential for occupational exposure to
Mantoux TB through shared ai'r space with persons with infectious TB shall
have a TB symptom screen, consisting of a Mantoux tuberculin skin test or
QuantiFERON-TB test, performed upon employment.

7.4.2. Baseline two-step testing, If performed In association with Mantoux testing,
shall be conducted In accordance with the Guidelines for Environmental

Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities (2003) published by the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

7.4.3. Employees with a documented history of TB, documented history of a
positive Mantoux test, or documented completion of treatment for TB
disease or latent TB Infection may substitute that documentation for the
baseline two-step test.

7.4.4. All positive TB test results shall be reported to the department's bureau of
disease control, 271-4469, in accordance with RSA 141-C:7, He-P 301.02
and He-P 301.03.

7.4.5. All employees with a diagnosis of suspect active pulmonary or laryngeal TB
shall be excluded from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB Is excluded or until
the employee Is on TB treatment and a determination has been made that
the employee Is noninfectious.

7.4.6. All employees with a newly positive tuberculin skin test shall be excluded
from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB disease Is ruled out.

7.4.7. Repeat TB testing shall be conducted Irt accordance with the CDC's
Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities
(2003).

7.4.8. Those employees with a history of previous positive results shall have a
symptom screen and, if symptomatic for TB disease, be referred for a
medical evaluation.

7.5. The Contractor shall complete an annual performance review based on the staffs job
description and conducted by his or her supervisor.
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7.6. The Contractor shall complete a staff development plan annually with each staff
person by his or her supervisor that is based upon the staffs annual performance
review, and that Includes objectives and methods for Improving the staff person's
work-related skills and knowledge.

7.7. The Contractor shall conduct or refer staff to training activities that address objectives
for Improving staff competencies and according to the staffs development plan, along
with ongoing training in protection of member and participant rights.

7.6. The Contractor agrees to maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed
trainings and certrfications.

7.9. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval 30 days^prior to the training date, for
all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered by the
Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as but not Dmited to:

7.9.1. Peer Support.

7.9.2. Warmline.

7.9.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups.

7.9.4. Sexual Harassment.

7.9.5. Member Rights.

7.10. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and Its required
consultations to meet certification a minimum of every other year.

7.11. The Contractor agrees that if Intentional Peer Support Is not being offered In a given
year the Contractor shall provide Wellness, Recovery, and Planning training to staff.

7.12. The Contractor agrees that Administrative staff, including the Executive Director, shall
participate in trainings on:

7.12.1. Staff Development.

7.12.2. Supervision.

7.12.3. Performance Appraisals.

7.12.4. Employment Practices.

7.12.5. Harassment.

7.12.6. Program Development.

7.12.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process.

7.12.8. Financial Management.

7.13. The Contractor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a peer support agency in the region.

7.14. The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department at least five (5) days
prior to the training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either the
Department or the Contractor.

7.15. The Contractor shall provide documentation to the Department, within 30 days.from
the training in Section 7.14, which demonstrates the staff person(s) participation and
completion of said training.
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7.16. The Contractor shalf collaborate with other Peer Support Agencies to offer combined
trainings to facilitate more efficient use of training funds and to increase the scope of
trainings offered.

7.17. The Contractor shall purge all data In accordance with the instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two-year period.

8. Composition and Responsibilities of a Peer Support Agency
8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a Peer Support Agency by:

8.1.1, Being incorporated with the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-profit
agency.

8.1.2. Having a plan for governance that requires a Board of Directors who:

8.1.2.1. Have the responsibility for the entire management and control
of the property and affairs of the corporation.

8.1.2.2. Have the powers usually vested in the board of directors of a
non-for-profit corporation.

8.1.2.3. Are comprised of no fewer than 9 individuals with at least 51%
of the individuals who self-identify as consumers.

8.1.2.4. Less 20% of the t>oard members are related by blood,
marriage, or cohabitation to other board members.

'8.1.2.5. Establish and maintain the bylaws that include, but are not
limited to:

8.1.2.5.1. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of
Directors.

8.1.2.5.2. Term limits for thle board of director officers that
shall not allow more than 20% of the board
members to sen/e for more than 6 consecutive
years.

6.1.2.5.3. Nominating process that actively recruits diverse
individuals whose skills and life experiences v4ll
serve the needs of the agency.

8.1.2.6.4. A procedure by which Inactive peer support
agency rnembers are removed from the peer
support agency board.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit to the Department within 5 days, a corrective action plan
with time frames when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required
minimum of nine (9).

8.3. The Contractor shall submit to the Department and NH Department of Justice.
Division of Charitable Trusts and the Department, and updated list of current board
members and a corrective action plan with timeframes when the Board of Directors
membership falls below the State of New Hampshire minimum required number of
five (5). ^
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6.4. The Contractor shall have written descriptions outlining the dutfeis of the members
and officers of the board of directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the
members and officers of the board of directors.

8.6. The Contractor shall have annual trainings related to the members and officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

8.7. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
Including approval of agency financial policies and procedures that Includes, but not
be limited to, the following:

6.7.1. Cash Management including cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty
cash. /

8.7.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets.

8.7.3. Internal Control Procedures.

8.7.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

B.8. The Contractor shaD have open attendance to peer support agency members during a
portion of a board meeting.

8.9. The Contractor shall publish the times and locations of Board of Director meetings In
an effort to encourage peer support agency member attendance.

8.10. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall:

8.10.1. Maintain written records (board minutes) of their mwtings including but not
limited to, topics discussed, votes and actions taken, and a monthly review
of the agency's financial status and submit the minutes to the Department
within 60 days of the meeting.

8.10.2. Maintain a current Board of Director (1st, including but not limited to, member
name, board office held, address, phone number, e-mail address, date
joined, and term expiration date.

8.10.3. Maintain documentation of the process and results of annual board
elections.

8.10.4. Notify the Department immediately In writing of any change in board
membership.

8.11. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department upon request a
policy manual that at a minimum includes policies for:

8.11.1. Human Resources.

8.11.2. Staff Development.

8.11.3. Financial Responsibilities.

8.11.4. Protection for member and participant rights.

8.12. The Contractor shall pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer
support services and/or supplement other related activities that foe Department may
not pay for under this Agreement.
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9. Participation in Statewide/Regional Meetings
9.1. The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of Individuals for serving on

local, regional and state mental health policy, planning and advisory Initiatives.
Participation of Individuals shall be from other than the Contractor's employees who
provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training events.

9.2. The Contractor's Executive Director, or deslgnee, shall attend the Department's
monthly Peer Support Directors' meeting that is held for the purpose of iffformation,
exchange, support. ar>d strengthening of the statewide Peer Support system.

9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, e.g., mental health
centers, area homeless shelters, community action programs, housing agencies, etc.,

9.4. The Contractor shall submit to the Department written documentation demonstrating
attendance at the meetings, but not limited to, the meetings in Section 9.2 and 9.3.

10. Grievance and Appeals
10.1. The Contractor shall submit, for Department approval, a grievance and appeals

process that includes, but Is not limited to:

10.1.1. Receiving complaints orally, or In writing that include but are not limited to.

10.1.1.1. Consumer name.

10.1.1.2. Date of written grievance.

10.1.1.3. Nature/subject of the grievance.

10.1.1.4. A method to submit an anonymous complaint,

10.1.2. Assisting consumers wHh the grievance and appeal process including but
not limited to filing a complaint.

10.1.3. Tracking complaints.

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participant's rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants.

10.1.5.- An Immediate review of the complaint and Investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her deslgnee.

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance for which a formal
Investigation Is requested.

10.1.7. Following completion of a formal Investigation, the board of directors of the
PSA shall issue a written decision to the member or participant within 20
business days setting forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.1.B. Submitting a copy of the written decision in Section 10.1.7 of the complaint
to the Department within 10 days from the written decision,

10.1.9. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal the written
decision made in Section 10.1.7.
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11. E>ellverable8

11.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval by July 31 of each State Fiscal
Year, a Peer Support Agency Quarterly Statistical Data Form, provided by the
Department, that provides data for each State Rscal Year, Induding, but not limited
to;

•11.1.1. The number of members.

11.1.2. The totel number of participants.

11.1.3. Program utilization totals and percentages.

11.1.4. Number of telephone contacts.

11.1.5. Description of outreach activities.

11.1.6. Number and description of educational events.

11.1.7. The Contractor shall provide a plan for Department approval by July 31 of
each State Rscal Year describing how the Contractor will increase the
deliverables described in Section 11.1.

12. Performance Measures

121. The Contractor shall increase the undupllcated numbers being served in Section 11.1
by ten (10) percent of the total served in the previous year, for each subsequent State
Fiscal Year.

13. Reporting
13.1. The Contractor shall report on forms provided by the Department a list of the trained

individuals as in Section 7.

13.2. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, quarterly peer support service deliverables, es in Section 11 on forms
supplied by the Department.

13.3. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, quarterly Revenue and Expenses by cost and/or program category and
locations, on forms supplied by the Department

13.4. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, a quarterly Capital Expenditure Report, on a form supplied by the
Department.

13.5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
end of each month, the prior months, interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss
Statements for the Contractor including separate statements for related parties that
are certified by an officer of the reporting entity to measure the agency's fiscal
integrity as foilows:

13.5.1. Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available

to cover the cost of current liabilities by using the following formula: Total
current assets divided by total current liabilities. The Contractor shall
maintain a minimum current ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance allowed.
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13.5.2. Accounts Payable that measures the Contractor's timeliness in paying
Invoices. The Contractor shall not have outstanding invoices greater than
sixty (60) days.

13.5.3. Budget Management that compares budget to actual revenues and
expenses to determine on a year -to-date basis the percentage of the
Contractors budget executed year-to-date.

13.5.3.1. Formula: (Revenues) Actual year-to-date revenues compared
to budgeted revenues divided by twelve (12) months tirnes the
number of months in the reporting period. (Expenses) Actual
year-to-date expenses compared to budgeted exper^es
divided by twelve (12) months times the number of months in
the reporting period.

13.5.3.2. Performance Standard: Revenues shall be equal to or greater
than the year-to-date calculation. Expenses shall be equal to
or less than the year-to-date calculation.

13.6. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
end of each month, the prior months Board of Director meeting minutes including all
attachments such as but not Emited to the Executive Directors report.

13.7. The Contractor will prepare an Annual Report presentation for the benefit of the
Mental Health Block Grant Advisory Council.

14. Quality Improvement
14.1. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance reviews as follows:

14.1.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract
compliance requirements as identified in 0MB Circular A-133.

14.1.2. Ensure the . Department is provided with access that includes but Is not
limited to:

14.1.2.1. Data.

14.1.2.2. Financial records.

14.1.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work srtes/iocalions/work
spaces and associated facilities.

14.1.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work sites/locations/work
spaces and associated facilities.

14.1.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff.

14.2. The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities including but not limited to:

14.2.1. Participate in bi-annual quality Improvement review as in Section 13.1.

14.2.2. Participate In ongoing monitoring and reporting based on the bi-annual
review and corrective action plan submitted in conjunction with the
Department and Contractor.

14.2.3. Conduct member satisfaction surveys provided by and as Instructed the
Department.
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14.2.4. Review of personnel files for completeness.

14.2.5. Review of complaint process.

14.3. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty
(30) days from the date the Department notifies the Contractor is not in compliance
with the contract.
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SFV 2016 BUDGET

Nm* Ksmpsrilro Do|Mrtm»nt of Hoalth ond Human Sorvtcoa
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUOOCT PERIOD

eidtforNatn*: Ths Al^mstl-.'c Lifs Cents;

Atidiici Rnunt lor Peer Supoon Benkas

(NvncdRFP)

Budoet Perfotf: 7nM8 Uveuoh BOCPIS

g«fi($n?uiumfiE3s f#AjlTr! nl* 'i l l!
600 PERBONNEL COdTS RMNBMIWMiiva

601 Sa!«rv& Wanes 304.426

607 EmoiovM Beoofit 41.792

803 Pevroii lasts 23.289

Subtotal 369,507

624 Aosuntino 7.725

62S AurMFees 8.300

62fl LeoalFms 30

677 Other P(oteu:anftl Fees and Consuiunts tJtOO

SvWotai 17,255

630 STAFF development AND TRAM NG

631 Publioatlani end Journals 0

632 lr>-8«rvScftTrainina 1.000

633 Conlemnees end Convtntions 0

634 Other Slafl Oeveloanent 0

Subtotal 1,000

64t Rent 54.134

642 Modaaaa Payments 0

643 Headho Costs 1.200

644 Other USIitifls r.7M

645 Maintenance and Rep&^ 1.851

646 Taxes 0

647 Other Occuoancr Costs 0

Subtotal 64.637

661 OPice 3.680

6S2 fiiiUino'Householcl 2.400

653 RehobllttTtion/Tranina 0

655 Food 4.020

657 Other Coosumsble BuoDlies 0

Subtotal 10.100

660 CAPITAL EXPENOnrURES 0

665 DEPRECIATION 0

670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400

560 EQUIPMENT IWUNfEHANCE 0

700 ADVERTISING 350

710 PRINTINO 0

720 TELEPH0NEK:0IiXMUNICAT10N5 1Z020

730 POSTAGE«HIPPING 1.554

Subtotal 16.324

740 TRANSPORTATION

741 Board Members 0

742 Staff 16.376

743 MCftibenend Pxitldpants 14.172

subCQtat 30,646

751 COcnl Senricos

752 Clothinn

Subtotal 0

761 MalorectiGe S Borultnt! 6.916

762 VeWdes 2.100

763 Comorehemive Prooertv S UabtStv 2.569

BOO OTHER EXPENDITURES t.SOO

601 INTEREST EXPENSE 0

Subtotal 15,105

TOTAL PROORAM EXPEH8ES 5524.476
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
informatlGn, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial., public
assistance benefits and personal Information Including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any arxl all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal information (PI), Personal Rnancial
Information (PR). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User^ means any peraon or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, sulDContractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
vsrfilch includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without tite owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of Ixrth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHr) has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that rerxlers Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILmES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential information.

1, The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract Further, Contractor,
including but rrot limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation

. of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that H is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so tiiat DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notrfies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additlonal
restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must t)e bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PH! in violation of such additional
restrictions and must atxde by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Applicatfon Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvDted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidentlai
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must bo used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting sen/Ices, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted arid password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidentjal Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidenliai Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If.End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, aD
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required ̂  law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees i! will not store, transfer or process data cdtected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical tocation requirement shall abo apply In the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

6. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and and-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

■  6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and vi/ill
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any sutxxjntractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization. or othervjrise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper 'security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted sen/ices.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation; transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security" monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including-breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45.
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to. enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The sunrey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with virebsile and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

1Z Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security RuIot (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for Individually Wentifiatxe health
information arxJ as appftcable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Infoiroation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incider^
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
addlfonal email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of rts occurrence. This Includes a
confidential Information breach, computer security Incident,-or suspected brea^
virtiich affects or Includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes Identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. abov^
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Infarmatbn only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to

^  receive such infomiatlon.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to ttie extent permitted by law.

f. Conftdential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as rwrvduty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, irwluding any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times vi/hen in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in ail other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as detennined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared vrfth anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indrectiy through
a third party application.

Contractor Is resppnslble for oversight and compliarrce of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Mar^ger of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
a^ordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor vrill:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Br^ch notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
apfXicable. in accordance with NH RSA 359*C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInfQrmationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfflcer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurltyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformat/onSe curityOfflce@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

l29PlXASAyTSTREET.CONCORD.NH 9^301

«63-r7l-9422 l-tOO-8$2-XMS £tt 9422

F*i:40>27l-S43) TDD Accm: l-80fr-7i£-2964 ww>«.dtilis.nh^ov

May 19. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CourKll

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Diviston for Behavioral Health,
Glencliff Home to amend an Agreement vflth The Alternative Life Center, 6 Main Street. Conway, NH.
03818 (Vendor #068801), to continue to provide peer support services to Glencliff Home residents, by
increasing the price limitation by $1,200 from $1,046,552 to an amount not to exceed $1,047,752.
effective July 1, 2017 or upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval whichever comes
later. There is no change to the completion date of June 30. 2018. The source of funds for this
amendment is 19% General Funds and 81% Agency Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018. upon the availatsility and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If
r>eeded and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK
GRANT

State Fiscal Year Class Title
Class

Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $290,154

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $290,154

Subtotal $580,308



His Exceltency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
arwl His Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, PEER SUPPORT
SERVICES

State Fiscal Year Class Title
Class

Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $233,122

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $233,122

Subtotal $466,244

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT
SERVICES

State Fiscal Year Class Title
Class

Account Current Budget
2018 Consultants 046-500464 $1,200

Subtotal Subtotal $1,200

Grand Total $1,047,752

EXPLANATION

Approval of this Amendment will allow the Contractor to continue to provide peer support
services to Glendiff Home residents who have severe mental illness. This Amendment increases the
funding In the Agreement to add the provision of monthly group peer support services to Glendiff Home
residents. Peer Support services enhance personal wellness. independence, and recovery by reducina
crises due to symptoms of mental illness.

The original agreement was competitively bid.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after Jime 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 blennium.

Should Governor and Coundl determine not to approve this request, residents at the Glendiff
Home would lose a valuable support that is vital to managing their symptoms of mental Illness.

Area served: Northern New Hampshire and Glendiff Home



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and His HorvxaWe Council
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Source of funds; 19% General Funds and 01% Agency Funds.

Respectfully submitted

Approved by:

Katja S. Fox
Director

)4a<
Je\(r^y A. Meyers
Commissioner

Th6 Depenmont oi Health and Hvmon Services- Mission is to join ccmmvnHJ^ ond f^Oes
inpfoviOinQ oopotiunti9sforciiiz9ns to ochievB health andindepondence..
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amertdment #1 to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereir\after referred to as 'Amendment 111')
dated (his March 20. 2017. is by and betweert the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Alternative Life Center
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor"), a for profit company with a place of business at 6 Main
Street. Conway, NH. 03018.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contrad") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2016 (Item 1123), the Contractor agreed to periorm certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideralion of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and corxktions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37), the
Agreement may be amended only by written Instrument executed by the parties thereto and approved by
the Govenrtor and Executive Council:

WHEREAS the Department and Contractor agree to add scope of work and increase the price limitation.

NOW THEREFORE, in cor>sideratfon of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as foDows;

1. Form P-37. General Provision, Slock 1.8 Price Limitation to read: $1,047,752.
2. Add account number to Form P-37 General Provision, Block 1.6 Account number as foUovirs:

95-910010-5710-046-0464

3. Add to Exhibit A, Section 1.6 to read:
1.6 NotwithstaixJing any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017. unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennium.

4. Add to Exhibit A, Section 3.5 Peer Support Services to Glendiff Home Residents to read:
3.5 Peer Support Services to Glencflff Home Residents.

3.5.1 The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support services as in Exhibit A,
Section 3.1.1.3 once a month to Glendiff Home residents who have approval
by (he Director of Nursing for said services as follows:
3.5.1.1 Provide In a group setting at Glendiff Home by a trained Peer

Support Team Leader, for up to a one (1) hour session.
3.5.1.2 Schedule peer support group sessions at least two weeks in

advance on the meeting date with approval of the Glendiff Home's
Social Service Staff Member and Activities Director.

3.5.1.3 Maintain a list of Glencliff Home residents that attended each peer
support group session and provide a copy of the lisl to the Social
Service Staff member or Activities Director following each group
session.

5. Add Section 21 to Exhibit 6 to read:

21. The Department shall reimburse the Contractor at $,100 per session.
21.1 The Vendor shall submit an invoice within thirty days from the date of service.

The Vendor shall Include in the invoice the date, begin and end time of the
completed session, and the number of Glendiff Home residents in attendance.

21.2 Glendiff Home shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty days of the
receipt of each approved invoiced for services provided pursuant to this
agreement. The Vendor shall mailinvoicos to: Glediff Home, Attn: Accounts
Payable. PC Box 76. Glencliff NH 03238.

The Alternative Life Center AmendmentHl

RFP.2017.BBH.02.peeRS-06
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This amendment shall be eWectlve upon the dale of Govefnor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date

n

stale of Nevr Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Katia S. Fox

Director

y /9- /?
Date

The AJtemalive Life Center

//-J^
TITLE;

coumyof on^ N O be,o,e .ne
undersigmdSfceT^rscffWlly appeared the person identified above, or
person whose name is sigr»ed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed ihts document in the capaaly
indicated above.

Sigrxature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

or JiAtic* of the PeaceTitle ol

TIFFAME A. CURQTTO. Nowy PubAo
ConvnWon EqXrM March 2e. 2019

The Arternative Life Center
RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Ameridment, having been reviewed by this oFTice. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEYJSENERAL

Date Nam

Title:

■\ hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor arxl Executive Coundl of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

The Alternative Life Center
RFP.2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06
Page 3 of 3

Amendment flf1



Jtffra; A.Mejcis
CfiOiaUsioneT

KaQi'S. Fox
Dixectot

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

IW PLEASANT 5T»£tV,CONCORD, NH 033OI
«0J-271-9423 140O-aS3-J345 Ext.9321

Fax: 607-271-8431 TDD Access: l-800.733-39$-l ni\M'.dhhs.nb.{or

June 6, 2016

G&C

■

2z:

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Departnien! of Health and Human Services, Division of Behavioral Health. Bureau
of Mental Health Services; to enter Into Agreements with the vendors listed below, to provide
peer support services in an amount not to exceed $5,518,958, effective July 1, 2016 through
June 30. 2018, upon approval by Governor and Executive Council. 55.45%Federal. 44.55%

'  General Funds

Summary of contract amounts by Vendor.

Vendor Location Budget Amount

Connection Peer Support Center Portsmouth. NH $489,644

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater
.Nashua Region VI Nashua, NH $764,156

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board Laconia, NH $678,758

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency Keene. NH $528,228

On the Road to Recovery, Inc. Manchester. NH ■  5885.716

The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association Claremonl, NH $756,690

The Ahemative Life Center Conway. NH $1,046,552

Tri-City Consumers' Action Co-r^erative Rochester, NH $369,214

$5,516,958

2. Conl/ngent upon approval of Requested Action #1., authorize an advance payment up to a
maximum of one-twelfth of the contract price limitation per each Vendor for each State Fiscal
Year. If exercised this amount would be $459,913.17.



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal
Year 2018, upon the availability and continued appropriation ol funds In the future operating budget,
with authority to adjust amounts within the price iimltation and adjust encumbrances between State
Rscal Years throu^ the Budget Office if needed and justlfjed, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

Please see attached financial detail.

EXPLANATION

The attached agreements represent eight (8) agreements with a combined price limitation of
$5,518,958.

Approval of these eight (0) Agreements will allow the Contractors to provide peer support
services to adults with long-term and/or severe mental illness. The Contractor will provide services that
will enhance personal wellness, independence, and recovery by reducing crises due to symptoms of
mental Illness. Peer support services Include supportive fnieractions and shared experiences using an
Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental illness and self-advocacy skills.
Additionally, peer support services teach wellness self-management, and provide outreach by face-to
face or telephone calls to provide continued support to consumers who may not be able to attend,
services. Also warmline fine services will be available statewide by providing telephone peer support to
assist individuals in addressing a current crisis related to their mental health during hours when an
agency Is closed for sen/Ices. These eight peer support agency contractors expect to serve a total of
3,300 consumers during State Fiscal Year 2017. The Agreements require the Contractors increase the
number of consumers served by 10% for each subsequent State Fiscal Year.

Approval of the advanced payment for each of the eight (8) Vendors, for each State Fiscal Year,
vrilj allow the Conlractprs to continue to cover operating expenses. These funds cover day to day costs
Including payroll and occupancy. These agencies face considerable challenges in their day to day
operations. The Department considers advance payment to these vendors as a necessary method to
ensure ongoing services for the clients that they serve. The Department is in close communications
with these agencies and monitors their financial status on an ongoing basis.

The-Department published a Request for Proposals for Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services (RFP2017-BBH-02-PEER5) on the Department of Health and Human
Services website March 24, 2016 through April 26, 2016. The Department received eight proposals.
These proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge.
The Department selected eil the Vendors to provide these services (See attached Summary Score
Sheet).

Some of the Vendors' proposals scored lower than anlicipated: however, it was determined that
losing peer support services would be detrimental to the individuals, families, and communities of Nev/
Hampshire. In order to ensure effective delivery of services, the Department has strengthened
language in the Vendors' contracts. Monthly Board minutes and attachments will be submitted for
review as well as a Board member list whenever changes in membership occur. Quarterly review
letters based upon review of monthly and quarterly submissions will be sent to the agencies requiring
corrective action response v/hen necessary. In addition, the Department monitors the peer support
Contractors through quality assurance reviews, monthly meetings, monthly and quarterly financial
reporting and quarterly statistical reporting.



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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The attached Contracts include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to
four (4) additional years, sut^ect to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Council determine not to approve this request, 3,300 persons could lose a
valuable support they have come to rely on to manage their symploms of mental illness. Some
individuals likely will need a higher level of service Including hospitalization. "

Area served; Statewide.

Source of funds: 4^65% General Funds and 55.45% Federal Funds from United States
Department of Health and Human Services. Block Grants for Community Mental Health Servtces,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Award (CFDA) 93.958, and Federal Award (demificatlon Number (FAiN)
SMOiaO35-10

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted

Katja S. Fox
Director

ey

—■

Approved by: [ \ V
teyers

Commissioner

Pre DeportmenI ofHaafth end Hunyen Services' Mission is to Join cxjmmunilies end families
in providing opporiur^s for citi2ens to achieve health and indeperidencp.



Flnancrsi 0«t9ll

0S<5-92.920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERViCBIflB^UTTTWCmWrtjWSV^S-OePT-Of^-HWSi-aEUAVinRjai HEALTH DIV
OF. DiV OF SEHAVIORAl HEALTH. ME^^^AL HgALTH BLOCK GRANT , "

100% FedcaJ Funds

AcHv<tyC3de: 92207143

Ttio ;Ut9n>aUve Life Centtr

Vtndor# 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

•  2017 Contracts for Proj Svs 103-50073t 5  290,154.00

2016 Contracts for Prcg Svs 102-500731 %  290,154iX]

Subiotel $  580,306.00

The Steoplna Stone Oroo^n Center Asaoclatien

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Accoun t Current Budget

2017 Contracts lor Profl Svs 102-500731 5  209.790.00

201S Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  209.790.00

Sutitotal . S  419.580.00

Lakes Reolon Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor #157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts lor Prog S'/s 102-500731 $  '168.183.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  188.(83.00

Subtotal $  376.368.00

Monadnock Area Peer Suooort Aoency

Vendor#157973

Stale Fiscal Yoar Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  >40,449.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5  146.449.00

Sut)tota< %  292.598.00

H.EAaT.5. Peer Suooort Center of Greater Naohua Reolon VI
Vendor #209287

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017, Contracts for Prog S'/s 102-500731 S  211.860.C0

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  21.1,880.00

Subtotal (  423,720.00



Financial Detail

On the Road toRscoverv. Inc.

Vendor# 156639

State ?iKel Year CiassTltla Class Account Current Budget

2017 Coniracis for Prog Sva 102-500731 S 245,582.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 245.562.00

Subtotal s 491,124.00

Connecttona Peer Support Center

Venttor# 157070

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 135,751.00

2016 Contracts for Prog S'/s 102-500731 S 135,751.00

Subtotal % 271,502.00

-

TrI-Cllv Consumers' Aclton Co-operatise

VervJor# 157797

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account CurrentBudget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 102.392.00

2018 Cool'acls for Prog S'/s 102-500731 % 102,352.00

Subtotal i 204,724.00

SUBTOTAL .  3,060.222.00

05-95-&2-9200lO-70li HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV
OF. aV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

.100% General Furxls

Aclivitv Coda: 92207011

The AJtamative Life Center

Vendor» 068601

Stats Fiscal Year Class Title. Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for prog Svs 102-500731 S 233.122.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 233.122.00

Subtotal- s 466,244.00

The Steppinq Stone Oroo-ln Center Association

Ven<}or#1S7907

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Accounl Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 168.555.00

2018 Coniracis for Prog Svs 102-5007.11 $ 186.555.00

Subtotal $ 337,110.00

Faj«2of3



Flnsndit Detail
'Z^

L«|c«s Reaion Consumer Advlurv Board
Vendor (1157060

State Race! Year Ctass Title Class Account Currant Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  151.195.00

2018 • Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  151,196.00

Subtotal $  302,392.00

Monadnock Aree Peer Suaoon Aoencv

Vendor # 157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  117,665.00

2018 Contracts lor Prog Svs >02-800731 5  117,665.00

Subtotal $  235.330.00

K.EAR.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Realon VI

Vendor <209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Cieas Account Curreni Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  ■170,218.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  170.218.00

Subtotal S  340,436.00

On the Rosd to Recovery, Inc.
Vcnd[jr#1S8e39

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 5  197,296.00

2016 Conlracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  197,298.00

Subtotal 5  394,59100

Connections Peer Su pport Center
Vender# t57070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109.07V.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  109.071.00

Subtole) $  216.142.00

Trl-CitvConaumers' AcUon Co-ooerallve
Vendor# 157797

Stale Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currant Budget

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 5  82.245.00

2018 Conlracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 5  82.245.00

Subtotal S  164.490.00

SUB TOTAL S  2,458.738,00

total S,t1&.g58.00 [

Paxe3o/3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

SummaQ^corinfl Sheet

Peer Support Services
RFP Nvn*

RFP-2017.BBH-O2-PEERS

RFP Number Rcviewar Names

t

' Petnr Rnid

Bidder Nsme
Muimum

Points

ACIUSI

Points
2

Ann DrfscoU

Connection Peer Support Center •575 301
3
' Stacey Oubia

HEART Peer Support Center 575 271 Tom Gilnley

LoJces Reoion Consumer Advisory Board 575 365 Jamie Kelly

4
■ Monadnock Area Peer Support Afloncy 575 428 ^ Eiizsbeih Fenrter-LukslUs

On the Road to Recovery 575 481 7.

Stepping Stone Drop In Center 575 481 8.

^' This Alterrtatlve Life Center 575 453 9.

8.
TrI-Clly Consumers' Action Cooperative 575 454



Subject- Peer Suooon Set%'ice3 fSS-2Q17-DBH'02-Pl:liRS-06)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (versioo 5;»/I5)

Notice: This agreemcnl and all of ils aHachmcrts shall btscome public upon submission lo Governor and
Execulive CountiJ for appro%-nl. Any informauon lhal is private, oonndenlial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the ngency and agreed lo in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The SMfc of New Hampshire and ihe Comiwttor hcrchy mutually agree as foJJowT

general provisions

M Slate Agency Name
Deporimeniof ?!caUli and Huntan Sciviccs

1.2 Stale Aguocy Address
129 PlcossDl Sited '

Concord, Nil 03301-3857 ,

1.3 CoulraciorName

Ilic Altenwlivc Life Cento

1.4 Cimtraclor Address

6 Main Street.

Cwwnv,NH 038)8
1  ̂

U Contractor Phone

Number

603-447-1765

j.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920010-7143-102-

500731; 05-95-92-920010-
7011-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

51,046,552

1.9 Conttacdng Officer for Slate Agency
Eric B. Borrin, Director

1.10 SlaleAgcucyTelephoncNuinbcr
603-271-9358

].n CoftlraclorSignature 1.12 Name end Title of Coniiactor Signatory

-Stjdf U/ifj

1.13 Acknou-ledgemenl; Stale of rf • .Countyof \

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in blocl: 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11. aixl acknowledged that s/lie executed tlris document in ilic copacity
indicated in Nock 1-12. :

I. [3.1 Signatiu'c of Nolai->- Public or Justice of the Pmcc BONNE L HAYES '
"7'/"^^ ^ NotaryPuWIc-NewHwTpaJilw
// C'' MyCommIsstonExpffBSPcbtvttyA,20)S

1.13.2 Name arid Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

J.I4 Stale Agency Signature

Dale: Ua

); 15 Nantc and Title of Slate Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by theN-H. Dcpanmcnlof Administxatinn. Division of PcrsonnclTf^'op/Thcflh/fJ

By: Director. On:

1.17 Appro\'ol by the AUomey General (Foim, Substance ar<l fixocuiioti) (if applicabk)

1.18 ApproN-nl by the OovenKWnnd Executiv'o'Councill ((/applicable} j 1

By: ^ . On;

Page 1 of4



2. employment OFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Suic of New Hampshire, ocliog
ihreugh ibc agency idenlificd in block 1.1 ̂ Statc"), engngcs
contiaclor kienlified is block 1.3 C'Conlracior *) to perfonn,
and the Conuacior shoU pcrfoirn. the work or sale of g'Wtla, or
Urfh. ideniifieJ undmopr < - •
EXHffllT A which is incorporntcd hcrciahy reference
("Serv-ices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwilhsianding any provision of this Agrccroent lo ibc
contiaiy, and subject lo the approval of ihe Go\"cttiov and
JiXeculb-e Council of ihc Slalc of New Hampshive. if
applicahle. this Agrccnicnt. and all obligolions of the parties
hetcunder. shall become cITcctivc on the dale the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become elTectivcnn the dale the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
|.14('Kflccti\eDalc")-
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Scn-iccs prior to the
ElTcctlve Dote, oil Services perfornicd by the Coninietor prior
lo the Effective Date shall be perfovmcd at tbc sole risk of the
Conlracior, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no Hobility to the
Conirocior, iocluJing without lintitaiion. ony obligation In poy
the Contractor for any costs incuired or Services pcrtbimcd.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
spccirrcd io block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement lo the
contrary, all obligatloris of the State hcrcunder. vncluding.
wUhout limitation, the continuance of paymenLv hcrcur^er, are
contingent upon the availability and continued aj^ropnation
offunds, and in no event sboH the State be liable for anj
payments hereuoder in e.xccss of such available oppropriatcd
frmds. In the even! of a reduction or terminolioii of
appropriated funds, the Slate shall have iho right to withhold
payment until such funcb become avoilablc, if ever, and shall
hav* the right to lerminatc this Aycement immediately upon
giring the Coolraclor notke of such Icrimnation. I he Stale
sbaU not be required to iraosfer hinds from any other occouni
10 tl* Account idenliricd in block 1.6 in the event funds in thai
Account are reduced or urul^'&ilablc.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LlMlTATKWf
payment.

5.1 The contract price, method of pyment. and terms ol
paymcnl arc idenlifiod and more particularly described in
EXHIBFT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The p6)7ncnt by lite SUie of tbc conlrnci price shall Iw the
only and the complete reimbursement lo the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nalure incurred by the Contractor in Ibc
perfarmaiicc hereof, and shall be the only end the complete
compensation lo the Contractor for the Services. T he State
shall have no liability to the Conlracior other than the comrnct
price.

Page

5..1 The Stale reserves the right lo olTscl from any amounts
oihcrvrisB payable lo the Contractor under this Agrcerrtent
those liquidated timounU* required or pcnrolted bj' N.H. RSA
80;7 through RS A 80:7< or ony other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreerncnl to the
cuiUfflr)-, and imtwithstanding-njie.xpeuted crrcBmstauccs, in
no cvvnt shall the total of all pQ)-Tncnts aulhorued. or actually
made hercundcr. exceed the Price Limitation set forth io block
1,8.

6. COMPLUNCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AiND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

G. 1 In connection with the perfoimance of the Sci"vices, the
Contractor slrall comply with all statutes, bws. icgulalions.
and orders of federal, sutc, county or municipal ouihoriiies
which impose any obligotiun or duty upon the Conliactoi.
including, but riot limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may inchtdc the rcquiiement to utilize niwiliory
aids and services lo ensure that pcrsorus with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and ̂ ccch, can
communicate with, receive infortnaliDn from, and convc^'
informalion to the Contractor. Inoddition, the Contractor
ihnll comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
nut discriminate agaia-U employees or applicants foi'
employment bv^jousc of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and vrill take
Qfrinnou\"C action lo prevent such discriminotion.
C..3 If this Agreemeoi is funded in any pert by monies of the
United States, the Conlracior shall comply wilh all ths
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Emplojnicnl Opporlunily"). as supplemented by the
regulations o I the United States Depaitrocnl of Jjibor (41
C.y.R. Port 60), and wilh any rules, regulations and guidelines
a.s the Slate of New I lampshirc or the United Stales issue lo
implement these regulations. The Contractor luitltcr agrees to
pci-mit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Controctor's books, records and accounts for the purpose ol
o.^ccrtaining compliance with all rules, regulations ct*l ordcns,
and the covennnLs, terms and conditions of this ApccmetU.

7. PfcKSONNEL.

7.1 The Controcior shall at its own expense provide all
pcrsDiinel iwcessary to perform the Services. The Comracicr
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Sci-viccs shall be
qunlitlcd to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws,

7.2 Unless olbenvise aiiihori/cd in wriling. during ihc term of
this Agreement, and for o period ot sue (6) monilis after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. iho Contractor shall not hire.
oo<l shall not pennil ony subeonlracior or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined eflort to
perform tho .Services lo hire, ony pcraon who is a State
employee or official, who is motcrialiy involved in the
proeurcmcnl, administration or perfonnance of this

2 of 4
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AgrcccacQL This provision shall survive tcrminaUon of ihU
Agreement.
7.3 The Contmcliag OfTiccr specified id block 1.9, or his or
-her successor, shall be the State's represenUUve. in the event
of any dispute concerning tbc tDlerprcUition of this Agreement,
the Contradiog Officer's decision sliail be Hnal for Uic State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Anyone or more ofthcfollowngacisoromiwioasoriJie .
Contractor shallcocslilule on evcntofdcfault hereuodcr

("Evcd of Default"):
8.1.) failure toperfoim the Semccs satUlaclorily or on
schedule;
8.1 i failure to submit any rqjorl required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform ahy other covenanl, teim or condition
of this Agreemeoi.
8.1 Upon the occurrence of any E\*unt ofDcfauU. the State
may take any one, or mote, or all, of the follovxing actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written oolioe specifying the Event
of Default and itqut/ing it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser spcciftcalion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Ocfaull is
not timely remedied, tcrmioale this Agreement, effective two
(1) days after giving the ConUacvoi notice of Icnninution;
8.2.2 ̂ vc the Contractor a wiitlen notice spec ifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under tbi.t
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contraul price
which rvould olherwise accate to the Contractor during the
peiiod from the date of such notice until such lime as the Statc
detemunes (hat the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set offagainst any other obligatious the Slate moyouc to
the Contractor any damages the Stale .suffers by reason ofany
B\'ent ofOefauli; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of ii.<c
ftmcdies at law or in equi^-, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFfDENTfALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shell mean all
infonnalion and things do-eloped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agnsemcnl, bcluding, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files. fonnuUc, surveys, mops, chans, sound recording.-?, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analysu-v
graphic refaesentations, conqiuier programs, computer
prinluuis, notes, letters, mcmaianda, papers, and ducumenl-i,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.1 All data and any propcit)* which has been received frum
the State or purchased with funds provided for that putpo.sc
under this Agreement, .shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior WTiltcn approval of the Slate.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early terminalion of
this AgiecmcQi for sny reason other than the completion of (he
Services, the Conlractoi shall deliver to the Conlraeting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
ici-minotion, a irpoii ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services perfonned. and the conlracl price earned, to
and including the dale of terminalion. The form, subject
mattw, content, and number of copies of the Tenniaatioo
Rcpon shall be identical to tl>ose of any Final Rqiort
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement ihc Contractor is in all
respects on independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an en^Ioyoc of the State. Neither the Contractor nor anyofii.'S
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or recelw any benenis, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to iis employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SXJBCONTRACTS.
The Coniniclor shall no l assign, or othcrvrisc transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written aotice and
consent of tbo State. None ofthe Services shall be

subcontracted by the ConUaetoi without Ihc prior written
notice and corucnt of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Cooiraclor shall defend,
Indemnify and liold harmless the State, its officers and
emplo)ees. from and agalrul any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its ofncers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penaiiies asserted agaiost the State, its ofBcec!
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on occounl of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
cloimcd to arise out of) (he Dcts or omissions of the
Contractor. NQt\rithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
conuiincd shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immimily of the State, which immunity is hereby
reseivcd to the State. This covenanl in paragraph i 3 shall
survive the icrminDlion of this Agreement

U. LNSURANCE-

14.1 The Coiiliactor .shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and sltali require any suboonlracloror
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the follovNing
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against oil
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
uf not less than i 1 .OOO.OOOper occiuraioo and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
.1-1.1.2 special cause oVIoM coverage foirn covering all
property subject to suhparagniph 9.2 herein, in un amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on poHey furtiis and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. DvportriKmor
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of Ncw
ITompshirc.

Contractor Initials
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14.3 The Comraclor iholl furnish lo the ConinsttiiDj OfTiccr
idcQlificd in bJock 1.9, or his or her successor, o ccruficole(s>
of insurtincc for all insursnoc required under Ihis Agrvcment.
CofUmetor shall also fumi^ to (he ConUuclinp, Officer
idcmincd in block 1.9. or hi.s or ber successor, ccrtificaicts) of

■ Insifltiueu fbr flirrencuTilfs) of triiurancc icqulred undtfTifthJ
Agreement no !«ter than (toy (JO) <ia)'i prior to (he ©.xpiialion
date of each ofthc insurance policies. The cerlincalc(s) of
insuronce end any lenouals thereof shall be altochcd and nre
incoqjoialed lierein by reference. Eachccrliricatc(s)of
iasurance shalJ contain a douse inquiring the insurer to
provide the ConUacting OlVicer identified in block 1.9, or Itis
or her successor, no less thnn ihixty (30) da\-s prior written
noiice of cancellstion or modincatioo of the policy.

I.i. WORKERS'COMPENSATIOjN.

15.1 By signing this ■greemenl.ihe Contractor agrees,
certifies and nunants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt IVom. the requirements of N.I (. RS A chapter 281 -A
("lyoi-kers' CoMpetuoiioif").
15.2 To the extent the Contiaclof is subject to the
requirements of N.H. R8A chapter 281-A, Coniroclor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor oi' assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
conncciion with Kliviiies which the pcnon proposes to
undeiltke punuanl lo this Agreement. Contractor shuli
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
a* her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner desaibed in N.H RSA chapter 281 -A arxJ ony
applicable rcnewa](s) tbereof, which shall be attached and nre
incofporaled herein by reference. The Stoic shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workcj s' Compensation
premiunworfor any otiier claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Coolroctor, which mi^l
arise under epplicoble State oC New I lampshire WorkciV
Compensation laws in connection with the perfonnancc of the
Scr.'iccs under ibis Agrucmenl.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Sine lo
enforce any piovislons hereof oHer any Event of IJcfaull shall
be deemed a waiverofits rights wjih regard to that Livcni of
Dcfsull, or any subsequent Event of DclnuU. No e.>:prc«
(hilurc to cnforee any Eitnl of Default sh-ill be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all ofthc
provisions hereof upon any Airiher or other Kvcni of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be decmcil lo have been d»dy delivered or given at the .
limoofiruiiUng byoortificd mail, postage prepaid, in u United
Stotes ?ost O^ice addressed to the parties ot the addrc.ssc.i
given inbtueks 1.2 and I.4.]x;rein.

18. AMEjNDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by on instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto end only after appioval of such
amcndmcni. waiver or discharge by the Governor oud
lixeculive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required uoder the circtimstamas pursuant lo
.Sinle law, rule or policy.

J 9. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be con.stru©d in eccordaiKC with the
U\VS ftf UmJ .Vhto bfNiftV Hsmfilhifd. hftd 1.1 Mndiflg UpM and
imucs lo the benefit of the portics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in Ibis Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties lo e.Kpccss their mutual
intent, oud no rule of eonsUuelion shall be applied ogninst or
in favor «>f any party.

20. THIRD parties. Tho p.iriics hcivio do nor intend to
henefit ony third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed (o confer ony such bcncfil.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agiccnicnt
are fur reference purposes only, and (iw words contAined
ijjcicin shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in llic intctprctalion. eonstruclion or meaning of the
proNlsions of this Agreement.

12. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addiiional provisiont set
forth in the attached KXHIDfT C are incorporated herein hy (
reference.

23. SEVERfXBlLITY. In ihccvenl any oflhepromionsof
Ihi.s Agreement areheid by a court ofcompetent jurisdiction lo
be contrary to any stale or federal law, the lemaining
pfiimloas of this Agreement will remain In full force end
clTecl.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agnxmcnl, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, eoch of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes (he entire Agreement and
undcrslanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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H

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor wiU submit a detailed description of the language assistance servioes
they win provide to persons with llnru'ted English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
^  Hanpshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the

Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priohties
arxJ expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve oompliarice
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services that will:

1.3.1. increase quality of life for persons living with mental Illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase for and belief in the possibility of recovery for persons living v/lth
mental illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to persons living
with mental illness In NH.

1.3.4. Provide alternatives to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitalizalion.

1.3.5. Increase sodal connectedness for persons living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees to provide mental heaHh peer support serwces to persons 18
years of age or older who self Identify as a recipient, as a former recipient, or as a
signirK:ant risk of becoming a recipient mental health services, and may indude
persons who are homeless.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to give priority of peer support services to consumers who are
age sixty (60) and over, who are most sodal isolated, and/or risk of placement in the
public mental health service delivery system.

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the govemirtg body of a nongovernmental Peer Support
Agency.

2.2. Consumers are any individual, 18 years of age or older, vho self kJenlifies as a
redpient, as a former redpieni, or as a significant risk of becomirig a redplent of
publically funded mental health services.

2.3. Culturally Competent means having attained the knowledge, skills, and attitudes
necessary to provide effective supports, services, education and technical assistance
to the populations in the region sen/ed by the Contractor.

2.4. Business Days are defined as (Monday through Friday, exdudrng Saturday and
Sunday.

RFP-2017-QBH-02-PE6RS-06 Exhibit A Contractor Initisis:
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2.5. Guests are any persons who are invited to visit the Peer Support Agency by a
member, participant, or the Peer Support Agency.

2.6. Homeless is (1) an indtvidual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence; or (2) an individual or famiiy wtio has a primary nighttime
residence that is a supervised pubiicly or privately operated shelter designed to
provide temporary living accommodations (Including welfare hotels and congregate
shelt^s). an institution other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence for
individuals intended to be instltutionaiized, or a public or private place not designed for,
or ordinahly used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.

2.7. Management staff means staff that Is responsible for supervising other staff and
volunteers afTillated with the program.

2.8. Members are any consumers, who have made an informed decision lo join, and agree
to support the goals and objectives of peer support services.

2.9. Mental illness is defined in RSA 135-C:2 X, namely, "a substantial impalmnent of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exerdse conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impairment is manifested by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions, it does not
Include impairment pnmanly caused by: (a) epilepsy; (b) mental retardation; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous pen'ods of intoxication caused by substances such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as
alcohol or drugs."

2.10. Participant means a consumer, who is not member, who participates in any aspect of
peer support services.

2.11. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support lo persons 16 year of age and older who
have a mental Illness.

2.12. Recovery means for a person with a mental illness, development of personal and
social skilis, beliefs and characters thai support choice, increase quality.of life,
minimize or eliminate impairment, and decrease depisndence on professional services.

2.13. Region is the geographic area of cities and towns In New Hampshire, as defmed by
the Department.

2.14. SMI Is Serious Mental Illness that refers to individuals whom the state defines as
having either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness
(SPMI) pursuant lo N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2, XV.

2.15. Quarter or Quarterly is defined as the periods of July 1 through September 30, October
1 through December 31, January 1 through March 31, and April 1 through June 30.

2.16. Week Is defined as Monday through Sunday.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-P66RS-06 Exhibit A Contractor initiala;
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3. Scope of Services

3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provided for
consumers and by consumers as follows:

3.1.1.1. Provide peer support services that Include supportive interactions
shared experiences, acceptance, trust, respect, lived experience, and
mutual support among members, participants, staff and volunteers.

3.1.1.2. Provide at least forty-four hours per week of peer support services, by
face-to-face or by telephone to members of a peer support agency or
others who contact the agency.

3.1.1.3. Provide peer support services at a minimum based on the tntentional
Peer Support model that:

a. Fosters recovery from mental illness by helping Individuals Identify
and achieve personal goals while building an evolving vision of
their recovery.

b. Fosters self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and Independence;

c. Emphasizes mutuality and reciprodty as demonstrated by shared
decisiorvmaking, strong conflict resolution, non-medical
approaches to help, and non-static roles, such as, staff \Aho arc
members and members who are educators;

d. Offers alternative viev/s on mental health, mental lllhess and the
effects of trauma artd abuse;

e. Encourages Informed decision-making about all aspects of
people's lives;

f. Supports people with mental illness in challenging perceived self-
limitations, while encouraging the development of beliefs that
enhance personal and relational growth;

g. Emphasizes a holistic approach to health that includes a vision of
the "whole" person.

3.1.1.4. Provide opportunities to learn wellness strategies, by using at a
minimum Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and Whole
Health Action Management (WHAM), to strengthen a member's and
participant's ability to attain and maintain their health and recovery
from mentallllness

3.1.1.5. Provide outreach by face-to-face or l?y telephone contact with
consunners by providing support lo members wtio are unable to attend
agency activities, visiting people who are psychialrically hospitalized
and reaching out to people ̂ o meet membership criteria and are
homeless.
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3.1.1.6. Provide monthly newsletters published by the peer support agency
that describes agency services and activities, other community
services, social and reaeational opportunities, member articles and
contributions and other relevant topics that might be of interest to
members and participants.

3.1.1.7. Distribute the Newsletters to the members and other interested
parlies, such as community mental health centers and other
appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business days
prior to the upcoming month.

3.1.1.8. Provide Monthly Education Events and Presentations of information
germane to issues and concerns of consumers of mental health

■ services which shall include, education topics to be covered over the
course of the year, but not limited to:

a. Rights Protection,

b. Peer Advocacy,

c. Recovery.

d. Employment

e. Weihess Management, and

f. Community Resources.

3.1.1.9. Provide at least 5 days prior to the beginning of the month, to the
Office of Consumer and Family Affairs within the Deparimenfs
Bureau of Behavioral Health, both electronic and a paper copy of the
monthly newsletlers and "education events in Section 3.2.1.16 and
Section 3.2.1.18.

3.1.1.10. Provide Individual Peer Assistance by assisting adults to:

a. Locate, obtain, and maintain mental health senrices and supports

through referral, consumer education, and self-empowerment.

b. Support individuals who are Identifying problems by assisting
them In addressing the issue andfor in resolving grievances; and

c. Promote self-advocacy.

3.1.1.11. Provide Employment Education by assisting members with:
a. Information on obtaining and maintaining competitive employment

(any employment open to the general public and achieved during
the quarter, even if employment is time limited),

b. Referrals to community mental health centers employment
programs,

c. Employment related activities such as. but not limited to. resume

writing, interviewing, or assistance with employment applications.
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3.1.1.12. Inform the members and general public about the peer supports and
wellness services available at a rranimum as follows:

a. Provide monthly Community Education Presentations to
potential referral sources, funders, or families of individuals
affected by mental illness, about mental Illness and the peer
support community.

3.1.1.13. Inform local human service providers and the general public about the
stigma of mental illness, wellness and recovery at a rranimum as
follows:

a. Collaborate with other (oca! human service providers that serve

consumers in order to facilitate referrals and share Information

about services and other local resources.

3.1.1.14. Provide training and technical assistance to help consumers on their
own behalf regarding healthcare such as but not limited to, sharing
techniques for being ready for a doctor's appointment, how to take
notes, how to use the physician's desk reference book for
medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.1.15. Invite guests to participate in peer support activities.

3.1.1.16. Provide residential support services as needed by meml«rs and
participants by providing support and assistance such as but not
limited to help with staying In their home or apartment, or finding a
place to live.

3.1.1.17. Maintain at least a monthly schedule of peer support and wellness
services and activities, staff development and training, and other
related events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and •
guests as follows:

3.2.1. Use a Contractor owned or leased vehicle.

3.2.2. Transport members, participants, guests to and from their homes and/or the
Contractor's peer support agency to participate in activities such as but not
limited to:

3.2.2.1. Peer Support Services

3.2.2.2. Wellness and Recovery Aclivities

3.2.2.3. Annual Conferences

3.2.2.4. Regional Meetings

3.2.2.5. Council Meetings

3.2.3. Comply v\^th all applicable Federal and State Department of Transportation and
Department of Safety regulations such as but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative Rule Saf-C
500
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3^.3.2. Vehicles must be inspected in accordance with NH Admirtistrative
Rule Saf-C 32(30, and

3^.3.3. Drivers must be licensed in 'accordance with NH Administrative Rule
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing

3.2.4. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers wtto drive Contractor
owned vehicles sign a Stale of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form that shows the driver has a safe driving record.

3.2.5. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Driving course
offered through a Stale of New Hampshire approved agency.

3.2.6. Agrees that funding from the Department to support transportation costs may
rwt be used for other than peer support related activities defined In this
Agreement and may not be used to pay for taxi or bus rides.

3.3. Crisis Respite

3.3.1. The Contractor agrees to operate a peer operated Crisis Respite that provides
earty intervention for Individuals (16) years of age and older who have a mental
illness and who are experiencirrg a crisis in the community as follows;

3.3.1.1. Provide to any consumer from any of the Regions In New Hampshire
regardless of where they live or work.

3.3.1.2. Provide a short-term crisis respite In a safe environment, staffed by
peers, intended to maintain community placement and avoid
hospitalization.

3.3.1.3. Provide interventions using a mode) of Intentional Peer Support (IPS),
that focus on individual's strengths and assists in personal recovery
and wellness.

3.3.1.4. Provide a place for the person to slay temporaray in order to facilitate
recovery and shall be staffed with a trained personnel twenty-four (24)
hours per day when partidpants are in the program..

3.3.1.5. Develop a referral process and making referrals to the local
communiiy mental health center for those who require a higher lave)
of care or evaluation for hospilalization.

3.3.1.6. Offer other peer support, agency services and supports during the
course of stay at the crisis respite program.

3.3.1.7. Provide transportation to and from the aisis respite program to other
community-based appointments.

3.3.1.8. Administer a functional assessment that is approved by the
Department, at the time of entry and exit from the program.

3.3.1.9. Provide individualized supports with a focus on wellness and recovery
that may include Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP), if
applicable.

3.3.1.10. Support the Individual in reluming to participation in community
activities, services and supports.
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3.3.1.11. Ensure the Individual's health needs if they become ill or injured are
addressed during the course of their stay in the crisis respite program.

3.3.1.12. Ensure communication with olher service providers involved in the
Individuaf'scare. wth their written consent.

3.4. Warmline Services

3.4.1. The Contractor agrees to provide warmline services that offers on-call
telephone peer support services to members, participants, and others that:
3.4.1.1. Are primarily provided to any individual who lives or works in Region

1, or anyone who lives or works elsewhere In the State of New
Hampshire or oul-of-state.-

3.4.1.2. Are provided during the hours the peer support agency Is closed.
3.4.1.3. Are mainly prowded to Individuals in the Contractor's region with the

ability to receive calls from and make calls to individuals statewide,

3.4.1.4. Assist individuals In addressing a current crisis related to their mental
health.

3.4.1.5. Refer clients to appropriate treatment and other resources In the
consumer's service area.

3.4.1.6. Are provided by staff that are trained in providing crisis sen/ices.

3.4.1.7. May include outreach calls described in Section 3.2.1.5

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services
4.1. The Contractor will provide services in this Agreement to individuals who live or work

in Region 1, and other Regions specific to services identified in Section 3.3 and 3.4.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local mental health center, unless pre-approved by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a physical location/building to provide peer support
services that are in accordance with Exhibit C Section 15 and with the Life Safety
requirements that Include but not Irmitod to:

4.3.1. A Building In compliance with local heatth, buHding and fire safety codes,

4.3.2. A Building that is maintained in good repair and be free of hazard,

4.3.3. A building that includes:

4.3.3.1. Alleast one indoor bathroom which includes a sink and toilet.

4.3.3.2. At least one telephone for Incoming and outgoing calls,

4.3.3.3. A functionir>g septic or other sewage disposal system, and

4.3.3.4. A source of potable water for drinking and food preparation as follows:
a. If drinking water Is supplied by a non-public water system, the

v/aler shall be tested and found to be in accordance with New
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Hampshire Administrative Rules Env-Ws 315 and Ehv-Ws 316
initially and every five fSI years

b.

5.

If the water is not approved for drinking, an alternative method
for providing safe drinking water shall be impleriTent^

Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a
Peer Support Agency

5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services to Individuals defined in
S^jon 1.4 and 1.5 who have a desire to work on wellness Issues, and who have a
willing desire to participate in services.

5.2. The Contractor may encourage consumers to complete a membership application to
join and support the activities and mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.3. The Contractor agrees that at a minimum the membership application shall slate that
the consumer supports the mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.4. The Contractor agrees to provide services in this Contract to any consumers who are
non-members or members partldpating In services.

6. Staffing Requirements for a Peer Support Agency
6.1. The Contractors shall employ an executive director wtio:

6.1.1. Is appointed by the board of directors (as In Section 8);
6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the board of directors in

accordance with the published job description and competitive application
process;

6.1.3. Has at a minimum the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One year of supervisory or management experience, and
a. An associate's degree or higher administration, business

management, education, health, or human services; or

b. Each year of experience in the peer support field may be
substituted for one year of academic experience: or

c. Each year of experience In the peer support field may be
substituted for one year of academic experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the board of directors to ensure that peer support and
wellness services and activities are provided In accordance with:

6.1.4.1. The performance expectations approved by the board
6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules

6.1.4.3. The Contract lerms and conditions

6.1.4.4. The Quality improvement reviews

6.2. The Contractor shall provide suffident staff to perform all tasks spedfled in this
Agreement.
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6.3. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and cany out all
of the functions, requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion for the number of
clients as Identified in Seclfon 11.

6.4. The Contractor shall select and employ staff utilizing practices and procedures as
approved by the Oepartment, that include at a minimum, essurarxje that offers of
employment are made in waiting and Include salary, start date, hours to be worthed,
and job responsibilities, and that prior employment references shall be obtained and
verified,

6.5. The Contractor shall screen each staff nDember for tuberculosis prior to employmenl.

6.6. The Contractor shall complete a Criminal Record Check, and submit the names of a
prospective employee vuho may have client contact, for review against the State Adult
Protective Service Registry, and against the Division of Chadren, Youth and Families
Central Registry Check to assure that any person who is in regular contact with
members and vi^ becomes employed by the Contractor or its Subcontractor after the
Effective Date of this Agreement is screened for criminal convictions in accordance
vwth RSA 106-8:14 which allows any public or private agency to request and receive a
copy of the criminal conviction record of another who has provided authorization In •
writing, duly notarized, explicitly allowing the requester to receive such Information.

6.7. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund, or transfer among programs staff
positions Vkrtlhout prior written permission from the Department.

6.8. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and shall submit their written
Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty days of the effective date of
the contract that Includes but not be limited to:

6.8.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel
or other personnel during the period of this Agreement;

6.8.2. The description of how additional staff resources will be allocated to support
this Agreement in the event of inability to meet any performance standard;

6.8.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements;

6.8.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide. In a timefy manner,
staff replacements/additions with comparable experience.

7. Staff Training and Development
7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have appropriate

training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities of their
respective positions, by keeping up-to-date personnel and training records and
documentation of all Individuals.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide orientation for all new staff prowding peer support that
includes, but not limited to:

7.2.1. The statewide peer support system,

7.2.2. All Department policies and rules applicable to the peer support,

7.2.3. Protection of member and participant rights.

7.2.4. Contractor policies and procedures

7.2.5. PSA grievance procedures.

RFP-2017^BH-02.PEERS-06 Exhibit A Contractorlnilials^^^^
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7.2.6. Harassment, discrimination, and diversify.

7.2.7. Documentation

logs, and

7.2.8. Confidentiality

7.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement written staff development policies
appficable to all staff that specincally address the following:
7.3.t. Job Descriptions

7.3.2. Staffing pattern

7.3.3. Conditions of employment

7.3.4. Grievance procedures

7.3.5. Performance reviews

7.3.6. Individual staff development plans

7.3.7. Prior employment, each staff member shall demonstrate evidence of or
willingness to verify:

7.3.7.1. CHizenship or authorization to work

7.3.7.2. Wolor Vehicle Records check to ensure that potential employee has a
valid driver's license, if such employee will be transporting members
or participants

7.3.7.3. Criminal Records Check

7.3.7.4. Previous employment

7.3.7.5. References

7.4. The Cof^trado^ shall screen each staff member, prior to employment, for tuberculosis
(TB) as follows:

7.4 1. AH newly employed employees, including Ihose with a history of bacille
calmette guerin (BCG) vaccination, who will have direct contact with members
and participants and the potential for occupational exposure to Mantoux TB
through shared air space with persons with Infectious TB shall have a TB
symptom screen, consisting of a Mantoux tuberculin skin lest or QuantiFERON-
TB test, performed upon employment;

7.4.2. Baseline two-step testing, if performed in associaliori with Mantoux testing,
shall be corwiucted in accordance with the Guidelines for Environmental
infection Control In Health-Cane Fadlilies (2003) published by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC);

7.4.3. Employees wth a documented history of TB, documented history of a positive
Mantoux test, or documented completion of treatment for TB disease or latent
TB infection may substitute that documentation for the baseline twO'Step test,

7.4.4. Ail positive TB test results shall be reported to the department's bureau of
disease control, 271-4469, in accordance with RSA 141'C:7, He-P 301.02 and
He-P 301.03;

r
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745 All employees with a diagnosis of suspect active pulmonary or laryngea TB
shall be excluded from the PSA until a diagnoas of TB is excluded or untrl
employee is on IB treatment and a determination has been made that the
employee is noninfectious;

7.4.6. All employees with a newly positive tuberculin skin test shall be excluded from
the PSA until a diagnosis of TB disease is ruled out;

7 4 7 Repeat TB testing shall be conducted in accordance with the CDC's Guidelinesfor Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities (2003); and

7.4.8. Those employees with a history of previous positive results shall have a
symptom screen and, if symptomatic for TB disease, be referred for a medical
evaluation.

7.5. The Contractor shall complete an annual performance review based on the staffs
Job description and conducted by his or her supervisor.

7.6. The Contractor shall complete a staff development plan annually with each staff
person by his or her supervisor that is based upon the staffs annual performance
review, and that includes objectives and methods for improving the staff person s
work-related skills and knowledge.

7.7. The Contractor shall conduct or refer staff to training activities that address
objectives for improving staff competencies and according to the staffs
development plan, along vwth ongoing training in protection of member and
participant rights.

7.8. The Contractor agrees to maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed
trainings and certifications.

7 9 The Contractor shall obtain Department approval 30 days prior to the training I®'"
all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered by the
Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as but not limited to;

7.9.1. Peer Support:

,  7.9.2. Warmline;

7.9.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups;

7.9.4. Sexual Harassment; and

7.9.5. Member Rights.

7.10. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its required
consultations to meet certirication a minimum of every other year.

7 11 The Contractor agrees that if Intentional Peer Support Is not being offered in a ̂ ven
year the Contractor shall provide Wellness, Recovery, and Planning training to staff.

7.12. The Contractor agrees that Administrative staff. Including the Executive Director,
shall participate in trainings on;

7.12.1. Staff Development;

7.12.2. Supervision;

RFP-2Ot7-BBH-02-PEeRS-06 Exhibit A Contractor
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7.12.3. Perfonmance Appraisals;

7.12.5. Harassment;

7.12.6. Program Deveiopment;

7.12.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process; and

7.12.8. Finandai Management.

7.13. The Vendor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other menial health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a peer support agency in the region.

7.14.The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department at least five (5) days prior
to the training, to provide or refer staff to spedfic training proposed by either the
Department or the Contractor.

7.15. The Contractor agrees to provide documentation to the Department within 30 days
from the training in Section 7.14 that demonstrates the staff per50n(s) partidpation and
completion of said trainlr>g.

7.16. The Contractor agrees to collaborate with other Peer Support Agendes to offer
combined Irainirrgs to fadiitate more efficient use of training funds and to increase the
scope of trainings offered.

7.17.The Contractor shall require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive
Contractor owned vehicles sign a Slate of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form. Those records must indicate a safe driving record, and
that the driver has partidpated In a National Safety Council Defensive Driving course
offered through a Slate of New Hampshire approved agency.

7.18. The Contractor shall purge all data in accordance with the instruclfohs from the
Department pertaining to members, partidpants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two-year.period.

8. Composition and ftesponslbilities of a Peer Support Agency
8.1. The Contractor shall establish arwl maintain a status as a Peer Support Agertcy by.

8.1.1. Being incorporated with the Secretaiy of State's Office as a non-fcr-profit
agency

8.1.2. Having a plan for governance that requires:

8.1.2.1. A Board of Directors who:

a. Have the responsibility for the entire management and control of
. the property and affairs of the corporation;

b. Have the powers usually-vested in the board of directors of a non-
for-profft corporation

c. Is comprised of no fewer than 9 individuals vrith at least 51% of
the individuals who self Identify as consumers and no more than

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 ExhibltA Contraclor Initiate:
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20% of the board members shall be related by bfood, marriage, or

cohabitation to other board members.

d. Establish and maintain the bylaws

8.1.2.2. Bylaws that outline the:

a. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of Directors;

b. Term limits for the board of director officers that shall not allow

more than 20% of the board members to serve for more than 6

consecutive years

c. Nominating process that actively recruits diverse Individuals

whose skills and life experiences will serve the needs of the
agency

d. A procedure by which Inactive peer support agency members
are removed from the peer support agency board.

8.2. The Contractor will submit to the Department within 5 days, a corrective action plan,
with time frames when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required
minimum of nine (9).

8.3. The Contractor will submit to the Department and NH Department of Justice. Division
of Charitable Trusts and the Department, and updated list of current board members
and a corrective action plan with timeframes when the Board of Directors membership
falls below the Slate of New Hampshire minimum required number of five (5).

8.4. The Contractor shall have written descriptions outlining the duties of the members and
officers of the board of directors.

Q.5. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the
members and officers of the board of directors.

8.6. The Contractor shall have annual trainings related to the members arvj officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

8.7. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval of agency financial policies and procedures that includes, but not be
limited to, the following:

8.7.1. Cash Management indoding cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty
cash;

0.7.2. Accounts Payable/Recelvaljle Procedures. payroD, and fixed assets;

8.7.3. Intemal Control Procedures; and

8.7.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

8.8. The Contractor shall have open attendance to peer support agency members during a
portion of a board meeting.

8.9. The Contractor shall publish the times and locations of Board of Director meetings in
an effort to encourage peer support agency member attendance.

8.10. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall:

RFP-2017-BflH-02-P6eRS-0e ExWbil A Contractor Initials;
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8.10.1. Maintain written records (board minutes) of their meetings including but not
limited to. topics discussed, votes and actions taken, and a monthly review of
the agency's financial status and submit the minutes to the Department within
60 days of the meeting.

8.10.2. Maintain a current Board of Drector fist. Including but not limited to, member
name, board office held, address, phone number, e-mai! address, date joined,
and term expiration date.

8.10.3. Maintain documentation of the process and results of aruiual board elections.

8.10.4. Notify the Department Immediately in voting of any change in board
membership.

8.11. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department upon request a
policy manual that at a minimum Includes policies for:

8.11.1. Human Resources

8.11.2. Staff Development

8.11.3. Financial Responsibilities

8.11.4. Protection for memfc)er and participant rights.

8.12. The Contractor agrees to pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer
support services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may
not pay for under this Agreement.

9. Participation In Statewide/Regional Meetings
9.1. The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of individuals for serving on

local, regional and state mental health policy, planning and advisory Initiatives.
Partidpation of Individuals shall be from other than the Contractor's employees who
provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training events.

9.2. The Contractor's Executive Director, or designee. shall attend the Departmertt's
monthly Peer Support Directors' meeting that Is held for the purpose of information
exchange, support, and strengthening of the statewide Peer Support system.

9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, e.g.. merttal health
centers, area homeless shelters, commurtity acfton programs, housing agendes, etc.,

9.4. The Contractor shall submit to the Department written documentation demonstrating
attendance at the meetings, but no\ limited to, the meetings in Section 9.2 and 9.3.

10. Grievance and Appeals

10.1. The Contractor shall submit for [Department approval within 30 days from the contract
effective date a grievance and appeals process that Includes, but not limited to:

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PcERS~06 Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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10.1.1. Receiving complaints orally or in writing and anonymously that includes at a
minimum;

10.1.1.1. consumer name.

10.1.1.2. date of written grievance,

10.1.1.3. nature/subject of the grievance.

10.1.2. Assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process such as but not
limited to filing a complaint

10.1.3. Tracking complaints

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participant's rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants;

10.1.5. An immediate review of the complaint and investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her designee

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance tor which a formal
investigation is requested.

10 1.7. Following completion of a formal investigation, the board of directors of the
PSA shall issue a written decision to the member or participant within 20
business days selling forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.1.8. Submitting a copy of the written decision in Section 10.1.7 of the complaint to
the Department within 10 days from the written decision.

10.1.0. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal the written decision
madeln Section 10.1.7

11. Deliverables

11.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval by July 31 of each State Fiscal
Year, a Peer Support Agency Quarterly Statistical Data Form provided by the
Depilment that provides each Stale Fiscal Years deliverables, such as but not limited
to the number of members, participants, program utilization, phone contacts, outreach
activities, educational events.

11 2 The Contractor shall increase the unduplicated numbers being served in Section 11.1
by ten (10) percent of the total served in the previous year, for each subsequent State
Fiscal Year.

112 1 The Contractor shall provide a plan for Department approval by July 31 of each
State Fiscal Year, describing hbw the Contractor will increase the deliverables
described in Section 11.2.

12. Reporting

12.1. The Contractor agrees to report on forms provided by the Department a list of the
trained individuals as In Section 7.

V/i
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12.2-TTie Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, quarterly peer support service deliverables, as In Section 11 on forms supplied
by the Department.

12.3. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, quarterly Revenue and Expenses by cost and/or program category and
locations, on forms supplied by the Department.

12.4. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, a quarterly Capital Expenditure Report, on a form supplied by the Department,

12.5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
end of each month, the prior months, interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss
Statements for the Contractor Including separate statements for related parties that are
certified by an officer of the reporting entity to measure the agency's fiscal Integrity as
follows:

12.5.1. Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available to
cover the cost of current liabilities by using the foltowing formula: Total cument
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Contractor shaD rriaintain a
minhnum current ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance allo\wed.

12.5.2. Accounts Payable that measures the Contractor's timeliness In paying invoices.
The Contractor shall not have outstanding invoices greater than sixty (60) days.

12 5 3 Budget Management that compares budget to actual revenues and expenses
to determine on a year -to-date basis the percentage of the Contractors budget
executed year-lo-date.

12.5.3.1.Formula: (Revenues) Actual year-lo-date revenues compared to
budgeted revenues divided by twelve (12).months limes the number
of months in the reporting period. (Expenses) Actual year-to-date
expenses compared to budgeted expenses divided by twelve (12)
months times the number of months in the reporting period.

12.5.3.2. Performance Standard: Revenues shall be equal to or greater than
the year-to-date calculation. Expenses shall be equal to or less than
the year-to-date calculafion.

12.6. The Contractor shall provide to the Department tiy the 30th of the month follo\Mng the
end of each month, the prior months Board of Director meeting minutes Including all
attachments such as but not limited to the Executive Directors report.

13- Quality Improvement

13.1.The Contractor agrees to quality assurance review as follows:
13.1.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract

compliance requirements as identified In OMB Circular A-133.

13.1.2. Ensure the Department is provrded with access that includes but is not limited
^ to:

13.1.2.1. Data

13.1.2.2. Financial records
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13.1.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractof worV siles/locations/woilt spaces and
associated facilities.

13.1.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work siles/locations/work spaces
and associated facilities.

13.1.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Conlraclor principals and daff

13.2. The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities including but not limited to:

13.2.1. Participate in quality improvement review as in Section 13.1
13.2.2. Conduct member satisfaction surveys provided by and as instructed the

Deparlment.

13.2.3. Review of personr^el files for completeness; and

13.2.4. Review of complaint process.

13.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Oepartm^t within
thirty (30) days from the dale the Department notifies the Contractor is not in
compliance with the contract. ;

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
Th,«tem36v,LiftC.nt.r Pag.,7olt7 n.,. i'3l-l^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurrtan Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B

■  MettTod'BTict CDndltfCTSTrgcgggntTgTavfnenr

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
of the Genera! Provisions of this Agreement, Form P-37, for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agroemeni Is funded by:
2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;
2.2. Federal funds from the United Stales Deparlment of Health and Human Services, the

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Community Mental
Health Services Block Grant (CFDA #93.958J.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance
with funding requirements In Section 2 above.

A. The Deparlment may make an Initial payment to the Contractor each July of an amount
determined by the Department as necessary for the Contractor to Initiate services each
Stale Fiscal Year.

5. Subsequent to the action in Section 4. the Deparlment shall make monthly payments to the
Contractor of either 1/12 or based upon documented cash needs as submitted by the
Contractor to maintain services and approved by the Department, of the Department
approved budget amounts in Exhibit B-1 and B-2.

5.1. in no event shall the total of the initial payment in Section 4 and monthly payments in
Section 5 exceed the budget amounts In Exhibit B-1 and 8-2.

5.2. The Department will adjust monthly payments for expenditures set forth in Section 9
below and amounts paid to initiate services in Section 4 above.

5.3. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the budgets identified as Exhibits B-1 through
Exhibits B-2, as approved by the Department.

5.4. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the Department in accordance
with appKcable state and federal laws and regulations.

6. The Contractor agrees that v/hsn funding received by the Department exceeds the
Contractor's actual expenditures, the Contractor may submit tn writing for Department
approval by June 1 of each State Fiscal Year a plan to expend the excess funds.
6.1, The Contractor agrees that when funding received by the Deparlment exceeds the

Contractor's actual expenditures and does not submit a plan to the Departhnent by June
1 of each State Fiscal Year, then Contractor agrees to return those unspent funds to the
Department.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to Exhibits B-1 through Exhibits B-2, to adjust amounts within the
budgets, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parlies and
may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.
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8. Payment for services provided in Exhibit A Scope of Services shall be made as follows:

8.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied forms, by the tenth
(10^ working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses Incurred In the prior month. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor (n accordance vAth Section 5, Wthin thirty (30) days of receipt of each DHH8
approved Invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

8.2. The invoice must be submitted to:
Financial Manager
Bureau of Behavioral Health

Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

9. Of the Budgeted amounts Identified in Exhibits B-1 and B-2. for each State Fiscal Year the
following activities will be reimbursed only on a cost reimbursement basis (except for 9.2
Capital Reserve Fund, See Section 11 below). only upon prior approval of the Department,
and up to the amounts listed below as follows:
9.1. Training and Development: $1,000.
92. Capital Reserve Fund: SO
9.3. Capital Experxiiture: SO
9.4. Crisis Respite: $87,561.
9.5. Retirement: $2,371.

10. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied fonns for expenditures listed
In Section 9 above, by the tenth (10th) working day of each month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor on actual expenditures, within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each DHHS approved invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this
Agreement.
10.1. The invoice must be submitted to;

Financial Manager
Bureau of Behavioral Health
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

11. Capita) Reserve Fund: The Contractor agrees that the amount budgeted for Capital
Reserve Fund In Section 9 is the maximum amount of funding the Contractor estimates to
use for a future expenditure (In subsequent State Fiscal Years of the contract period) of a
capital expense.
11.1. The Contractor agrees that a capital expense is for purchase of an Item vyith a life of

greater than one year.
11.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with three quotes and explanation for

the capital Item and shall obtain Department approval prior to purchasing the item.
11.3. The Ccntraclor agrees that real estate and major capital building improvements are

not an allowable capital expenditure.
11.4. The Contractor shall invoice the Department by May of each State Fiscal Year on a

Department supplied form to receive funding for the Capital Reserve Fund.
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11.5. The Contractor shatl ciepoBll funds identified as Capital Reserve FundTn Section 9
Info a lyiJlflclod accuuitl. ■ift~5h'~5WC(JiTFTOT~to exceed tne equjv^nt or me
depreciation of real and non-real property capital Items, for replacernenl,
repairs/maintenance of same.

11.6. The Contractor agrees to obtain prior approval from the Department to withdraw the
funding from the restricted account and purchase the item in Section 11.2 above.

11.7. The Contractor agrees to return the unspent money in the Capita! ResOAre Fund
should the Agreement be terminated or end without the purchase of the capital item.

12. Capita) Expenditure; The Contractor agrees that the amount budgeted for Capital
Expenditure in Section 9 is for a capital expense approved by the Department for an
expense in the current State Fiscal Year.
12.1. The Contractor agrees that a capital expense Is for purchase of an item with a life of

greater than one year.
12.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with three quotes and explanation for

the capital ttem and shall obtain Dep^ment approval prior to purchasing the Item.
12.3. The Contractor agrees that real estate and m^or capital building improvements are

not an allowable capital expenditure.

13. Refrement: The Contractor shall deposit funds Identified as Retirement in Section 9 Into a
restricted account The Contractor agrees to obtain prior approval from the Department to
withdraw the funding from the restricted account to pay for retirement berwHts.

14. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved budgets in Section 5 shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

15. The Contractor shall provide supporting documentation, when required by the Department,
to support evidence of actual expenditures, in accordance with the Department approved
budgets in Section 5.

16. When the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at lul)
capacity at no charge to the Department for the duration of the contract period.

17. Funding may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

ia, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

19. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds not used, in whole or in
part, for the purposes slated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one hundred and
twenty (120) days of the Completion Date.

20. Contractor will have forly-five (45) days from the end of each State Fiscal Year to submit to
the Department final invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior Invoice will
need to be accompanied Ijy supporting documentation. . ̂

RFP-a017-B8H-02-PEEnS-0fl ExWDit 0 . ContragW Inlttats
The Allemativt Life Center 11.» /

PigeSofa Date ^



Exhibit B-1

BUDGET FORM

New Hainpshire Depotbnent of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: The Alteruaflve UN Center

Budaet Reousst for: Peer Suppoh Services
fWamo QtRfP)

Budut Period: r/1/16 throunh 6/30/17

600 'ER8CMNEL COSTS

Satarv&VMoes 3t 1.703

602 Emplovce Benefit 29.181

603 'tvroU taxes ^5.645
Subtotal 364.732

620 PROFESSIONAL FEES

624 Accounllna 7SCD

625 ^udit Fees 6.100

.egat Fees 30 -

627 3ther Pro/essional Fees and Consullar>ls 0

Subbstel -  16,630

630 STAFF C>£\/FloPMemt and training
631 Publlcaliors and Journals 0

632 in-Servlce Traininq 1.000

Conferences and Conventions 0

634 Other Staff Development 0

Subtotal 1.000

640 OCCUPANCY COSTS i

641 Refit 57.W6

642 Mortoage Payments 0

643 Heaung Costs . 0

Other UtUfdes 6S40

645 Maintenance and Repairs 1.160

646 Taxes 0

647 Ottier Occuoancv Costs 0

Subtotal 66.688

€60 CONSUMADLE SUPPUES

651 Office 4.651
652 tufldrnQ/Household 2.640

953 ?i!habilitation/Tralnina 0

655 Food 5.792

eST Other Consumable Suoalles 0

Subtotal 12.483

Other EXDcnses

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

665 CAPITAL RESFRVE FUND
670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1.560

680 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 0

700 ADVERTISING 300

710 PftlNTINQ 0

720 TELEPHONE/COMMUNICATIONS 11.773

730 POSTAGE/SHIPPING 1-.^
Subtotal 15.532

740 TRANSPORTATION
741 Beard Members 0

742 Staff 12.329

743 Members end Pahidoants 21,942

Subtotal 34.271

750 Assistance to individuals

Client Services

1i2 Ctoth'ma

Subtotal
760 iNSUrUNCE

762 VeNclee 8.491

763 Comprahensvo Prooertv & Uabilitv 5015

800 OTHER 0(PENOlTUReS ^34

801 INTEREST EXPENSE 0

Subtotal 13.740

lOTi L PROGRAM EXPENSES 523.2Ti

B-1
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Exhibit B-2

BUDGETFORfcT

fiew Hampsfrirfi Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET f CRM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Name: The AUcroali'.'e Life Cenler

Budflet Request lor: Peer Support Services
(Name of RfP)

Budget Period: 7/1/17 IhfouRh 6;j0/18

600 PERSONNEL COSTS

601 Salarv&Waaes aifYoS
602 Emolovee Bertem 29.161

603 Peviofl taxes 23.845

Subtotal 364.732

620 PROPESSIONAU FEES * ;. U" '■I'.'SfriSSf
624 Accountino 7.SOO
625 Audit Fees 5.100
626 Lcaal Fees 30

627 Other Prortssiona! Fees and Consultanis 0

- Subtotal 15.630
slAFFO^gLOi'MEIVrANDTRAlNlAlO

eat PubUcetlons and Journals 0

632 IrvServlce Tralnina 1.000

633 Conferences and Conventions 0
634 Other Staff Develoornent 0

Subtotal 1,000
640 OCCUPANCY COSTS

hent 57.885

642 Morlqage Pavmente 0

^43 Heatira Costs 0

644 other utilities ^ e.540

645 Maintenanceand Reoairs 1.160
646 Yaxes 0

647 Other Occupancv Costs 0

Subtotal
650 CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES
651 Omce 4.D5i
652 BuOdino/Household 2.ft40
653 RehabllitatienfTrainlna 0
655 Food iysi
^57 Other Consumable Supolies 0

Subtotal 12,483
Other Exoenses

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
66^ Depreciation
670 tQUlPMENl KENfAL 1,560
660 E0UIPMEI4T MAINTENANCE 0

700 ADVERTISING 300

7l6 0

720 TELEPHONEyCOMMUNICATIONS 11.773
730 POSTAGE/SHIPPING 1.900

Subtotal 16.532
740 TRANSPORTATION
741 Board f^embers 0

742 Staff 12.32§
74i Members end ParticioBnis ii.d42

Subtotal 34Jt71
750 Aselstartce to individuals
751 Client Services
752 Ciothlno

Subtotal
700 INSURANCE
762 Vehicles ^491
7B3 Comofchensiva Prooertv S Liability 5.015
666 OTHER EXPENDITURES 234
601 inYeresY Expense 0

Subtotal li.740

YdYAL t^RDoAAM EXPENSES 5ii,276
Exhibit B-2
Pegs 1 of i
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New Hsmpshiro Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Coritroctor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for serTnces provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eilgiblllty determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state lasvs, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eli^Iity determinations shall be made on forms prowdcd by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prMcribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by (he Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services bereunder, which file shaD Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall himish the Department with aK forms and documentation
rcgardlrjg ellglbllty determinations that the Department may request or rec^Jlre.

4. Fair Hoarfngs: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals dedarcd Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants lor services shall be permitted to fill out
an appBcation form and that each appflcant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordarKe with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Ktckbocks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contred to accept or
make a paymer^t. gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. RelroQctfVe Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contrad oc in any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that.no payments wHl be rrade hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs jncurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nolhing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which r^mburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the ̂ ality of such service, oral a
rale which exceeds the rate charged by the Corttractor to inetiglblo Individuals or other third party
hjnders for such service, ff at eny time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall deterntinc that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible indivldusts
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.t. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. In which event new rates ̂ ad be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Lj A j[
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New Hampshire Department o1 Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall consftbJte an Event of_D^fau1t hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligtollity oTm'3]wduair?a services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

5. Msinterrence of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

Ffscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Peiiod. said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and v/hlch are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitJons and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
irvkind conthbutions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services dunng the Contract Period, which records shall include all rocords of application and
eiigibilrty (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regardlrrg the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

3.3. Medlcat Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department ̂thtn 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance vdth the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A'133, "Audits of Stales. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizatfons" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAG standards) as
they pertain to financial compt/ance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review. During the term of this Conlfact and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to ell reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

B2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to Vihich exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereufider or collected
In Connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Departrrient regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requirirrg such information In'connection with their officlal duties and for purposes
directly connected to the admlnislration of the sen/Ices and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's rcsponstbllHies with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Eibibil C - Special Pfovistons Contradoi in!tiaJ8_l
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwfthstandina anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragfapt\ sttail survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following report at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-aDowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other fnformat'on as shaii be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

112. Flnai Report; A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled In the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Compfetion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (excepi such obligations as.
by fiie terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shaO disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Depar^ent shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are dtsaliowed or to recover such sums from the Conlractor.

13. Credits: Ail documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the sen/ices of the Contract shall Include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from PHHS before printing, procijction,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, IrKfuding, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under tfie contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In (he operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and vvlth any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the confractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of thie said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conSllons ofeatJi such license or permit (n connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply wtth all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the lo(^ tire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Ran (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of 5500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contrador InXials
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Exhibit C

more employees, it vvill msintBin a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, ce^fytngthat its EEOP is on fi(e. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
wiih rewer man 6u employees, regarotess or the amount or tne award, the recipient vMti provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying K is not required to submit or meintain an EEOP. Non
profit orgar^zations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educatlonalinsUtutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certiflcafion Forms are available at; http'J/www.ojp.u$doj/about/ocrfpdfs/ceft.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency <LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limfted English Proficiency, and resulting agency gutdarrce, national origin
discrimination includes discrlmlnalion on fire basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance wUh the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Tide VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must lake reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
mearungfijj access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
foHowing shall apply to afl contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101(currentty, S150,000)

COfrTRACTOR EMPLOYEE VVHISTL6BL0WER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TOlNFORM EMPLOYEES OF

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization''Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, In the predorrwant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights end protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c), In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility arvi accountabitity for the function(5). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's abHity to perform the delegated
fi;nct[on(s). This Is accompfished through a written agreement that specifies activritles and reporting
respons&fllties of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the earns contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities end reporting
responsibilities ar)d how sanctions/revocation will be'managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - special Provisions Conlraclof
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual sd^edute Idenflfying all subcontractorB, delegated functions and
responsibifitieB, and when (tie eubconUactor'B pedormance wKI be reviev/ed

19.5. DHHSshBll, at its disaefion, review and approve an subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas (or improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take conective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used In the Contract, the toHowing terms shall have the fottov^g meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the IDepaitment to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

OEPARTryiENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidetines" and which contains the regufap'ons governing the finandal
activities of contractor agencies v^lch have contracted with the Slate of NH to receive fbnds.

PROPOSAL: If appiicabie, shall mean tfie document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and condifions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to proinde to eligible individuals hereunder, shaD mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAtA/: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. arc
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be'deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shad mean that document prepared by the NH Department of AdmHislratlve
Services containing a compilation of all reguialions promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures AcL NH RSA Ch 541>A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulatiorrs promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhtok C - Special Provisions contrador

Page S of 6 Date ^ M • f (•»



New Hampshire Department of HealUi and Human Services
Exhibit C'1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. subparagraph 4~^ the GeneTii Provistohs"^ fRis contract,"Conditional Nature~oT"^reement. Is
replaced as follows:

4-. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued approprlatfon or availability of funds,
includtng any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds effected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, terminalion or modificatjon of appropriated or available funds, the
Stale shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, If ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds bom any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Z. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions oi this contract, Termination, Is amended by adding the
foQowing language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after gMng the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any tnformation or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including txjt not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement ere transUioned to having services delivered by another entJhy
Includtng contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

tO.5 The Contractor shall establish a niethod of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the iransttlon. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications In its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

1
3. The Departrhent reserves the right tn renew the Contract for up to four additional yeans, subject to

the continued avaBabiiity of funds, satisfactory pertormance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Reviskm to GBnersI PiovislorB Contractor Initiate
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified In Secllon 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-51 BO of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1908 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D: 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified hi Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of ̂ e General Provisions execute ttie following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUfVlAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
U3 department of AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Imptemenling Sections 6151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WorfcplaceActof 1988 (Pub, L 100-690, TllteV. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31. ^ '
1989 regulat/ons were amended and putilished as Part il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-granteas and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they wlli maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the cerllficatlon. .The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shal) be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pteasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or wiU continue lo provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that wDI be taken against employees for viclafon of such
prohibition;

1-2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
12.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabDHation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violallons

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying fhe employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2, Notify the emptoyer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crimlnal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was wrorklng, unless the Federal agency

V 'IS
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
•  Identfflcalion numberjs) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the loltowlng actions, wilHin 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.t. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to partic^ate satisfaclorfly in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabiiitaUon program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort lo continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementatfon of paragraphs 1.1.1.2. 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check if there are workplaces on file that are nol fdenlified here.

Conlractor Name;

Dale Name: o

\

Saf/vti-CiA. tiA, ̂  5/
ajHojsio
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Seclior* 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restilctions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate appficabte program covered):
•Temporary Assislar>c6 to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support EnforcerT>ent Program under TttJe IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant underTIHe VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knov^iedge and belief, that:

1. No Federal apjycpriated funds have treen paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for inftuenclng or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awardng of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modifrcalion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sul>contractor).

2. If any funds other than F^eral appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an offfcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memtjer of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbing. In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as StarwJard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sul>-grants. and contracts under grants,
loans, artd cooperative agreements) and that all sub-reclplents shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certificaticn Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed wher) tWs transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than S100.000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name;

Date Name:

Title:
il>oV

£xhibil E — edification Regardirig Lobbying Contractorlnitiols,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sendees
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENStnM

matters

The Contraclof nJenttfled In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsiblfrty Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Wenlifled In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fclfmvina
Certificatton: ^

instructions for certification
1. By slgrting arxi submltdng this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providino the

certifjcation set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to pro\^e the certification required below wa not necessarily result In denial
of partidpation In this covered trarisaction. tf necessary, the prospective participant shall submltan
explanation of why it cannot provide the certfication. The certification or expJanatJon will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' pHHS)
determlnafion whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHMS determined to enter Into Ihis transaction. If H is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS nr«y terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom tNs proposal (contract) is submitted If at any lime the prospective primary participant learns
that its certificatjon was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred." "suspended." ■ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person." "prirriary covered transaction,' "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," es used In this dause, have the meanings set cut In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submrtting this proposal (conlraci) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineli^ble, or voluntarily excluded
from partidpation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Indude the
clause lllied "Certtficatlon Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineliglbllity and Voluntary Exduslon -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, irr all lower tier covered
transactions and in aD solicilaliors for lower tier covered transactions.

0. A partidpani In a covered transaction may reiy upon a certification of a prospective partidpant in a
lower tier covered transaction thai It is not deterred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily exduded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A partidpani may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonpfocurement List (of exduded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
In order to render In good faith the certlffGatlon required by this clause. The knowledge arxl

Exhfbil F - Certificalion Rejardihg Debarment, Suspension Contracior Inflial.i
And Other RosponsiblBty li^lallcre . >,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from partlclpatlor in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defautt.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared inefiglble, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted'of or had

a civil /udgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with ol>talning. attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction era contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly;

113. are not presently Indicted for othenvise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/preposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or iocal) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
ceftificalion. such prospective participant shaB attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that ft and Its princlpaJs:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for dBbarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excli^ed from parlicipaUon in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective tower tier participan! is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
indude this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, (nellgibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower T)er Covered Transactions," without modirication In all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

itc
I- \C

Dale Name: s i ;

TlUe:

ExfiiWl F - Ccrtiflcalion Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspnnsion CorUractor I nllials
Ai>d Other Responsibirily MattersCuraMM»tio7ij ^ ^ PagoZol2 OataS-jl-IC



New Hampshire Department of Heaitt) and Human Services
Exhib'rt 0

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMeWTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRiMINATIQN. EQUAL TR^TMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORQANIZATIQNS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions aorees by signature of the Corlraclor's
repfesentative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and wUI require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrinvrwtion requirements, v^lch may Include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 378gd) wfilch prohibits
recipients of federal fijnding under this statute from discriminab'ng, either in employment pracbces or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civfl rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipierrts of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from (fiscriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the ba^sdf race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seclicn 794), which prohiWIs redpients of Federal finandal
assistance from discriminaljng on the basis of dtsabllity, In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimfnatipn and ensures equal opportunlty.fof persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilUies, andtransportafion;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimniBtion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 20 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - NondlscrirTinatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 1327S (equal protection of the taws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, wfilch provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with fallh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and VUhistJeblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defer^e Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whlstieblower Protections, which prefects employees against
reprisai for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reUar>ce Is placed v^en the
agency awards the grant False certification or violalion of the certification shaD be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExhiWC ,
Contractor InHiab

CtnrieMMalCa.TipliMMvWtie^rananti Cquti Jiwlmtrt »' —
trti pnkcsMV
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New Hampshire Deparlment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion. naQonal origin, or sex
against a redplent of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the ftnding to the Office for Civii Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsrrian.

The Corttractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the follov^ng
certiflcation:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisloris
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

s-JI. u ^
Date Name: ;

Title:

ExWbftG ^ Lfv^
Contractor inWate ^ ̂
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New Hempshire Department of HeaHh and Huntan Services
Exhibit H

CERTiFICATION REGAROfNG ENViRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Envirorvnental Tobacco Smoke, also known as (he Pro-Chtldren Act of 1994
(Act), requires (hat smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heatth, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the taw may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an ̂ mlnistrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

/Lo.. ̂  5.

Date Name: .

Title: ^

fc*hibrt M - C«rtificdlion Regarding Cortrsclor Iratiats
Environmeniel Tnbocco Smoke r ^ i •
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Nfiw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEWENT

Th© Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiftable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contraclor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
In 46 CFR Section 164.501.

6. 'Data Aggreoation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f- 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Sectiori 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Ad. TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1998, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Paris 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'individuar shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3^01^ ExhibiH ConlraclcirInitiaJs I
Heaim Insurance Portability Aa
Busir>es3 Associate Agreemenl .... .

Page I of 6 Dato •!> • 3l * f ̂



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

i  'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected heatth information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or tndecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the l^ivacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. t>elow; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentiaity and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third parly to notify Business
/Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.'

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3^2014 ExNbil I Conlfaclor Inltiais
HcaHh litsurance Portability Act
Business Associate AgreerrMnI ^
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New Hampshiro Department of Hcatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

Assodate shall refrain from disdosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Assodate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be t>ound by such additional restrictions ar>d shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement induding breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Inddent that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Assodate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, txjt not be
llmrted to;

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, induding the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identirtcation;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Assodate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immedlalely report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply wilh all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. t

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal polides and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business assodates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disdosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Eichittn Conxaclof Initials ^
Hcalih Insurance Portability Ad
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New Hampshire Department of Hoatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall t>e governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, poliaes and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for^
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

). Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreerrwnt, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the prolectionis of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 ExMUtI ConVactor InlBals
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitat(on(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disciosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disciosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a tinneframe specified by Covered Emily. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HiPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownershlo. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HiPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 exhWl I Coriraclor (nlljals
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Exhibit I

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sunrival. Provisions in this Exhibit t regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) 1. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS.WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Tti.
TheState '

signature of Authorized Representative

Name of thorized Representative

"D;
Title of Authorized Representative

j
Date

Name of the Contractor

/<!
Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

yd^AJL.Krv^ J
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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Date



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRAWSPAREMCY
ACT (FFATAt COMPLIANCE

The Federal Furtdlng Accountability and Trartsparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of irxltvidual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant rrwdlfications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordarKe with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporfng Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Heatth and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award su^ect to the FFATA repoding requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAJCS code for contracts ICFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identtfier of the entity {OUNS <f)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information Is not already.available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accounlabilily and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 arrd Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below r\amcd Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial AccountabBity and Transparency Act.

Contraclor Name:

f'71- 10

Date Name:

Title:

Cxnlbil J - Certilicaiion Reeareiing Ihe FofleraJ Fundirtg Conlrador Inrtials
AccountaMily And Transparency Act (FFATA) Ccxnphanco

cu<wi>wno?i3 Page 1 ol 2 Date -^"-3/-/l



New Hampshire Department of Healtti and Human Services

ExhibH J

FORMA

As Ihe Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ^f "7

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revemies from U.S. federal contracts. sut>contracts, loans, grants. sut>grants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

.4-NO YES

II the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

II the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compertsalion of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Exhibit J - CcrtcTcation RcgarOlng the Federal Funding
Accounttbiltty And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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Conlrecior initials
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